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CITY OF SUFFOLK

P.O. BOX 1858, SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA 23439-1858 PHONE: (757) 514-4012

CITY MANAGER

December 18, 2012

The Honorable Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

Dear Council Members:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the period of
July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012. The code of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the charter of the
City of Suffolk (the City) require the City to publish, at the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of
financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. This report has been prepared by the Department of Finance and complies with state law and
guidelines of the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

The City’s Management assumes full responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and reliability of all
information presented in this report. We believe the data, as presented, are accurate in all material
respects and are presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of
operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been
included. In order to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the data, the management
of the City has designed a framework of internal accounting controls to protect the City’s assets from loss
of unauthorized use or disposition, provide reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintain the accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived; and that the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. We assert to the best of our knowledge this CAFR is complete and reliable in all material
aspects.

According to Section 8.08 of the City Charter and Section 15.2-2511 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as
amended, an annual audit by an independent auditor of the City is required. The City’s financial
statements have been audited by Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P (“Brown Edwards”). As a result of
an audit of the City’s financial records and transactions of all funds, component units, and departments of
the City, Brown Edwards has concluded that the financial statements are in compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles and have issued an unqualified opinion on the City’s financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2012. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.




The audit included and was part of a broader federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the
special needs of federal grants. The standards governing single audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the
City’s internal control and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on those involving
the administration of federal awards. The analysis by the auditors is included in the CAFR within the
Compliance Section.

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s
MD&A can be found within the financial section immediately following the independent auditor’s
opinion.

Profile of the City

The present City of Suffolk was formed January 1, 1974, from the consolidation of the City of Suffolk
and the City of Nansemond (formerly Nansemond County). The City is Virginia’s largest city in land
area and one of the top ten in land area in the nation with over 400 square miles. The diverse landscape
includes a mix of rural, suburban and urban development areas. The City is situated in the western portion
of Hampton Roads, Virginia’s coastal plain area, and is bounded by the James River to the north, the
Cities of Chesapeake and Portsmouth to the east, the State of North Carolina to the south, and the
Counties of Southampton and Isle of Wight to the west. The City of Suffolk is one of seven major cities
that form the Norfolk-Virginia Beach-Newport News metropolitan area with 1.6 million people. It is also
known as the Hampton Roads area.

The City’s government is organized under the Council-Manager form of government. The governing
body, the City Council, is composed of seven members and a Mayor who develop policies for the
administration of the City. The Mayor is elected at large and the Council are elected by borough in a city-
wide election every other year with terms of office being four years. The City Council appoints a City
Manager to act as administrative head of the City. The City Manager serves at the pleasure of City
Council and carries out the City Council’s policies and directs business procedures. The City Manager
also appoints and removes the directors of all departments and all employees of those departments under
his/her control.

The School Board is elected by borough. Under Virginia law all operations of the School Board are
completely independent of City Council and the City Administration. City Council is required to make an
annual appropriation to the School Board based upon an approved budget, but has no authority to direct
how such appropriation is expended.

As a full-service city, Suffolk provides a broad range of municipal services authorized by statue or
charter. Those services include education, public safety, highways and streets, parks and recreation,
sanitation, health and social services, public improvements, planning and zoning, public utilities, storm
water management and general administrative services.

The funds and entities included in the City’s CAFR are those controlled by, or dependent on, the City.
This determination is explained in Note 1A within the Notes to the Financial Statements tab.
Consequently, this report includes the public School System and the Economic Development Authority as
component units and excludes related organizations such as the Suffolk Redevelopment and Housing
Authority, the Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority, and the Western Tidewater Water Authority.
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The City maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with the legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by City Council. Budgetary control is
maintained at the expenditure level of each department using an encumbrance accounting system. Open
encumbrances are reported within the appropriate classification of “committed” or “assigned” fund
balance at June 30, 2012. A description of the procedures utilized to establish budgetary data is presented
in Note 1D within the Notes to Financial Statements tab.

Economic Activity

Suffolk is one of the fastest growing, most livable cities in a top-ranked, business-friendly state. With a
diversified and skilled workforce, proximity to the Port of Virginia, available land for development,
efficient transportation access, high quality of life, a regard for its historic past and a dynamic vision for
the future, Suffolk continues to attract new business and investment, create jobs, and provide an
invigorating economic climate for expansion. Twenty-six companies with diverse market interests said
“yes” to Suffolk’s many advantages as they planted new businesses here during calendar year 2011
(including 1,573,949 in new square footage). An additional twenty-one existing businesses invested in the
city’s economic position by expanding their presence in the community (with 136,680 additional square
footage). Together, these activities produced a capital investment of more than $103 million and the
creation of 980 jobs. Add in the commitment of strong city leadership and it is understandable why more
than $1.3 billion in new capital investment, for major new and expanding commercial projects, have
taken place in the community since 2001. As a result, more than 9,200 new jobs have been created.
Suffolk is sending the message that they are open for businesses, both large and small.

Economic activity numbers were particularly high in the distribution sector, a boon to Suffolk’s tax base
and overall quality of life for all its residents. Other growth areas included manufacturing, office and

administration, and retail, and service providers. The following chart highlights some of this activity.

Business Highlights January 1 — December 31, 2011

New Business Sector Investment
California Cartage Distribution $23,000,000
New Exchange Service Command Distribution $16,000,000
ACE Hardware Redistribution Center Distribution $14,000,000
Kerma Medical Products Manufacturing $5,500,000
Caspari Distribution $3,000,000
The Lofts at One Eleven Office and Apts. $3,000,000
AAAA Self Storage Service — Storage $1,500,000
Goodwill Retail $1,300,000
O’Reilly’s Auto Parts Retail $1,200,000
Dollar Tree Deals Retail $1,000,000
Expanding Business Sector Investment
CSX National Gateway Service — Railroad $15,000,000
TowneBank Office and Admin. $5,000,000
YMCA Camp Arrowhead Service — Camp $3,200,000
R.E. Michel Company Service - HVAC $2,130,000
Market Center at Harbour View Retail $1,750,000

Suffolk economic development opportunities have continued to grow throughout 2012. The following
chart highlights some of this activity.
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Business Highlights January 1 — September 1, 2012

New Business Sector Investment
Cyber Command Office and Admin $54,000,000
Dana Corp (expansion) Distribution $8,000,000
Massimo Zanetti (expansion) Food Processing $5,000,000
NowCare Urgent Care Medical $3,000,000
Differential Pressure Instruments Manufacturing $1,500,000
Sumitomo Distribution $1,000,000
Center for Arthritis and
Rheumatic Diseases Medical $200,000

Over the past 11 years Suffolk has also outpaced its neighboring Hampton Roads cities in population
growth by a wide margin. Where some saw a decrease in population, Suffolk grew by a whopping 34.6%.

Hampton Roads population growth by city

City 2000 2011 %of Change
Hampton 146,437 137,372 -6.2%
Portsmouth 100,565 96,368 -4.2%
Newport News 180,697 181,027 0.2%
Virginia Beach 425,527 441,246 3.8%
Norfolk 234,403 243,985 4.1%
Chesapeake 199,184 225,398 13.4% -
Suffolk 63,677 85,692 34.6% 3
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This population trend is projected to continue over the foreseeable future. By 2034, we expect to see an
increase in population by 113%. Furthermore, median household income (MHI) has grown in the City by
58% from 2000 to 2011 making the City, with a current MHI of $65,104, the second highest in the region
and higher than both the state MHI ($61,406) and the national MHI ($51,914).
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Source: 1. Hampton Roads Planning District Commission; 2. Virginia Employment Commission

This residential growth and change requires the City to be proactive in planning for its future to insure
efficient and effective delivery of services and a high quality of life for its citizens. By managing
Suffolk’s residential and commercial development, however, the City continues to offer families and
businesses plenty of room to live, work and play.

Long-term Financial Planning

City Council and City Management maintain their visionary process in their commitment to planning for
the future of the City of Suffolk. Through a series of retreats and work sessions, City Council has
established priorities as the guiding principles to move the city into the twenty-first century and to
develop partnerships to further the City’s objectives. Financial planning is further extended with the aid
of financial advisors for bond issues and rate consultants for utility rate analysis.

In planning for the specific initiatives under these priorities, the City’s adopted ten-year Capital
Improvement Plan represents a planned schedule of the City’s needed expenditures for physical
improvements over the next decade. The Capital Improvements Plan which covers the ten-year period
from fiscal year 2013 through fiscal year 2022 totals approximately $707 million. Of this amount, water
and sewer projects are estimated at $242 million while general government projects are estimated at $465
million.

Financial policies are vital in maintaining consistency and focus. One of the financial policies continually
reviewed is the fund balance levels. The ratio of unassigned General Fund balance as a percentage of
budgeted governmental funds expenditures, (net of the general fund contribution to the Schools, transfers
to other governmental funds, and Capital Projects fund expenditures) plus the budgeted expenditures in
the School Operating and Food Service Funds indicates the ability of the City to cope with unexpected
financial challenges or emergencies. The larger the unassigned General Fund balance, the greater the
City’s ability to cope with these potential financial emergencies and fluctuations in revenue cycles. The
City has established a target rate of 12% at the close of each fiscal year. At June 30, 2012, the fund
balance ratio exceeded the target.



Financial policies were developed for the Utility Fund which provided for a written documentation of
many sound business practices. Categories include financial independence, target percentage for
unrestricted cash and long-term investments, debt service coverage ratios, plus policies for asset
replacement and system extension. The Utility Fund is further governed by revenue bond Master Trust
Indenture requirements.

Awards and Recognition

Bond Ratings Upgrade to AA+

The City of Suffolk received bond rating upgrades in June 2011 from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch
rating agencies to AA+. The City is rated Aa2 by Moody’s. This is a validation of the City’s
creditworthiness and financial strength.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Suffolk, Virginia for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, representing the twenty-
eighth consecutive year that the City has received this award. The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state
and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and applicable legal requirements.

Annual Budget

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented a
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Suffolk, Virginia for its annual budget for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011. In order to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a
budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an operations guide, as a financial
plan, and as a communications device. This is the fourth consecutive year for this recognition as it is
valid for a one year period.

America’s Best Places to Live for 2012

Suffolk has been named as one of America’s Best Places to Live for 2012 by CNN Money Magazine.
The City of Suffolk was named the 9" best community in CNN Best Places to Live Top 25 List of
“Where the Jobs Are” for 2012. Statistics were used from 2000 to 2011 for areas which were
experiencing job and population growth and where unemployment was below the national average. The
City of Suffolk experienced a 43% increase during this time frame. The City of Suffolk was also named
in CNN Money Magazine’s 100 Best Small Cities to Live in 2010. We are well aware of Suffolk’s
unique and diverse offerings, from its historic downtown and rich farmland to its high-tech corridor and
beautiful recreational offerings. It is wonderful that others are learning what we already know: whether
it’s to work, live or play...It’s a good time to be in Suffolk.”
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FINANCIAL SECTION




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Members of City Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Suffolk, Virginia (the “City”), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Specifications for Audits of
Counties, Cities, and Towns and Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 18, 2012, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedules of funding
progress as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining
and individual non-major fund statements, non-major funds budgetary comparison statements, and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of
the financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, the
non-major funds budgetary comparison statements, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Suffolk’s (the “City”’) comprehensive annual financial report presents a discussion and
analysis of the City’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read this in
conjunction with the transmittal letter in the front of this report and the City’s basic financial statements following
this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

o The City’s total net assets (assets less liabilities) on a government-wide basis were $533.6 million at June
30, 2012. Of this balance, $368 million is attributed to the governmental activities and $165.6 million to
the business-type activities.

e For fiscal year 2012, taxes and other general revenues of the City’s governmental activities amounted to
$161 million and net program expenses $119.6 million, which resulted in an increase from 2011 in net
assets for the City’s governmental activities of $41.4 million.

e Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $45.4 million, expenses were $44.7 million and
transfers to the general fund were $2.0 million, which resulted in a decrease of net assets for the City’s
business-type activities of $1.3 million.

e The City of Suffolk maintained its AA+ bond rating from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch rating agencies,
and Aa2 by Moody’s during fiscal year 2012.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The
City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements, 2) Fund
financial statements, and 3) Notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Government-wide financial reporting consists of two
statements: the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The statement of net assets presents information on all City assets and liabilities, with the difference between the

two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information identifying how net assets changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, some items of revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into the following categories:

e Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here including general
government, public safety, public works, education, health and welfare, parks and recreation and
economic and community development.

e Business-type activities — The City’s water and sewer services are reported here as well as the City’s
stormwater utilities, and the refuse collection service. These services are supported by charges for
services based on use.

e Component Units — The City includes two separate legal entities in its report — the Suffolk School Board
and the Economic Development Authority of the City of Suffolk. While legally separate, the City is
financially accountable and provides operating and capital funding to these component units.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. Traditional users of government
financial statements will find the fund financial statement presentation more familiar. The focus is now on the
City’s most significant funds. The fund financial statements are divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances for the General, Capital Projects and Debt Service funds. Data from the other governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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Proprietary Funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations, the activities of the Stormwater Ultility
Fund, and the refuse collection services. Internal Service funds are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account
for its fleet management, information technology and insurance programs.

Fiduciary Funds — The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is similar to that of the proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found following the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

Required Supplementary Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this report also
presents budgetary comparison schedules, a schedule of funding progress and employer contributions and notes to

the required supplementary information.

Other Supplementary Information — This report also presents combining and individual fund statements and
schedules.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Assets

The following table reflects the condensed statement of net assets:

Current and other assets
Capital and other non-current assets
Total assets

Current and other liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets
*Fiscal Year 2011 has been restated.

Statement of Net Assets
(in Millions)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2012 2011%* 2012 2011* 2012 2011%*
1515 § 105.0 $ 754§ 307§ 2269 $ 135.7
465.4 448.0 376.1 357.8 841.5 805.8
6169 § 553.0 § 4515 $ 388.5 §  1,0684 § 941.5
153 § 112§ 112§ 88 § 265§ 20.0
233.6 215.1 274.7 212.8 508.3 427.9
2489 § 2263 §$ 2859 $ 2216 $ 5348 $ 447.9
3354 § 3292 § 157.1 § 158.6 § 4925 $ 487.8
6.1 18.6 2.0 1.9 8.1 20.5
26.5 (21.1) 6.5 6.4 33.0 (14.7)
368.0 $ 326.7 § 165.6 § 166.9 § 533.6 § 493.6
6169 § 553.0 § 4515 $ 388.5 §  1,0684 § 941.5

The City’s combined net assets (which are the City’s bottom line) grew by 8.1% or $40 million in fiscal year
2012, of which approximately 1.5% represents resources that are subject to external restrictions or enabling
legislation. Net assets invested in capital, less any related debt used to acquire those assets of $492.5 million are
92.3% of total net assets and increased by $4.7 million. These assets are not available for future expenses because
they are land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment used to provide services to citizens.

The City has a strong financial position with 6.2% of the net assets or $33.0 million as unrestricted net assets. The
unrestricted net assets are available to allow the City to provide services to citizens.
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Statement of Activities

The following table summarizes the changes in net assets for governmental and business-type activities:

Changes in Net Assets
(in Millions)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011% 2012 2011* 2012 2011%

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for services $ 59 § 6.7 $ 43.0 337§ 439 § 40.4

Operating grants and contributions 14.7 334 - - 14.7 334

Capital grants and contributions 48.3 7.7 1.1 4.4 49.4 12.1
General revenues:

Real estate and property taxes 103.6 99.5 - - 103.6 99.5

Other taxes 36.9 344 - - 36.9 344

Grants and contributions, not restricted 13.1 12.6 - - 13.1 12.6

Unrestricted investment earnings 1.1 1.1 0.8 0.4 1.9 1.5

Miscellaneous 4.2 0.9 0.5 0.2 4.7 1.1
Total Revenues 227.8 196.3 45.4 38.7 273.2 235.0
Expenses:

General government 12.6 11.8 - - 12.6 11.8

Judicial 7.6 7.2 - - 7.6 7.2

Public safety 48.6 43.6 - - 48.6 43.6

Public works 37.1 30.8 - - 37.1 30.8

Health and welfare 12.6 13.8 - - 12.6 13.8

Education 442 56.5 - - 442 56.5

Parks, recreation, cultural 7.9 7.8 - - 7.9 7.8

Community development 6.0 13.8 - - 6.0 13.8

Interest on long-term debt 11.8 8.5 - - 11.8 8.5

Utility - - 359 333 359 333

Refuse Collection Services - - 5.7 - 5.7 -

Stormwater Utility - - 3.1 3.0 3.1 3.0
Total expenses 188.4 193.8 447 36.3 233.1 230.1
Excess of revenues over expenses 39.4 2.5 0.7 24 40.1 49
Transfers 2.0 1.0 (2.0) (1.0) - -
Change in net assets 41.4 3.5 (1.3) 1.4 40.1 4.9
Effect of restatement on Net Assets - 127.6 - 0.8) - 126.8
Net assets - beginning of year (as restated) 326.6 195.5 166.9 166.3 493.5 361.9
Net assets - ending $ 3680 $ 326.6 $ 165.6 $ 1669 $§ 533.6 $§  493.6

Revenue Highlights:

Real estate and personal property tax revenue, the City’s largest revenue source, totaled $103.6 million and $99.5
million in fiscal year 2012 and 2011 respectively. The chart below indicates the growth in the General Property
Taxes revenue over the past ten years. The increase in the Real estate and Property taxes is due to an increase in
the real estate tax rate of $.06 per $100.
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Other Local Taxes are comprised of revenue from local sales tax, meals, lodging, and utilities increased by $2.4
million, due to the increase in 2012 of the bank stock tax, lodging, and meal tax rates.

Expense Highlights:

The City is committed to ensuring the highest level of safety for its citizens and has expended $48.6 million
towards public safety efforts.

Education continues to be one of the City’s highest priorities and commitments representing $44.2 million.

Overall the governmental activities expenses of the City decreased in fiscal year 2012 by $5.4 million. This
decrease is a result of the City’s commitment to sound financial management practices.

Business-type Activities

The business-type activities are made up of Public Utilities, Stormwater Ultilities, and Refuse Collection services.

Revenue Highlights:

Charges for services, including water and sewer fees, Stormwater Ultility fees and refuse collection fees represent
94.7% of the total revenues collected. These revenues increased from fiscal year 2011 to 2012 due to an increase
in the rates for water and sewer on the service charges. The addition of the monthly fee for the refuse collection
also contributed to the increase in the revenue
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Expense Highlights:

Utility Fund expenses were $35.9 million of which 20% is depreciation and amortization expenses. The increase
in the Utility fund expenditures are due to an increase in the debt service expenditures. Stormwater expenses were
$3.1 million for fiscal year 2012, which is consistent with fiscal year 2011. The Refuse fund expenditures were
$5.7 million in fiscal year 2012.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$115.6 million. Approximately 31.9% of this amount is available for spending at the government’s discretion
(unassigned fund balance). Fund Balance is divided into five new classifications: non-spendable, restricted,
committed, assigned and unassigned.

General Fund. The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the general fund balance was $54.5 million of which $36.9 million represents unassigned fund balance of the
general fund. The net increase to fund balance for the general fund for 2012 was $7 million. This increase was
principally due to the increase in the real estate tax rate as well as other local tax rate increases.

As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total budgeted expenditures. The City has a financial policy goal that unassigned fund
balance should be greater than 12%. The restricted portion of fund balance, $2.1 million reflects restricted
cash for unspent grant funds and developer deposits. The committed portion, $12.9 million is comprised of a
capital project reserve and economic incentives.

Debt service fund. The debt service fund has a fund balance of $2.4 million. The General Fund routinely
transfers monies to this fund to meet debt service requirements.

Capital projects fund. The capital projects fund accounts for all construction projects of general public
improvements, excluding capital projects related to business-type activities, which are accounted for
elsewhere. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was $41.5 million, $31.8 million was
committed for contracts and purchase orders in process, and the balance of $9.6 million are unspent bond
proceeds for subsequent years’ projects. The City’s top five construction projects consisted of the following
in fiscal year 2012:

New Municipal Building

Improvements to Nansemond Parkway/Shoulders Hill Road
Replacement of Southern Elementary School

Airport Runway Safety Area Extension

Route 58 Corridor Widening



Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Enterprise funds. The City’s enterprise funds account for its water and sewer operations, stormwater utility
efforts, and refuse collection services. The net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of the current fiscal
year totaled $165.6 million.

Internal service funds. The internal service funds are used to account for entity-wide fleet management,
information technology and risk management programs. The total net assets at the end of the current fiscal
year were $30.6 million. Each of the internal service funds finished strong this year with positive changes in
net assets.

Trust funds. The City funded $1.5 million in other post employment benefits in the OPEB Trust Fund. The City
participates in the Virginia Pooled OPEB Trust Fund. In fiscal year 2012, the City fully funded its annual
contribution to the fund as calculated by the actuaries and there is now $14.1 million in the OPEB Trust Fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2012, totaled $841.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment and construction in
progress.

Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
(in Millions)

* Fiscal Year 2011 has been restated

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2012 2011~ 2012 2011~ 2012 2011*
Land $ 282 % 247 $ 54 $ 34 $ 336 $ 28.1
Construction in progress 45.7 57.3 80.6 69.6 126.3 126.9
Buildings 48.5 38.1 50.7 48.3 99.2 86.4
Infrastructure 312.8 295.5 - - 312.8 295.5
Improvements other than buildings 7.8 12.3 192.5 191.6 200.3 203.9
Machinery and equipment 22.4 20.0 46.9 449 69.3 64.9
Total $ 4654 % 4479 $ 3761 $ 3578 $§ 8415 % 805.7
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Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total outstanding debt of $478.1 million.
Capital leases, claims payable, compensated absences and premiums and other credits are not included in these
figures.

Outstanding Debt (in millions)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Bonds Payable $ 2055 $ 188.8 § 2655 $ 2067 $ 471.0 $ 3955
Loans and Notes Payable 7.1 7.7 - - 7.1 7.7
Total $ 2126 § 196.5 § 2655 $ 2067 $ 4781 $§  403.2

The Commonwealth of Virginia limits the amount of general obligation debt outstanding to 10% of the locality’s
assessed value of real property, which is $880.5 million for 2012. Of the debt shown above, only $312.4 million is
general obligation debt, the balance is pledged with water and sewer utility revenues.

The City Charter further limits this general obligation limit to 7% of the City’s assessed value of real property or
$616.4 million. City financial policies have further restricted the debt ratio to 4% or $352.2 million to reflect its
conservative use of borrowed monies. The City’s outstanding general obligation debt is below both limitations
representing the City’s conservative debt borrowing policy.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS

e The City’s economic development initiatives created over 980 new jobs and over $103.4 million dollars in
new capital investment in the City during the calendar year.

e For the fiscal year 2012 the City increased its tax rate to $0.97 per $100 but remains the second lowest tax
rate in the region.

e  Utility rates increased as of July 1, 2012 to $6.43 per 100 cubic feet for water and $4.91 per 100 cubic feet for
sewer due to increasing debt service requirements.

e Population in the City increased 34.6% in the last ten years. This is significant as other cities within the region
have seen a decline.

Additional information on relevant economic factors can be found in the Letter of Transmittal.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the City’s
Department of Finance, 441 Market Street, Suffolk, Virginia, 23439.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012

Primary Government

EXHIBIT 1

Component Units

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted (Note 2)
Receivables, net (Note 3)
Due from other governments (Note 4)
Due from component units (Note 6)
Inventories
Prepaid items
OPEB asset (Note 12)
Deferred charges
Due from developer
Capital assets: (Note 7)
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Due to primary government (Note 6)
Due to other governments
Deposits and amounts held for others
Unearned revenue (Note 8)
Long-term liabilities: (Note 9)

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:

Debt service

Repair and maintenance

Operating reserves

Other governmental purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The Notes to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this statement.

Business Economic
Governmental Type Development
Activities Activities Total School Board Authority
$ 115,861,952 § 6,593,307 $ 122455259 $§ 15,960,705 $ 2,895,343
16,354,570 59,403,944 75,758,514 - 1,309,197
7,969,659 6,297,639 14,267,298 201,301 109,238
6,426,619 - 6,426,619 5,840,218 -
274,205 - 274,205 - -
349,834 116,868 466,702 458,938 9,451,659
8,653 - 8,653 4,080,847 -
873,436 116,949 990,385 - -
2,203,527 2,886,320 5,089,847 - 105,357
1,177,182 - 1,177,182 - -
73,896,204 86,036,482 159,932,686 7,082,258 1,021,162
391,460,428 290,073,412 681,533,840 130,648,957 27,040,622
616,856,269 451,524,921 1,068,381,190 164,273,224 41,932,578
6,299,598 3,455,626 9,755,224 1,616,071 129,515
236,923 2,517 239,440 11,086,603 -
3,238,066 4,089,678 7,327,744 - 215,817
- - - - 274,205
- 3,309,106 3,309,106 59,802 -
1,175,663 32,827 1,208,490 33,556 10,000
4,305,105 295,710 4,600,815 - 138,765
19,572,576 2,893,969 22,466,545 84,669 757,539
214,024,784 271,788,701 485,813,485 3,719,899 12,431,262
248,852,715 285,868,134 534,720,849 16,600,600 13,957,103
335,377,003 157,084,814 492,461,817 137,731,215 14,872,983
392,725 - 392,725 - 1,093,380
2,669,183 500,000 3,169,183 - -
- 1,478,028 1,478,028 - -
3,087,787 - 3,087,787 - -
26,476,856 6,593,945 33,070,801 9,941,409 12,009,112
$ 368,003,554 $§ 165,656,787 $§ 533,660,341 § 147,672,624 § 27,975,475
5
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EXHIBIT 3
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Total
Capital Road Debt Nonmajor Governmental
General Projects Maintenance Service Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,260,296 $ 33,145,569 $ 11,469,069 $ 1,979,191 § 3,161,721 $ 98,015,846
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted (Note 2) 2,106,682 9,609,804 2,669,183 392,178 1,576,176 16,354,023
Receivables, net (Note 3) 7,516,000 - 154,132 - 141,811 7,811,943
Due from other governmental units (Note 4) 2,898,471 2,141,675 - - 1,386,473 6,426,619
Due from other funds (Note 5) 1,378,100 - - - 341,681 1,719,781
Due from component units 274,205 - - - - 274,205
Inventories 32,433 - - - 87,847 120,280
Prepaids 8,653 - - - - 8,653
Total assets $ 62,474,840 $ 44,897,048 $ 14292384 § 2,371,369 § 6,695709 $130,731,350
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,768,206 $§ 2,774,122 $ 951,382 § - $ 234,020 $ 5,727,730
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 147,845 - 21,374 - - 169,219
Payables from restricted assets 595,071 580,592 - - - 1,175,663
Due to other funds (Note 5) 341,681 - - - 1,378,100 1,719,781
Deferred revenue (Note 8) 5,169,831 90,000 870,471 - 234,387 6,364,689
Total liabilities 8,022,634 3,444,714 1,843,227 - 1,846,507 15,157,082
Fund Balances: (Note 16)
Nonspendable 41,086 - - - - 41,086
Restricted 2,106,682 9,609,804 2,669,183 392,178 1,555,998 16,333,845
Committed 12,907,628 31,842,530 8,830,070 1,979,191 3,293,204 58,852,623
Assigned 2,515,436 - 949,904 - - 3,465,340
Unassigned 36,881,374 - - - - 36,881,374
Total fund balances 54,452,206 41,452,334 12,449,157 2,371,369 4,849,202 115,574,268
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 62,474,840 $§ 44,897,048 $ 14292384 § 2,371,369 § 6,695709 $130,731,350
(Continued)
Primary
Government
Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 115,574,268

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are 445,092,762
not reported in the funds.

Deferred revenue represents amounts that were not available to fund current expenditures and therefore
are not reported in the funds 4,428,872

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Deferred charges 2,165,907
OPEB asset 873,436
Long-term receivables 1,177,182

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the governmental funds, but rather is recognized

as an expenditure when due. (3,223,590)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest, are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

General obligation bonds, literary fund and Section 108 loans (213,617,914)
Landfill liability (2,094,130)
Unamortized premiums and other credits on bonds (6,430,361)
Compensated absences (4,124,850)

Unearned revenue not recorded in the funds as it did not arise from current financial
resources relating to the golf course lease agreement (2,369,288)
The internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities such as
information technology, fleet management, and insurance to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the statement

of net assets. 30,551,260
Net assets of governmental activities $ 368,003,554
The Notes to Financial Statements are 7

an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes
Other local taxes

Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses

Fines and forfeitures
Revenue from use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth
Revenue from the Federal Government
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Education
Parks, recreation, and cultural
Community development
Nondepartmental
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Bond issuance costs
Payment to escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCES AT JULY 1, as
restated (Note 17)
FUND BALANCES AT JUNE 30

(Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are

an integral part of this statement.

Year Ended June 30, 2012

EXHIBIT 4

Total
Capital Road Debt Nonmajor Governmental
General Projects Maintenance Service Funds Funds
$ 102,177,097 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,605,700 $ 103,782,797
36,916,761 - - - - 36,916,761
1,021,235 - 246,142 - - 1,267,377
1,024,324 - - - - 1,024,324
605,106 163 32,732 164,880 14,445 817,326
3,248,180 - 847,905 - 1,283,899 5,379,984
1,127,136 1,220 66,237 - 705,654 1,900,247
19,756,867 3,617,997 19,671,103 - 373,652 43,419,619
4,842,119 1,975,554 - - 3,019,067 9,836,740
170,718,825 5,594,934 20,864,119 164,880 7,002,417 204,345,175
12,575,611 - - - 988,065 13,563,676
7,038,598 - - - 692,620 7,731,218
46,925,243 - - - 2,021,884 48,947,127
1,221,746 - 17,527,250 - 270,325 19,019,321
12,786,402 - - - 16,354 12,802,756
44,151,993 - - - 54,600 44,206,593
7,401,555 - - - 165,961 7,567,516
5,035,207 - - - 970,253 6,005,460
455,436 - - - - 455,436
- 15,988,154 - - - 15,988,154
- - - 14,862,418 - 14,862,418
- - - 9,354,705 - 9,354,705
137,591,791 15,988,154 17,527,250 24,217,123 5,180,062 200,504,380
33,127,034 (10,393,220) 3,336,869 (24,052,243) 1,822,355 3,840,795
- 32,874,136 - 14,295,853 - 47,169,989
- - - (347,705) - (347,705)
- - - (14,096,458) - (14,096,458)
2,069,174 5,467,874 - 24,820,897 482,253 32,840,198
(28,222,429) - (1,650,942) - (1,505,549) (31,378,920)
(26,153,255) 38,342,010 (1,650,942) 24,672,587 (1,023,296) 34,187,104
6,973,779 27,948,790 1,685,927 620,344 799,059 38,027,899
47,478,427 13,503,544 10,763,230 1,751,025 4,050,143 77,546,369
$ 54452206 $ 41,452,334 § 12,449,157 § 2,371,369  § 4,849,202 §$ 115,574,268
8



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Change in fund balance - total governmental funds
Adjustments for the statement of activities:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report depreciation expense
to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets.
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
the funds.
Deferred revenues

Lease revenue paid in form of leasehold improvements
Infrastructure dedicated from the Commonwealth to the City

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of
Activities.

Principal repayment and payments to escrow agent
Bond issue costs

Proceeds from issueance of new debt

Net change in defered items

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Accrued interest payable

Change in compensated absences
Change in OPEB asset

Change in landfill liability

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of the information technology, fleet management,
and insurance. The change in net assets of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.
Change in net assets of governmental activities

The Notes to Financial Statements are 9
an integral part of this statement.

$

$

EXHIBIT 4

Total
Governmental
Funds

38,027,899

11,253,052
(16,090,011)

178,786
211,541
18,900,000

29,711,523
347,705

(47,169,989)

(1,747,430)

(609,218)
217,756
(10,073)

(408,772)

8,545,695
41,358,464



ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted
Receivables, net

Inventories

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
OPEB asset
Deferred charges
Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable from restricted resources
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Deposits payable
Claims payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences

Bonds and leases payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences

Claims payable

Bonds and leases payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted:

Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total net assets

The Notes to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 5

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities —

Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
$ 3,257,926 § 3,335,381 $ 6,593,307 $ 17,846,106
59,403,944 - 59,403,944 547
5,825,859 471,780 6,297,639 157,716
116,868 - 116,868 229,554
68,604,597 3,807,161 72,411,758 18,233,923

92,414 24,535 116,949 -
2,886,320 - 2,886,320 37,620
86,036,482 - 86,036,482 1,088,875
290,042,755 30,657 290,073,412 19,174,995
379,057,971 55,192 379,113,163 20,301,490
447,662,568 3,862,353 451,524,921 38,535,413
885,071 326,678 1,211,749 571,868

2,243,877 - 2,243,877 -
- 2,517 2,517 67,704

3,309,106 - 3,309,106 -

295,710 - 295,710 -

32,827 - 32,827 -
- - - 1,694,614
4,089,678 - 4,089,678 14,476
23,980 10,611 34,591 15,655
2,859,378 - 2,859,378 1,591,617
13,739,627 339,806 14,079,433 3,955,934
334,315 139,473 473,788 158,062
- - - 2,063,165
271,314,913 - 271,314,913 1,806,992
271,649,228 139,473 271,788,701 4,028,219
285,388,855 479,279 285,868,134 7,984,153
157,054,157 30,657 157,084,814 16,898,261

1,978,028 - 1,978,028 -
3,241,528 3,352,417 6,593,945 13,652,999
$ 162,273,713 $ 3,383,074 $§ 165,656,787 $ 30,551,260

10



OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Self-insured claims
Contractural services
Administration
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Vehicle and power equipment — fuel
Vehicle and power equipment — supplies
Utilities
Insurance
OPEB - contributions to trust
Bulk-water purchases
Depreciation and amortization
Building and equipment rental
Other charges

Total operating expenses

Operating income

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

EXHIBIT 6

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Loss on disposal of capital assets
Interest income

Interest expense and other fiscal changes
Contribution to WTWA infrastructure
Rental income

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

(Loss) income before contributions and transfers

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS AT JULY 1, as restated (Note 17)

NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this statement.

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities —
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
$ 32,934,240 $ 10,055,670 § 42,989,910 $ 32,753,778
443,785 79,587 523,372 131,494
33,378,025 10,135,257 43,513,282 32,885,272
6,016,494 3,320,913 9,337,407 2,781,983
- - - 12,208,415
498,038 1,612,778 2,110,816 1,064,256
2,384,675 2,956,678 5,341,353 1,004,362
666,289 664,889 1,331,178 50,126
891,552 29,567 921,119 58,275
- - - 2,378,982
- - - 1,734,455
1,085,678 20,437 1,106,115 100,629
- - - 1,735,847
- - - 1,525,200
3,932,706 - 3,932,706 -
7,020,058 61,864 7,081,922 3,374,539
490,157 60,402 550,559 668,741
635,346 57,220 692,566 36,800
23,620,993 8,784,748 32,405,741 28,722,610
9,757,032 1,350,509 11,107,541 4,162,662
- - - (173,419)
712,929 - 712,929 62,682
(11,327,216) - (11,327,216) (121,456)
(964,573) - (964,573) -
122,197 - 122,197 -
(11,456,663) - (11,456,663) (232,193)
(1,699,631) 1,350,509 (349,122) 3,930,469
1,078,380 - 1,078,380 4,091,482
- 555,427 555,427 1,062,000
(686,346) (1,854,103) (2,540,449) (538,256)
(1,307,597) 51,833 (1,255,764) 8,545,695
163,581,310 3,331,241 166,912,551 22,005,565
$ 162,273,713 $ 3,383,074 $ 165,656,787 $ 30,551,260
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EXHIBIT 7
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities —
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $32,660,395 $§ 9,783,178 $ 42,443,573  § 32,748,727
Payments to employees (6,043,950) (3,231,583) (9,275,533) (2,809,898)
Payments to suppliers (10,192,755) (5,083,392) (15,276,147) (21,088,006)
Net cash provided by operating activities 16,423,690 1,468,203 17,891,893 8,850,823
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds - 555,427 555,427 1,062,000
Transfers to other funds (686,346) (1,854,103) (2,540,449) (538,256)
Net cash used in noncapital financing
activities (686,346) (1,298,676) (1,985,022) 523,744
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (22,783,199) (92,521) (22,875,720) (6,199,974)
Proceeds from issuance of debt 82,623,377 - 82,623,377 -
Capital contributions - - - 4,091,482
Principal paid on capital debt (3,472,632) - (3,472,632) (1,165,210)
Refunding proceeds placed in escrow (17,347,221) - (17,347,221) -
Bond issuance costs (637,991) - (637,991) -
Interest paid on capital debt (11,569,552) - (11,569,552) (133,484)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities 26,812,782 (92,521) 26,720,261 (3,407,186)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Rental income 122,197 - 122,197 -
Interest received 712,929 - 712,929 62,682
Net cash provided by investing activities 835,126 - 835,126 62,682
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 43,385,252 77,006 43,462,258 6,030,063
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning, July 1, as restated (Note 17) 19,276,618 3,258,375 22,534,993 11,816,590
Ending, June 30 $62,661,870 $ 3,335,381 $ 65,997,251 $ 17,846,653
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,257,926 $ 3,335381 $ 6,593,307 $ 17,846,106
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 59,403,944 - 59,403,944 547
$62,661,870 $ 3,335,381 $ 65,997,251 $ 17,846,653
(Continued)
The Notes to Financial Statements are 12

an integral part of this statement.



RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net
Inventories
OPEB asset
Prepaids
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Unearned revenue
Claims payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Capital asset purchases financed by capital leases

Capital asset purchases financed by accounts payable
Non cash capital contributions

Capitalized interest

The Notes to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

NET CASH

13

EXHIBIT 7

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities —
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
$ 9,757,032 $ 1,350,509 § 11,107,541 $ 4,162,662
7,020,058 61,864 7,081,922 3,374,539
(707,836) (352,079) (1,059,915) (136,545)
(43,491) - (43,491) 12,289
5,273 1,400 6,673 2,146
- - - 9,698
435,177 318,579 753,756 (31,405)
(32,729) 87,930 55,201 (30,061)
(9,794) - (9,794) -

- - - 1,487,500
$16,423,690 § 1,468203 $ 17,891,893 § 8,850,823
$ 352,501 $ - $ 352,501 § 14,203
$ 1,313830 $ - $ 1,313,880 $ -
$ 1,078,380 $ - $ 1,078,380 $ -
$ 1,660,471 $ - $ 1,660,471 $ -



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT 8

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012
OPEB
Trust Agency
Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,110,974 $ 341,560
Total assets $ 14,110,974 $ 341,560
LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others $ - $ 341,560
Total liabilities - 341,560
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for OPEB benefits 14,110,974 -
Total net assets 14,110,974 -
Total liabilities and net assets $ 14,110974  $ 341,560
The Notes to Financial Statements are 14

an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT 9
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

OPEB TRUST FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2012
ADDITIONS
Employer contributions $ 1,525,200
Total additions 1,525,200
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative fees 16,135
Loss on investments 70,755
Total deductions 86,890
Change in net assets 1,438,310
NET ASSETS AT JULY 1 12,672,664
NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30 $ 14,110,974
The Notes to Financial Statements are 15

an integral part of this statement.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Suffolk, Virginia (the “City”) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
Significant accounting policies of the City are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

Primary Government — The City of Suffolk, Virginia was formed on January 1, 1974, by the merger
of the former Cities of Suffolk and Nansemond. The City of Nansemond was previously formed by
the merger of the County of Nansemond and the Towns of Whaleyville and Holland. The City is a
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia operating under the council-manager form
of government. The elected seven-member City Council, vested with the legislative powers,
appoints the City Manager who is the executive and administrative head of the City’s government.

The City provides a full range of services to include the following: public safety (police and fire),
education, community development (planning and zoning), water treatment and distribution,
sewage collection, refuse collection, maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure,
stormwater management, recreational activities including a golf course, cultural events, social
services, and library, among other services.

Discretely Presented Component Units — Discretely presented component units are entities that
are legally separate from the government, but for which the government is financially
accountable, or whose relationship with the government is such that exclusion would cause the
government’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. They are reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally
separate from the City.

City of Suffolk Public Schools

The City of Suffolk Public Schools (the “School Board”) is responsible for elementary and
secondary education within the City. The School Board is composed of seven members
popularly elected to a four-year term. The Schools are fiscally dependent upon the City
because the City Council approves the annual budget of the Schools, levies the necessary
taxes to finance operations and approves the borrowing of money and issuance of debt. The
School Board does not issue separate financial statements, as such, they have been included
in these statements.
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Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

City of Suffolk Public Schools

The School Board has one discretely presented component unit, the Pruden Center for
Industry and Technology (The Center). The Center is a vocational and technical center used
by both the Suffolk City Schools and the Isle of Wight County Schools to provide classes to
high school students and adults in various occupational trades. The Center is dependent upon
the Suffolk School Board for a majority of its funding. The Center is shown as a discretely
presented component unit as it is legally separate from the School Board. Separate audited
financial statements may be obtained from the Pruden Center by contacting the Pruden Center
for Industry and Technology, 4169 Pruden Blvd., Suffolk, Virginia 23434.

Economic Development Authority of the City of Suffolk

The Economic Development Authority of the City of Suffolk (the “EDA”) was established
under the Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act — Code of Virginia. A separate
board appointed by the City Council governs the EDA. The EDA is authorized to acquire,
own, lease and dispose of properties, and to conduct related activities to promote industry and
develop trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial, governmental, and commercial
enterprises to locate or to remain in the City. The City makes significant contributions to the
EDA relating to the property the EDA develops and markets. Separate audited financial
statements may be obtained from the EDA by contacting the Deputy Secretary/Treasurer,
City of Suffolk Economic Development Authority, P.O. Box 1858, Suffolk, Virginia 23439.

The following entities are excluded from the accompanying financial statements.

Jointly governed organizations:

Western Tidewater Water Authority

The Western Tidewater Water Authority (the “Water Authority”) was created
March 18, 1998, by the City and the Board of Supervisors of the County of Isle of Wight,
Virginia pursuant to the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act, Chapter 51, Title 15.2,
Code of Virginia. The Water Authority was formed for the purpose of acquiring, financing,
constructing, leasing, operating, and maintaining facilities for the production, impoundment,
treatment, and transmission of potable and non-potable water. The City is not obligated to
pay the principal or interest on notes or any other liabilities of the Authority and has no
financial interest in the Authority. Separate audited financial statements can be obtained by
contacting the Finance Director at the City of Suffolk at 441 Market Street, Suffolk, Virginia
23434.
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Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Jointly Governed Organizations: (Continued)

Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority

The Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority (the “Jail Authority”) was created as a
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia jointly through an agreement dated
November 1, 1989, among the Cities of Suffolk (59.3%) and Franklin (6.8%), and the County
of Isle of Wight (33.9%) (the member jurisdictions) under the Jail Authorities Act, Code of
the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Jail Authority has the responsibility to finance the
acquisition, construction, equipping, and maintenance of a regional jail facility to operate for
the benefit of the member jurisdictions.

Historically, notes issued by the Jail Authority are limited obligations payable solely from
revenues received from the member jurisdictions. The City has not been obligated to pay the
principal or interest on the notes or any other liabilities of the Jail Authority and has no
financial interest in the Authority beyond its initial contribution. However, during 2011, the
member jurisdictions pledged to pay its pro rata share of any debt service on the issuance of
the Authority’s 2011 bonds. Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the
Superintendent of the Jail Authority at 2402 Godwin Blvd., Suffolk, Virginia 23434.

Suffolk Redevelopment and Housing Authority

The Suffolk Redevelopment and Housing Authority (the “SRHA”) administers public
housing and redevelopment activities in the City. It applies, receives, and invests its own
funds and formulates and approves its own budget. City Council is responsible for appointing
members of the Board of SRHA, but the City’s accountability does not extend beyond
making such appointments. SRHA does not have a significant operational or financial
relationship with the City. Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the
Executive Director of SRHA at 530 E. Pinner Street, Suffolk, Virginia 23434,

Southeastern Public Service Authority of Virginia

The Southeastern Public Service Authority of Virginia (the “PSA”) is a special purpose
government entity engaged in business-type activities with no component units and was
created for Solid Waste Disposal. The members of the PSA are the cities of Chesapeake,
Franklin, Norfolk, Portsmouth, Suffolk, and Virginia Beach and the counties of Isle of Wight
and Southampton. Each member jurisdiction has agreed to deliver or cause to be delivered to
the PSA at least 95% of all disposable solid waste generated within, collected by, or
otherwise under the control of the contracting community.
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Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

Jointly Governed Organizations: (Continued)

Southeastern Public Service Authority of Virginia (Continued)

Upon executing a debt retirement plan, the Virginia Resources Authority (the “VRA”)
required the eight member jurisdictions to guarantee, by general obligation, repayment of the
remaining VRA bonds outstanding. The member jurisdiction guarantees percentages were
calculated based on a three year average of proportional municipal tonnages. The total debt
outstanding as of June 30, 2012 to the VRA was $32,700,000 and Suffolk’s guarantee
percentage was 12% which totaled $3,924,000.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement of
activities that report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

20



Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements, with the exception of agency fund financial statements, which have no
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental Fund Types:

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 45 days of the end of the current period.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and
receivables when billed, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes not
collected within 45 days after year-end are reflected as deferred revenues. Sales and utility taxes,
which are collected by the state or utilities and subsequently remitted to the City, are recognized
as revenues and receivables upon collection by the state or utility, which is generally one or two
months preceding receipt by the City. Licenses, permits, fines, and rents are recorded as revenues
when received. Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of federal, state, and other
grants for the purpose of funding specific expenditures, are recognized when earned or at the time
of the specific expenditure. Revenues from general-purpose grants are recognized in the period
to which the grant applies. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when the government receives cash.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this rule include: (1) accumulated unpaid vacation
leave, sick leave, and other employee amounts which are recorded as compensated absences and
other post-employment benefits, which are recognized when paid, and (2) principal and interest
payments on general long-term debt, both of which are recognized when due.

21



Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The City presents the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is primary operating fund of the City which accounts for all
financial resources not accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund — The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources that
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, except for those
financed by proprietary funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or
other governments.

Road Maintenance Fund — accounts for revenue and expenditures related to maintaining roads
city wide. Revenues are derived from the state and sale of service to other funds.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is used to account for financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest related costs as well as
the financial resources being accumulated for future debt service.

The City presents the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds — account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or
committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. These
funds consist of Suffolk Taxing District Fund, Downtown Business Overlay District Fund,
Consolidated Grants Fund, Law Library Fund, Route 17 Taxing District Fund, Mosquito Taxing
District Fund, Cemetery Fund, and the Aviation Fund.

Proprietary Fund Types:

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of
accounting where the measurement focus is upon determination of net income. Proprietary funds
consist of enterprise and internal service funds.

The City presents the following major enterprise fund:

Utility Fund — accounts for the provision of water and sewer services. All activities necessary to
provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration,
operation, maintenance, billing, collections, financing and related debt service and capital assets.
The City presents the following nonmajor enterprise funds:

Stormwater Utility Fund — accounts for the maintenance and improvements to the City’s

stormwater infrastructure. All activities necessary to provide such services are funded by charges
to citizens and are accounted for in this fund.
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Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Refuse Fund — accounts for the provision of refuse and waste management services. All activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to,
administration, operation, billing, and collections.

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Internal Service
Funds are included in governmental activities for government-wide reporting purposes. The
excess revenue or expenses of the funds are allocated to the appropriate functional activity.

The City has the following internal service funds:

Information Technology Fund — accounts for technology infrastructure and allocates costs to the
various departments or agencies using the service.

Fleet Management Fund — accounts for, on a cost-reimbursement basis, the financing of vehicles
and the related maintenance, repairs and fuel costs and allocates those costs to the various
departments or agencies using the equipment.

Risk Management Fund — accounts for the funding and payment of auto, personal liability,
general liability, health insurance, and workers’ compensation claims against the City exclusive
of the School Board employees. Charges to other funds are based on estimated claims for the
year.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Fiduciary Funds accounts for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other governments. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide
financial statements.

The City has the following fiduciary funds:

OPEB Trust Fund — accounts for activities related to other post-employment benefits (OPEB).
This fund accumulates resources for health insurance for retired employees.

Agency funds — custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
the results of operations. In addition to the City’s agency funds listed below, the Suffolk Public
School Combined School Activity Funds are also agency funds.

Special Welfare Fund — accounts for receipt of welfare checks and foster children support
checks from the state and payments made on behalf of individuals.

Commonwealth of Virginia Fund — accounts for monies collected by the City on behalf of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

Western Tidewater Water Authority — accounts for monies held by the City as an agent for
the private organization.
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Note 1.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s
proprietary funds and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes
and contributions not restricted to specific programs, and other revenues not meeting the
definition of program revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the utility fund, stormwater utility fund, refuse fund, and internal
service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting the operating
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

The provisions of the Code of Virginia shall control the preparation, consideration, adoption, and
execution of the budget of the City. The City Charter requires the budget to be balanced with
planned expenditures equal to revenue estimates. The City will prepare and annually update a
long range (5 year) financial forecast model utilizing trend indicators and projections of annual
operating revenues, expenditures, capital improvements, and related debt service and operating
costs as well as fund balance levels. The City Manager through the Budget and Finance
Department will exercise appropriate fiscal management as necessary to live within the limits of
the adopted budget.

Budgeting Information

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic
financial statements:

o At least 60 days prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

o The budget is formulated from estimates of revenues and expected expenditures from
cach department. The School Board is treated as a single expenditure line item.

e The City Manager submits the proposed budget to City Council, and recommends an
appropriation ordinance and an ordinance levying the tax rates for the ensuing year.

24



Note 1.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D.

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued)

Budgeting Information (Continued)

e City Council then holds public hearings on the proposed budget. Notice of such public
hearing must appear in a local newspaper not less than seven days prior to the hearing.

o The budget must be approved by a majority vote of City Council and legally adopted
before July 1. If City Council does not adopt the proposed budget before July 1, the
budget as submitted is automatically adopted.

e Additional appropriations may be made by City Council only if there is an unencumbered
fund balance or additional funding becomes available.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device. Annual operating
budgets are adopted by ordinance passed by City Council for the General Fund, the Debt
Service Fund, the Utility Fund, Stormwater Utility Fund, Refuse Fund, the Internal Service
Funds, and the following Special Revenue Funds: Aviation, Route 17 Tax District,
Downtown Business Overlay District, Road Maintenance, and Law Library. Annual
operating budgets are also adopted for the School Operating, School Food Service, and
School Grants funds.

Budgets for proprietary fund types are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The
General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds’ budgets are adopted on the modified
accrual basis.

Beginning fund balances for budgetary basis presentation purposes are adjusted for the carry-
forward or prior year encumbrances. According to City Code, unexpended and unencumbered
appropriations lapse at June 30 of each year. Appropriations that are encumbered or assigned
by City Council at June 30 are carried forward into the following year’s appropriations to
allow for liquidation of the encumbrances or to complete a project.

Individual grants and projects included in the Consolidated Grants Fund and Capital Projects
Fund are budgeted separate from the operating budget. These appropriations do not parallel
the City’s fiscal year and the accounting, encumbering, and controlling of the funds are based
upon the length of each individual grant or project, which may be more than one year.

Financial Policies

The City’s Finance Committee has been established by Council to implement and establish
various financial policies. The Committee meets on a monthly basis to manage and review
financial activities and to insure compliance with the established policies. Members of the
Committee include those individuals stipulated by ordinance adopted by City Council. It is the
City’s policy to fund current expenditures with current revenues and the City’s mission is to
strive to maintain a diversified and stable revenue stream to protect the government from
problematic fluctuations in any single revenue source and provide stability to ongoing services.
The City’s unassigned General Fund balance will be maintained to provide the City with
sufficient working capital and a margin of safety to address local and regional emergencies
without borrowing.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, money market funds, certificates of deposit, and
investments with maturities of three months or less.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Interest income on investments is allocated to the
appropriate funds based upon the average monthly cash balance of each fund. Interest income is
accrued as earned.

Receivables

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts calculated by management
using historical collection data, specific account analysis, and management’s judgment.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of materials and supplies and fuel are recorded at cost. The cost of inventory is
recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed (consumption
method) on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories held by the Economic Development Authority
consist of land and improvements held for sale and are valued at the lower of cost or market.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the governmental funds and as assets in the
proprietary funds and the government-wide financial statements to the extent the City’s
capitalization threshold is met.

Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure capital outlays are recorded as capital assets and
depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis in both the fund’s and the
government-wide statements. Interest expense is capitalized on proprietary fund type assets. The
amount of interest expense capitalized is offset by interest income earned on invested proceeds.
Interest capitalized during 2012 totaled $1,660,471.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I.

Capital Assets (Continued)

The City’s capitalization policy threshold is $5,000. All capital assets are valued at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if actual cost was not available. Donated assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date donated. Assets acquired under capital leases are
capitalized at the net present value of all lease payments, and related amortization expense is
included with depreciation expense.

The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 15-75 years
Machinery and equipment 3-50 years

Maintenance, repairs, and minor equipment are charged to operations when incurred.
Expenditures that materially change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or
retirement of land, buildings, and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if
applicable, are eliminated from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included
in the results of operations.

Capital assets having historical significance and that are being maintained by the City are not
expected to decrease in value and, therefore, are not depreciated.

Deferred/Unearned Revenue

Deferred revenue in the governmental fund types consists of revenues that are measurable but not
available for use during the current period. Property taxes receivable at June 30 but not collected
within 45 days after that date are reported as deferred revenue in the financial statements.
Unearned revenues consist of amounts prepaid and not yet earned, such as property taxes
collected prior to their due date. Unearned revenue in the government-wide statements also
consist of lease payments credited for future years relating to certified capital improvements at
the golf course.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

K. Compensated Absences

City and School Board employees are granted vacation and sick pay in varying amounts based on
years of service. Employees may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation and
sick pay earned and, upon retirement, termination, or death, may be compensated for certain
amounts at specified rates. The cost of accumulated vacation and sick pay expected to be paid
from future expendable resources is accounted for as a liability in the government-wide
statements and proprietary fund statements.

For governmental fund types, the amount of accumulated unpaid vacation leave which is payable
from available resources is recorded as a liability of the respective fund only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee retirement or resignation. For City proprietary
funds, the cost of vacation and sick leave is recorded as a liability when earned.

. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt, and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

. Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources in the governmental funds:

Nonspendable fund balance — Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form, or, for legal or contractual reasons, must be kept intact. This
classification includes inventories, prepaid amounts, assets held for sale, and long-term
receivables.

Restricted fund balance — Restricted funds are either externally imposed (such as debt
covenants, grantor, contributors or other governments) or are imposed by law
(constitutionally or enabling legislation).

Committed fund balance — The City’s Committed Funds include amounts that can only be
used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the highest
level of decision making authority — City Council. Formal Council action includes the annual
adoption of the City’s Budget Ordinance/Resolution, Council Resolutions appropriating
funds and/or resources, and Budget Amendments to carry forward appropriations that were
unexpended at fiscal year end.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

M. Fund Balance (Continued)

Assigned fund balance — Amounts that are constrained by the City’s expressed intent to use
resources for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed. Intent can be stipulated by the governing body, another body (such as the Finance
Committee), or by the City Manager. With the exception of the General Fund, this is the
residual fund balance of the classification for all governmental funds with positive balances.

Unassigned fund balance — This is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the
General Fund can report a positive “unassigned fund balance”. Other governmental funds
might report a negative balance in this classification.

General fund unassigned fund balance target — The ratio of Unassigned General Fund balance
as a percentage of Budgeted Governmental Funds Expenditures (net of the General Fund
Contribution to Schools, transfer to other Governmental Funds, and Capital Projects Fund
Expenditures) plus budgeted expenditures in the School Operating and Food Service Funds
indicates the ability of the City to cope with unexpected financial problems or emergencies.
The larger the Unassigned General Fund balance, the greater the City’s ability to cope with
financial emergencies and fluctuations in revenue cycles. The City has established a target
rate of 12% at the close of each fiscal year as computed on the upcoming budget year.

Once the Unassigned General Fund Balance target is achieved by the City, it is intended to be
maintained for the upcoming fiscal year from prior year surpluses and budgeted additions as
available before any other needs are addressed. In the event Unassigned Fund Balance is
required to be drawn below the 12% target rate due to an emergency (such as a natural
disaster) or due to severe economic circumstances, the City will develop a plan to restore the
Unassigned Fund Balance over the ensuing two to three years.

The City considers restricted fund balance to be spent when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available unless prohibited
by legal documents or contracts. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the City considers committed fund
balance to be spent first, then assigned fund balance, and lastly unassigned fund balance.

The School Board currently does not have a policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or unrestricted resources when an expenditure is incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

N. Net Assets

Net assets in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements represent the difference
between assets and liabilities and are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
restricted, and unrestricted. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets
invested in capital assets, net of related debt excludes unspent debt proceeds. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling
legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or
laws or regulations of other governments and can be offset by related debt and other payables.

. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures/expenses, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities for the reported periods. Actual results could differ
from those estimates and assumptions.

Component Unit-School Board Capital Asset and Debt Presentation

By law, the School Board does not have taxing authority and, therefore, it cannot incur debt
through general obligation bonds to fund the acquisition, construction, or improvement of its
capital assets. That responsibility lies with the City who issues the debt on behalf of the School
Board. However, the Code of Virginia requires the School Board to hold title to the capital assets
(buildings and equipment) due to their responsibility for maintaining the assets.

In the Statement of Net Assets, this scenario presents a dilemma for the City. Debt issued on
behalf of the School Board is reported as a liability of the primary government, thereby reducing
the net assets of the City. The corresponding capital assets are reported as assets of the
Component Unit-School Board (title holder), thereby increasing its net assets.

The Virginia General Assembly amended the Code of Virginia to allow a tenancy in common
with the School Board whenever the locality incurs a financial obligation which is payable over
more than one fiscal year for any school property. The tenancy in common terminates when the
associated debt has been paid in full. For financial reporting purposes, the legislation permits the
locality to report the portion of the school property related to any outstanding financial obligation,
thus eliminating a potential deficit from financing capital assets with debt.
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Deposits and Investments

Deposits

Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and
collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”) Section
2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding
public deposits in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the
Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. Financial institutions may choose between two
collateralization methodologies and depending upon that choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in
the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly, all deposits are considered fully
collateralized.

Investments

The City’s investments are subject to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk as
described below. The City’s investments are not subject to custodial risk or foreign currency risk.

Credit Risk

Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof,
obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank,
the African Development Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper and certain corporate notes,
bankers acceptances, repurchase agreements, the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment
Pool (LGIP), and the State Non-Arbitrage Program (SNAP). The City’s policy emphasizes the use of
securities of high credit quality and marketability, and follows state statute, but does not specify
minimum credit ratings.

Interest Rate Risk

The City Treasurer’s policy states that the investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market
rate of return, taking into account investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. The portfolio shall
be structured so that securities mature concurrent with estimated cash needs and remain sufficiently
liquid to meet anticipated operating requirements. Investments of current operating funds shall have
maturities of no longer than 24 months.

Interest rate risk does not apply to the State Non-Arbritrage Program pooled investments.
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Note 2. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

External Investment Pool

The State Non-Arbitrage Pool (SNAP) is an open-end management investment company registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The fair value of the positions in the SNAP is
the same as the value of the pool shares.

Concentration of Credit Risk

100% of the City’s investments at June 30 were with SNAP. These investments were not considered
by management to represent a risk to the City.

Restricted Cash

The City has restricted cash as follows:

Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government

Unspent debt proceeds $ 9,609,804 $ 59,371,117  $ 68,980,921

Debt service 392,725 - 392,725

Cemetery 1,139,532 - 1,139,532

Bridge repair 2,669,183 - 2,669,183
Escrow/bond/customer

deposits 732,429 32,827 765,256

Other external purposes 1,810,897 - 1,810,897

Total $ 16,354,570 $ 59,403,944 $ 75,758,514

Component Units

Economic
Primary Development
Government School Board Authority
Deposits and investments:
SNAP $ 94,386,755 $ - $ -
Deposits 103,827,018 15,960,705 4,204,540
$ 198,213,773 15,960,705 $ 4,204,540
Statement of net assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 122,455,259 $ 15,960,705 $ 2,895,343
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 75,758,514 - 1,309,197

§ 198,213,773 § 15,960,705 $ 4,204,540
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Receivables

Receivables are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Nonmajor Internal Component
Road Governmental Service Business-type Unit -
General Maintenance Funds Funds Total Activities School Board
Taxes $ 6,085,719 § - $ 59210 $ - $ 6144929 § - $ -
Accounts 5,781,904 154,132 105,752 157,716 6,199,504 6,655,632 201,301
Subtotal 11,867,623 154,132 164,962 157,716 12,344,433 6,655,632 201,301
Less allowance (4,351,623) - (23,151) - (4,374,774) (357,993)

Receivables, net $ 7,516,000 § 154,132 § 141811 § 157,716 § 7,969,659 § 6,297,639 § 201,301

Allowances for Uncollectible Accounts

The City calculates its allowances for uncollectible receivables using historical collection data.
The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following
allowances for doubtful accounts:

Governmental Business-type

Activity Activities
General Fund — Taxes receivable $ 2475103 $ -
General Fund — EMS receivabe 1,876,520 -
Nonmajor Funds — Taxes receivable 23,151 -
Utility Fund — Accounts receivable - 310,514
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds — Fees receivable - 47,479

$ 4,374,774 $ 357,993

Property Taxes — Property taxes are levied as of January 1 for personal property and as of July 1
for real estate, based on the assessed value the related property as of the date. The City’s legal
right to collect property taxes attaches each year when the rates are approved and the taxes are
assessed. Real estate taxes are collectible twice a year, on June 5 and December 5. Personal
property taxes are due on December 5. Amounts not collected within 45 days after year-end are

reflected as deferred revenue. A lien is created on real property three years from the original due
date.
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Note 4. Due From Other Governments

Due from other governments in the fund statements are as follows:

Primary Government:

Nonmajor
Capital Governmental
Governmental Activities General Projects Funds Total
Commonwealth of Virginia:
State sales tax $ 1,378,804 §$ - $ - $ 1,378,804
Communication sales tax 610,654 - - 610,654
Shared expenses 265,521 - - 265,521
Social services reimbursement 249,013 - - 249,013
Various grants 6,353 334,877 246,836 588,066
2,510,345 334,877 246,836 3,092,058
Federal Government:
Disaster grants — public assistance - - 807,419 807,419
Social services reimbursement 388,126 - - 388,126
Department of Transportation - 1,796,575 - 1,796,575
Various grants - 10,223 332,218 342,441
388,126 1,806,798 1,139,637 3,334,561
Total due from other governments $ 2,898,471 § 2,141,675 $ 1,386,473 $ 6,426,619
Component Unit — School Board:
School
School School Food
Governmental Activities Operating Grants Service Total
Commonwealth of Virginia:
State sales tax $ 2,421,449 $ - $ - $ 2,421,449
Various grants 298,595 125,617 - 424212
2,720,044 125,617 - 2,845,661
Federal Government:
School food reimbursement - - 652,659 652,659
Title I - 1,040,611 - 1,040,611
Title VI-B - 700,082 - 700,082
Education Jobs Grant - 416,740 - 416,740
Various grants 62,089 122,376 - 184,465
62,089 2,279,809 652,659 2,994,557
Total due from other governments $ 2,782,133 § 2405426 $ 652,659 $ 5,840,218
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Note 5. Interfund Transactions

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances are as follows:

Due To Due From
General fund $ 341,681  $ 1,378,100
Nonmajor governmental funds:
Consolidated Grants fund 1,378,100 341,681

$ 1,719,781  $ 1,719,781

The primary purpose of the interfund balance between the Consolidated Grants fund and the General
fund is for advances to cover grant receivables from other governments to be reimbursed in
subsequent fiscal year.

Interfund Transfers:

Transfers to:

General Capital Debt Nonmajor Enterprise Internal Total
Fund Projects Service Governmental Funds Service
Transfers from:

General Fund $ - $3,467,790 $23,716,959 $ 482,253 $ 555,427 $ - $28,222,429
Road Maintenance 548,942 128,000 - - - 974,000 1,650,942
Utility 686,346 - - - - 686,346
Nonmajor:

Governmental 53,027 348,584 1,103,938 - - - 1,505,549

Enterprise 242,603 1,523,500 - - - 88,000 1,854,103
Internal Service 538,256 - - - - - 538,256

$2,069,174 $5,467,874 $24,820,897 $ 482,253 $ 555,427 $1,062,000 $34,457,625

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the funds that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the funds that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected
in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgeting authorization.
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Transactions Between Primary Government and Component Units

Significant Transactions of the City and Component Unit — School Board

Certain transactions between the City and School Board are explained here in detail to provide a more
informed understanding of the operational relationship of the two entities and how such transactions
are presented in the financial statements.

L.

The School Board can neither levy taxes nor incur debt under Virginia law. Therefore, the City
issues debt “on behalf” of the School Board. The debt obligation is recorded as a liability of the
City. The proceeds from the debt issued “on behalf” of the School Board are recorded in the
City’s General Fund. This fund then accounts for capital expenditures relating to major school
construction projects.

Debt service payments for school bonded debt are reported as part of the City in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Fund.

If all economic resources associated with school activities were reported with the School Board,
its total expenditures would be as follows:

Expenditures of School Board — Component Unit (Exhibit 26) $ 141,942,983
Repayment of School debt 11,072,237
Total expenditures for school activities $ 153,015,220

Significant Transactions of the City and Component Unit — Economic Development Authority

The City provides personnel and office space to the EDA at no charge.
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Capital Assets

The following is a summary of governmental activities capital asset activity.

Capital assets, not depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not depreciated

Capital assets, depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, depreciated, net
Governmental activities, capital

assets, net
*As restated, see Note 17.

Beginning Ending
Balance* Increases Decreases Balance
$ 24,671,517 $§ 3,549,411 $ - $ 28,220,928
57,314,657 14,023,584 25,662,965 45,675,276
81,986,174 17,572,995 25,662,965 73,896,204
54,460,326 12,426,397 - 66,886,723
355,345,526 24,462,284 - 379,807,810
16,800,814 1,713,343 - 18,514,157
58,565,302 6,714,758 1,209,370 64,070,690
485,171,968 45,316,782 1,209,370 529,279,380
16,337,568 2,069,598 - 18,407,166
59,811,509 7,198,322 - 67,009,831
4,496,140 6,257,529 - 10,753,669
38,541,666 3,939,101 832,481 41,648,286
119,186,883 19,464,550 832,481 137,818,952
365,985,085 25,852,232 376,889 391,460,428

$447,971,259 § 43,425,227 $ 26,039,854 $465,356,632

37



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 7. Capital Assets (Continued)

The following is a summary of Business-type Activities capital asset activity:

Capital assets, not depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, depreciated
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, depreciated, net
Business-type activities, capital
assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance* Increases Decreases Balance
$ 3,432374 $ 1,957,392 $ - $ 5,389,766
69,550,945 23,825,551 12,729,780 80,646,716
72,983,319 25,782,943 12,729,780 86,036,482
59,372,838 4,728,244 - 64,101,082
248,982,152 4,337,638 - 253,319,790
68,689,100 3,238,018 - 71,927,118
377,044,090 12,303,900 - 389,347,990
11,011,750 2,368,592 - 13,380,342
57,366,962 3,413,703 - 60,780,665
23,813,944 1,299,627 - 25,113,571
92,192,656 7,081,922 - 99,274,578
284,851,434 5,221,978 - 290,073,412

$357,834,753 $ 31,004,921 §

12,729,780 $376,109,894

The following is a summary of Component Unit — School Board capital asset activity:

Capital assets, not depreciated
Land
Building improvements (in process)
Total capital assets,
Not depreciated
Capital assets, depreciated
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, depreciated, net
Governmental activities, capital
assets, net
*As restated, see Note 17.

(Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance* Increases Decreases Balance
$ 5,878,723 §$ 564,000 $ 26,200 $ 6,416,523

- 665,735 - 665,735
5,878,723 1,229,735 26,200 7,082,258
184,223,716 5,200 609,876 183,619,040
16,708,657 - 32,900 16,675,757
35,933,056 3,123,428 3,396,262 35,660,222
236,865,429 3,128,628 4,039,038 235,955,019
69,599,290 4,775,360 504,085 73,870,565
8,565,956 542,406 32,900 9,075,462
22,982,964 2,718,306 3,341,235 22,360,035
101,148,210 8,036,072 3,878,220 105,306,062
135,717,219 (4,907,444) 160,818 130,648,957

$141,595,942 $ (3,677,709) $

187,018 $137,731,215
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Capital Assets (Continued)

The following is a summary of depreciation expense charged to various functions/funds:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Parks, recreation, and cultural

$

670,755
16,523

637,084

17,485,221

654,967

$

19,464,550

Governmental activities included depreciation of $3,370,269 for the Fleet Maintenance Fund and
$4,270 for Information Technology Fund.

Deferred and Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities in the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not year earned. At
year end, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue in the governmental
funds were as follows:

Deferred Unearned

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes and other amounts — unearned $ 730,383 $ 730,383
Developer deposits — unearned (General) 120,908 120,908
Developer deposits — unearned (Road maintenance) 870,471 870,471
Deferred capital project revenue — unavailable 90,000 -
Grant receipts — unearned 214,055 214,055
Taxes receivable, net — unavailable 2,394,883 -
EMS receivable, net — unavailable 1,943,989 -
Golf-course lease revenue — unearned - 2,369,288

Total deferred/unearned revenue — governmental funds $ 6,364,689 $§ 4,305,105

Unearned revenue in the utility fund represents payments that will be recognized as the City provides
services to the Western Tidewater Water Authority.
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Note 9. Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance* Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:
General obligation debt $ 188,870,956 $ 44,545,000 $§ 27,919,626 $ 205,496,330 §$§ 14,924,376

Literary fund loans 4,750,000 - 500,000 4,250,000 500,000
Section 108 loan 3,073,000 - 193,000 2,880,000 193,000
Capital lease obligations 5,473,851 985,484 2,069,142 4,390,193 1,775,387
Add bond premiums
and other credits 6,723,712 3,271,866 924,437 9,071,141 -
Less deferred costs (2,321,940) (607,138) (288,298) (2,640,780) -
206,569,579 48,195212 31,317,907 223,446,884 17,392,763
Claims payable 2,270,279 9,867,866 8,380,366 3,757,779 1,694,614
Compensated absences 4,543,614 331,095 576,142 4,298,567 234,482
Landfill liability 1,685,358 560,954 152,182 2,094,130 250,717
Governmental
activities, long-term
liabilities $ 215,068,830 $ 58,955,127 § 40,426,597 $ 233,597,360 $§ 19,572,576

Business-type activities:

Bonds payable $206,823.425 $ 77,530,000 $§ 18,889,755 $ 265,463,670 $ 2,500,624
Capital lease obligations 2,703,939 352,501 337,877 2,718,563 358,754
Add bond premiums
and other credits 2,674,896 3,635,178 318,016 5,992,058 -
212,202,260 81,517,679 19,545,648 274,174,291 2,859,378
Compensated absences 447,997 75,093 14,711 508,379 34,591
Total $212,650,257 $ 81,592,772 $ 19,560,359 $ 274,682,670 $ 2,893,969

*As restated, see Note 17.

(Continued) 40



Note 9.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

June 30, 2012

Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Details of long-term indebtedness are as follows:

Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds:

Public Improvement Series 2002

Public Improvement Series 2003

2003 Refunding Bonds

2003 VRA Refunding Bonds

Public Improvement Series 2004

Public Improvement Series 2005

2005 Refunding Bonds

2007 Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

2007B Public Improvement Bonds

2008 Public Improvement Bonds

2009 Series (Taxable — Build
America Bonds)

2010A Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

2011 Public Improvement Bonds

2011 Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

2011 VPSA Local School Bond

Total general obligation bonds
Literary Fund Loans:

Literary Fund Loan
Literary Fund Loan

Total literary fund loans

Other Notes:
Section 108 Loan Payable

(Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Issue Final Interest Authorized  Governmental Business-Type
Date Maturity Rate and Issued Activities Activities
07/18/02  06/30/23 3.00-5.00 $ 18,195,000 § 1,030,000 § -
07/01/03 ~ 08/01/23  2.50 - 6.00 17,515,000 5,700,000 -
07/16/03  08/01/16  2.50 — 6.00 21,380,000 1,844,325 330,675
08/07/03  10/01/16 2.00—5.00 3,295,000 - 1,355,000
07/28/04  06/30/25 2.50-6.00 18,160,000 8,810,000 -
11/17/05  12/01/25 4.00-5.00 11,710,000 8,190,000 -
11/17/05  12/01/19 4.00 - 5.00 10,005,000 7,564,733 20,267
04/11/07 ~ 02/01/35 4.00-4.50 88,245,000 69,669,149 50,851
12/01/07  12/01/27 4.00 —5.00 24,475,000 19,575,000 -
10/28/08  02/01/29 4.00 —5.00 16,600,000 8,300,000 -
11/10/09  02/01/40 3.87 27,000,000 - 27,000,000
04/29/10  08/01/32 3.38 34,155,000 32,575,000 -
07/07/11 ~ 02/01/41  2.00 - 5.00 84,510,000 23,265,000 61,245,000
07/07/11  02/01/27 2.00-5.00 30,065,000 11,473,123 16,931,877
12/15/11  06/30/31 497 7,500,000 7,500,000 -
205,496,330 106,933,670
12/01/99  12/01/19 3.00 5,000,000 2,000,000 -
04/01/01  04/01/21 3.00 5,000,000 2,250,000 -
4,250,000 -
09/14/06  08/01/26 4.96 -5.77 3,845,000 2,880,000 -
$ 212,626,330 $ 106,933,670
41



Note 9.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Details of long-term indebtedness are as follows: (Continued)

Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities
Capital Lease Obligations:
$495,043 issued September 24, 2010 for the purchase of a time and attendance system;
payable in monthly installments of $13,751 through November 2012 $ 47,137 $ -
$4,833,129 issued for the purchase of generators; payable in monthly installments
through June 2022 1,116,423 2,718,563
$5,412,300 issued November 10, 2008 for the purchase of 28 public safety vehicles;
payable in quarterly installments of $299,170 through November 2013; interest at
3.90% 1,735,323 -
$1,324,956 issued November 23, 2010 for the purchase of a lighting project and
various vehicles and equipment; payable in quarterly installments of $70,284 through
November 23, 2015; interest at 2.28% 943,160 -
$606,000 issued November 18, 2011 for the purchase of various vehicles and
equipment; payable in quarterly installments of $31,957 through November 18, 2016;
interest at 2.05% 548,150 -
Total capital lease obligations $ 4,390,193 § 2,718,563
Issue Final Interest Authorized  Business-Type
Date Maturity Rate And Issued Activities
Bonds Payable:
Pledged Revenue Bonds:
2003 Series Water and Sewer Revenue
Bond — VRA 12/04/03 10/01/33 2.10-5.10 $ 11,725,000 $ 8,530,000
2004B Series Water and Sewer Revenue
Bond — VRA 11/17/04 10/01/26 2.00-6.00 11,695,000 9,345,000
2005B Series Water and Sewer Revenue
Bond — VRA 12/07/05 10/01/35 4.77-5.10 14,050,000 10,910,000
2006B VRA Refunding Bonds 08/09/06 04/01/30 4.10-4.87 12,750,000 11,705,000
2006C Series Water and Sewer Revenue
Bond - VRA 11/29/06 10/01/36 4.26-4.91 36,460,000 30,200,000
2007 Series Water and Sewer
Revenue Bond — VRA 12/13/07 10/01/37 3.40-5.10 39,795,000 34,460,000
2008 Series Water and Sewer
Revenue Bond — VRA 12/10/08 10/01/38 2.29-5.54 45,300,000 39,270,000
2009 Series Water and Sewer
Revenue Bond — VRA 06/17/09 10/01/25 1.13-4.86 10,200,000 9,190,000
2010 VRA Refunding Bonds (VPFP) 06/16/10 04/01/31 4.52 4,945,000 4,920,000
Total long-term debt $ 158,530,000
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Amortization requirements for governmental activities:

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt and related interest are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year General Literary Section 108 Capital Lease
Ending Obligation Bonds Fund Loans Loan Payable Obligations
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $ 14924376 § 9,015,074 $ 500,000 $ 127,500 § 193,000 § 150,707 § 1,775,387 § 80,672

2014 15,331,016 8,386,875 500,000 112,500 193,000 140,979 1,164,296 26,803
2015 14,522,462 7,777,991 500,000 97,500 193,000 131,214 577,299 12,527
2016 14,647,462 7,176,731 500,000 82,500 193,000 121,410 402,795 4,098
2017 14,120,428 6,542,392 500,000 67,500 193,000 111,567 160,540 488
2018-2022 61,110,586 23,490,733 1,750,000 120,000 965,000 403,182 309,876 -
2023-2027 46,915,000 11,938,627 - - 950,000 134,303 -
2028-2032 20,635,000 3,699,056 - -
2033-2035 3,290,000 283,425

$ 205496330 § 78310904 § 4,250,000 $§ 607,500 § 2,880,000 $§ 1,193,362 $§ 4,390,193 § 124,588

Business-Type Activities

General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Capital Lease Obligations

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 1,095,624 $ 5,191,377 $ 1,405,000 $ 7,715,494 § 358,754 $ -
2014 993,984 5,152,609 1,455,000 7,665,308 356,853 -
2015 902,538 5,115,897 1,505,000 7,609,600 349,889 -
2016 1,432,538 5,078,584 2,160,000 7,533,162 342,733 -
2017 1,734,572 5,013,870 2,630,000 7,432,007 338,781 -
2018-2022 18,477,535 23,204,087 28,980,000 33,697,006 971,553 -
2023-2027 23,431,879 22,002,582 36,480,000 25,959,276 - -
2028-2032 17,290,000 13,894,183 38,415,000 16,410,126 - -
2033-2038 21,765,000 8,816,580 37,380,000 6,819,452 - -
2039-2041 19,810,000 2,525,700 8,120,000 360,463 - -

$ 106,933,670 § 95,995,469 § 158,530,000 § 121,201,894 § 2,718,563 § -

The Governmental Activities Capital lease obligations are collateralized by equipment with a book
value of $4,390,193, which is net of accumulated depreciation of $5,016,156 at June 30, 2012.

The Business-Type Activities Capital lease obligations are collateralized by equipment with a book
value of $2,718,563, which is net of accumulated depreciation of $390,858 at June 30, 2012.

(Continued) 43



Note 9.

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Pledged-Revenue Bond Restrictions:

Due to the master trust indenture, the revenue covenant has been met for the pledged-revenue bonds.
Net revenues are required to be no less than the greater of (i) the sum of 1.5 times senior debt service
and 1.0 times subordinated debt service for the fiscal year or (ii) net revenues are not less than 1.0 times
the funding requirements for transfers from the revenue fund to the bond fund, the parity debt service
fund, the debt service reserve fund, the subordinate debt service fund, the repair and replacement reserve
fund, and the rate stabilization fund. As shown in the statistical Table 14, the debt coverage ratio for the
year ended June 30 was 36.3%. Furthermore, there has been no occurrence of any condition or event
which constitutes, or which, with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute an event of default
within the terms of the master trust indenture.

General Obligation Bonds and the Legal Debt Limit:

General Fund revenues are used to pay all general long-term liabilities. The City retains the liability
for the portion of general obligation bonds issued to fund capital projects of the School Board.

The General Fund has a contingent liability for repayment of the general obligation bonds outstanding
in the Enterprise Fund, from which repayment is anticipated, should the Enterprise Fund be unable to
do so.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

The Commonwealth of Virginia imposes a legal limit of 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable real
property on the amount of general obligation borrowing which may be outstanding by the City. The
City of Suffolk has independently set a lower debt limit of 7%, further reduced by financial policy in
2010 to 4% of the assessed valuation. As of June 30, 2012, the City’s aggregate general obligation
indebtedness is approximately $561.0 million less than the Commonwealth’s limit and $296.8 million
less than the City’s financial policy, as summarized in statistical Table 14.

School Board Long-Term Liabilities:

Following is a summary of changes in noncurrent liabilities of the School Board and its component
unit for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Other post-employment
benefits $ 1,350,927 $ 2,315,635 § 1,883,643 § 1,782,919 $ -
Compensated absences 2,130,468 - 108,819 2,021,649 84,669
$ 3,481,395 $ 2,315,635 $ 1,992,462 $ 3,804,568 $ 84,669
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Current Year Refunding of Debt

In July 2011, the City issued $30,065,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
ranging between 2%-5%. These bonds were issued to refund approximately $29,530,000 in
outstanding bonds including bond issuances in 2001, and partial refunding of bonds issued in 2003,
2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. The net proceeds of the refunding were $32,268,326 (including
$2,203,326 in bond premium and $228,730 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs). The
liability for the refunded bonds has been replaced with the liability from new debt with the difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt totaling $2,065,336 and is
being deferred and amortized over the life of the defeased debt in proportion to the stated interest due
on the new debt. Approximately $23,095,000 remains outstanding at June 30, 2012 related to the
partially defeased bonds described above.

The City refunded these bonds to extend the maturity its total debt service over an additional 7 years,
which increased the overall debt service by $5,531,959. 1In addition, this resulted in an economic loss
(the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of
$362,731.

Prior Year Defeasances:

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds of
new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
City’s financial statements. At June 30, 2012, $86,271,250 of bonds outstanding were considered
defeased.

Bonds Authorized and Unissued:

Bonded debt authorized by City Council in previous years but unissued as of June 30, 2012, totals
$51,910,739.

Landfill Postclosure Care Costs:

The City closed its former landfill site in 1984 and completed initial closure measures in 1995. In
accordance with federal and state laws, the City placed a final cover on this site and was required to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions for a minimum of ten years after closure. In
2011, the City reevaluated the estimate and determined that the monitoring period could extend for
another ten years, through 2021.

The estimated liability is based on the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)
accepting the active remedy proposed by the City as discussed. If the DEQ does not accept the active
remedy, the actual costs may change. Also, actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in
technology, changes in regulations, or other unforeseen circumstances. The cumulative amount of
estimated postclosure care costs, and corrective action to date for this site, less cash paid for such
costs to date, totals $2,094,130. This amount is included in the long-term liabilities in the primary
government.

The City uses the bond method test of demonstrating assurance for postclosure care.
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Leases
Lessor:

On October 27, 2009, the City entered into an operating lease whereby the City leased the Sleepy
Hole Golf Course to a private operator. The lease was amended on May 1, 2010 and the term of the
lease ends on April 30, 2030. The agreement requires annual lease payments to the City of $356,000.
This amount is reduced by certified annual capital costs made by the operator to enhance the integrity
of the golf course facility. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the operator made certified capital
improvements of $1.7 million. These costs have been capitalized by the City and amounts exceeding
last year’s lease payment, of approximately $1.4 million, have been recorded as unearned lease
revenue.

Lessee:
The City also leases various equipment and facilities through operating leases which are subject to
appropriation annually. Rent expense for governmental and business-type activities was $971,784 and

$550,559 respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows:

2013 $ 978,494
2014 987,204
$ 1,965,698
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan

A.

Plan Description

The City contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System
(the “System”).

All full-time salaried permanent employees must participate in the VRS. Members earn one
month of service credit for each month they are employed and their employer is paying into the
VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior public service, active duty military service, certain
periods of leave and previously refunded VRS service as credit in their plan.

VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local government employees — Plan 1 and Plan 2:

Members hired before July 1, 2010 and who have service credits before July 1, 2010 are
covered under Plan 1. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced
retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least five years of service credit or age 50
with at least 30 years of service credit. They may retire with a reduced benefit early at
age 55 with at least five years of service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service
credit.

Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits
before July 1, 2010 are covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible
for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with
at least five years of service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90.
They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of
service credit.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

A.

Plan Description (Continued)

e Eligible hazardous duty members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible for an unreduced
benefit beginning at age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least
25 years of service credit. These members include sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and
hazardous duty employees of political subdivisions that have elected to provide
enhanced coverage for hazardous duty service. They may retire with a reduced benefit
as early as age 50 with at least 5 years of service credit. All other provisions of the
member’s plan apply.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a
percentage of the member’s average final compensation multiplied by the member’s total service
credit. Under Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the member’s 36 consecutive
months of highest compensation. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the
member’s 60 consecutive months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-
hazardous duty members is 1.70%. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents is 1.85%. The retirement multiplier for eligible political subdivision hazardous
duty employees other than sheriffs and jail superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the
employer. At retirement, members can elect the Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial
Lump-Sum Option Payment (PLOP) or the Advance Pension Option. A retirement reduction
factor is applied to the Basic Benefit amount for members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP or
Advance Pension Option or those retiring with a reduced benefit.

Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the
second calendar year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%; under
Plan 2, the COLA cannot exceed 6.00%. During years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is
-0-%. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia
(1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
General Assembly of Virginia.

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may
be downloaded from their website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/publications/2010-Annual-
Report.pdf or obtained by writing to the System's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, VA 23218-2500.

. Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to
contribute 5% of their annual salary to the VRS. This 5% member contribution has been assumed
by the City and the School Board. In addition, the City and School Board are required to
contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund participation in the VRS using the actuarial
basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The City’s
and School’s non-professional employees contribution rates for the fiscal year ended 2012 were
16.07% and 8.93% of annual covered payroll, respectively (which includes 5% member
contribution).
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

B. Funding Policy (Continued)

The School Board’s contributions for professional employees were $7,895,331 to the teacher
cost-sharing pool for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, and these contributions represented
13.44% of current covered payroll.

. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2012, the City’s annual pension cost of $8,526,249 was equal to the City’s
required and actual contributions.

For fiscal year 2012, the School Board’s annual pension cost for non-professional employees was
$787,554 which was equal to the Board’s required and actual contributions.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
City:
June 30, 2012 $ 8,526,249 100% $ -
June 30, 2011 $ 8,407,146 100% $ -
June 30, 2010 $ 4,817,023 100% $ -
School Board:
Nonprofessional

June 30, 2012 $ 787,554 100% $ -
June 30, 2011 $ 820,689 100% $ -
June 30, 2010 $ 871,508 100% $ -

The FY2012 required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial
valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2009
included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government employees and 3.50% to
4.75% for employees eligible for enhanced benefits available to law enforcement officers,
firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) a cost of living adjustment of 2.50% per year. Both the
investment rate of return and the projected salary increases include an inflation component of
2.50%. The actuarial value of the City’s and the School Board’s assets is equal to the modified
market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year period. The City’s, School Board’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009 for the Unfunded Actuarial
Liability (UAAL) was 20 years.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City’s plan was 73.50% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $214,109,548, and the actuarial value of assets
was $157,369,852, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $56,739,696.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $52,788,904
and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 107.48%.

As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City School Board’s plan was
83.00% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $20,908,655, and the actuarial
value of assets was $17,353,631, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$3,555,024. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$7,038,507 and ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 50.51%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

Other Post-Employment Benefits Program

The City of Suffolk has established an irrevocable trust pursuant to Section 15.2-1544 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended for the purpose of accumulated and investing assets to fund Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), to participate in the Virginia Pooled OPEB Trust Fund and has
established a Local Finance Board to become a Participating Employer in the Trust Fund. The Trust
Fund provides administrative, custodial, and investment services to the Participating Employers in the
Trust Fund. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 the City contributed $1,525,200 and the School
Board contributed $1,309,000 to the Trust Fund. Expenses allocated to the Trust Fund during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 totaled $86,890 for the City and $8,462 for the School Board. The
Trust Fund issues a separate report, which can be obtained by requesting a copy from the plan
administrator, Virginia Municipal League (“VML”) at P.O. Box 12164, Richmond, Virginia 23241.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits Program (Continued)

Plan Description

The City and School Board provide post-employment medical coverage for retired employees
through a single-employer defined benefit plan. The plan is established under the authority of City
Council and the School Board, which may also amend the plan as deemed appropriate.

Participants in the City’s and School Board’s OPEB plans must have attained 20 years and 10 years
of full-time consecutive service, respectively, and been enrolled in the group health insurance plan for
the 24 months prior to their retirement date to be eligible and coverage ceases at age 65. Retirees pay
100% of spousal premiums and surviving spouses are not allowed access to the plan.

Funding Policy

The City and School Board establishes employer contribution rates for plan participants as part of the
budgetary process each year and determines how the plan will be funded each year and whether it will
partially fund or fully fund the plan. The City and School Board currently fund post-employment
health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and as contributions to their respective Trust Funds.

Annual Other Post-employment Benefit Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual cost of other post employment benefits (OPEB) under GASB 45 is the Annual Required
Contribution (ARC). The City and School Board paid $842,236 and $0 towards the estimated pay as
you go cost for OPEB benefits in fiscal year 2012, and in addition contributed $1,525,200 and
$1,309,000 to a Trust Fund, respectively. The City and School Board elected to pre-fund OPEB
liabilities. The City and School Board are contributing the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC) an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The thirty year amortization period is open.

The following table shows the components of the City and School Board’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation
for the healthcare benefits:

City School Board
Annual required contribution $ 2,109900 $ 2,328,700
Interest on net OPEB obligation (78,517) 101,320
Adjustment to annual required contribution 88,642 (114,385)
Annual OPEB cost 2,120,025 2,315,635
Contributions made 2,063,513 1,883,643
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 56,512 431,992
Net OPEB obligation (asset) — beginning of year (1,046,897) 1,350,927
Net OPEB obligation (asset) — end of year $ (990,385) § 1,782,919
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Annual Other Post-employment Benefit Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

The City and School Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the past three fiscal years are as follows.

City:
Percentage of
Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost (Asset)
Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2012 $ 2,120,025 97.33% $ (990,385)
June 30, 2011 $ 2,985,694 112.05% $  (1,046,897)
June 30, 2010 § 3,017,535 111.88% $ (687,076)
Schools:
June 30, 2012 $ 2,315,635 81.34% $ 1,782,919
June 30, 2011 $ 2,229,232 71.41% $ 1,350,927
*June 30, 2010 $ 2,229,232 67.99% $ 713,588
* Restated, see Note 17.
Funding Status and Funding Progress
The funding status of the plan as of July 1, 2011 was as follows:
City School Board
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 21,100,600 $ 16,559,900
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 11,918,849 6,050,180
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 9,181,751 $ 10,509,720
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL) 56.49% 36.5%
Covered Payroll (Active Plan Members) 52,047,300 58,739,000
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 17.64% 17.90%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits Program (Continued)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, was used to
determine liabilities. Under this method, the postretirement health costs are assumed to be earned
ratably from the date of hire to the participant’s full eligibility age. The actuarial assumptions used a
7.5% discount rate for a funded plan. Healthcare cost trend rates ranged from 6.30% and 4.70% for
the City and Schools for 2011. The unfunded accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years using
the level dollar amount method.

Commitments and Contingencies

Federally assisted grant programs:

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. Although the City has been
audited in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, these programs remain subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to
requests for reimbursements to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the
grant. Based on prior experience, City management believes such disallowances, if any, will not be
significant.

Construction Commitments:
The City has authorized expenditures for capital additions and construction of various governmental
and utility capital projects. At June 30, 2012, projects expected to be completed at various dates

through 2013 had a total unexpended balance of $581,046 (governmental) and $3,359,689 (utility).

Lease Commitment:

The City has authorized expenditures for capital lease payments, which include monthly and annual
payments for repairs and maintenance costs. At June 30, 2012, lease payments relating to repairs and
maintenance commitments had a total unexpended balance of $4,443,532.
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Litigation:

There are various lawsuits pending against the City and School Board, two of which have a potential
range of loss up to $1,000,000 and $7,500,000, respectively. There are other claims outstanding against
the City and School Board as well that, in the opinion of management after consulting with legal counsel,
will not materially affect the City or School Board’s financial position.

Risk Management

Self-Insurance — City:

The City is self-insured for a portion of its health insurance risks up to $125,000 per occurrence. An
external insurance policy provides coverage over the specified amount up to $1,000,000 per
individual for life.

Claims payable reported in the Risk Management Fund at June 30, 2012 consists of all current
self-insured claims payable amounting to $3,757,779. The current portion is $1,694,614 for 2012.
Claims payable for health insurance are based on current enrollment and benefits and historical
experience. Claims payable for workers’ compensation and other contingent liabilities are based on
insurance coverage and specific claims which have been presented. Following is a summary of
changes in claims payable for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Claims
Beginning and Claim Ending
Balance Reserves Payments Balance

Workers” Compensation 2012 $ 1,391,487 § 1,840,974 § 564,091 § 2,668,370

2011 2,446,799 387,990 1,443,302 1,391,487
Health Insurance 2012 878,792 8,380,366 8,169,749 1,089,409
2011 892,332 7,804,906 7,818,446 878,792

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to the following: torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City also
participates with other localities in a public entity risk pool, the Virginia Municipal League, for their
coverage of property damage. The City pays an annual premium to the pools for its general insurance
coverage. The agreement for the formation of the pools provides that the pools will be self-sustaining
through member premiums. The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of
loss. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past
three years.
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Risk Management (Continued)

Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Coverage — School Board:

The School Board is self-insured for workers’ compensation benefits. Charges are made to the School
Operating, Grants, and Food Service Funds as approved by City Council in the annual operating
budgets. Any excess charges are reflected as nonspendable balance for workers’ compensation claims
in the School Operating Fund. At June 30, $516,140 was held for purposes of funding future claims.

Claims are paid by a third-party administrator acting on behalf of the School Board under terms of a
contractual agreement. Administrative fees are included within the provisions of that agreement. The
plan pays all claims up to $600,000 for each covered accident. Any claims exceeding $600,000 for
each covered accident are paid by specific stop-loss insurance provided by a third-party insurance
company. As of June 30, 2012, the workers’ compensation benefit obligation consisted of $578,730
in reported unpaid claims and estimated incurred but not reported claims. Changes in the balance of
claims liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

Claims
Beginning and Claim Ending
Balance Reserves Payments Balance

Workers” Compensation 2012 $ 326,664 $ 935459 $ 683,393 § 578,730
2011 309,178 948,321 930,835 326,664

Health Insurance Self-Insurance Coverage — School Board:

Claims are paid by a third-party administrator acting on behalf of the School Board under terms of a
contractual agreement. The plan pays all claims up to $125,000 for each participant. Any claims
exceeding $125,000 for each participant are paid by specific stop-loss insurance provided by a third-
party insurance company. As of June 30, 2012, School Operating Fund prepaids of $3,985,847 was
held for purposes of funding the School’s future claims liabilities. As a result, $3,985,847 of the
School Operating Fund balance is reserved for payment of future claims liabilities.

Subsequent Events

The City issued $60,610,000 of authorized General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 on
August 22, 2012 with a maturity date of June 1, 2042. These bonds were issued to finance various
public improvement and public utility capital projects as well as refund certain general obligation and
utility revenue bonds previously issued by the City.
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Fund Balances

Fund Balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the governmental funds. The constraints placed on the general fund balance and other
governmental funds balance are presented below:

Nonspendable:
Prepaids
Inventories

Total nonspendable

Restricted for:
Judicial administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Parks, recreation, and cultural
Community development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Total restricted

Committed to
Public Safety
Public Works
Community development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Total committed

Assigned to:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Parks, recreation, and cultural
Community development
Total assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balance

Road Non-Major
Capital Maintenance Debt Service Government
General Fund Projects Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 8,653 $ - $ - $ - $ -
32,433 - - - -
$ 41,086 $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 158,837 § - $ - $ - $ 204,817
875,907 - - - 214,055
628,155 - 2,669,183 - -
375,848 - - - 1,137,126
54,751 - - - -
13,184 - - - -
- 9,609,804 - - -
- - - 392,178 -
$ 2,106,682 $ 9,609,804 $§ 2,669,183 $§ 392,178 $ 1,555,998
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 8,756
- - 8,830,070 - 3,284,448
5,161,108 - - - -
7,746,520 31,842,530 - - -
- - - 1,979,191 -
$ 12,907,628 $ 31,842,530 $ 8,830,070 $ 1,979,191 $§ 3,293,204
$ 84,112  $ - $ - $ - $ -
24,069 - - - -
384,594 - - - -
505,630 - 949,904 - -
592,924 - - - -
54,300 - - - -
869,807 - - - -
$ 2515436 $ - $ 949,904 § - $ -
$ 36,881,374  § - $ - $ - $ -
$ 54,452,206 § 41,452,334 $§ 12,449,157 $ 2,371,369 $§ 4,849,202
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Note 17.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Prior Period Adjustments

The following is a summary of the restatements to fund balance/net assets:

Primary Government Component Units
Road Fleet Information Economic
Governmental Maintenance ~ Management  Technology Utility School Development
Activities Fund Fund Fund Fund Board Authority
Fund balance/net assets
June 30, 2011, as previously stated § 198979139 § 9,196,985 § 13,882,122 § 2907316 § 164349997 § 79,058,093 § 30,132,195
Restatement to:
Correct capital lease fund asset 924,235 - 133,249 18,036 2,703,939
Correct capital lease payable (924,235) - (133,249) (18,036) (2,703,939)
Record reimbursement revenue 1,566,245 1,566,245 - - -
Record self-insurance - - - - 5,962,104
Eliminate joint tenancy assets (70,505,159) - - - - 70,505,159
Record capital assets, including roads 196,604,865
Restate land value - (3,117,190)
To adjust for debt items: - - - - - -
Adjust Premiums/Discounts - - - - (768,687)
Fund balance/net assets
June 30, 2011, as restated $ 326,645,090 $ 10,763,230 ' § 13,882,122 § 2907316 § 163,581,310 § 155525356 § 27,015,005
Note 18. New Accounting Standards

(Continued)

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following statements which
are not yet effective.

GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements,
was issued to address service concession arrangements, which are a type of public-private or
public-public partnership. The statement defines a service concession arrangement in which (1) the
transferor conveys to an operator the right and related obligation to provide services through the use
of infrastructure or another public asset in exchange for significant consideration and (2) the operator
collects and is compensated by fees from third parties. The requirements of this statement establish
recognition, measurement, and disclosure requirements for these types of arrangements. This
statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflow of
Resources, and Net Position, is intended to improve financial reporting by standardizing the
presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects on a
government’s net position. It alleviates uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements
by providing guidance where none previously existed. This statement will be effective for the year
ending June 30, 2013.
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Note 18.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

New Accounting Standards (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, establishes standards
for reclassification of certain items as deferred outflows and inflows of resources that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities. The standard limits the items that should be reported as deferred
outflows and inflows of resources to items specifically identified in authoritative pronouncements.
Additionally, the standard requires that debt issuance costs be recognized as an expense in the period
incurred except any portion related to prepaid insurance costs. Prospective application is required.
The statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10
and No. 62, was issued to resolve conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements. The statement amends GASB Statement No. 10 by removing the provision that
limits fund-based reporting of an entity’s risk financing activities to the general fund and the internal
service fund type. The fund classification should be determined based on the nature of the activity to
be reported. The statement also amends GASB Statement No. 62 by modifying the specific guidance
on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a straight-line basis, (2) the difference
between the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal amount of a purchased loan or group
of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate
differs significantly from a normal servicing fee rate. The statement will be effective for the year
ending June 30, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans replaces the requirements of GASB
Statements No. 25 and No. 50 as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or
similar arrangements meeting certain criteria. The statement enhances note disclosures and RSI for
both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. The statement also requires the
presentation of new information about annual money-weighted rates of return in the notes to the
financial statements and in 10-year RSI schedules. This statement will be effective for the year
ending June 30, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans replaces the
requirements of GASB Statements No. 27 and No. 50 as they relate to governments that provide
pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain
criteria. The statement requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize the
long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively
and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The statement also enhances
accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and required supplementary
information, including disclosing descriptive information about the types of benefits provided, how
contributions to the pension plan are determined, and assumptions and methods used to calculate the
pension liability. This statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2015.

Management has not yet evaluated the effects, if any, of adopting these standards.
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EXHIBIT 10
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30,2012
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
General property taxes:
Real estate $ 83,042,378  $ 83,042,378  $ 82,349,990 $ (692,388)
Personal property 14,500,000 15,100,000 14,376,500 (723,500)
Public service corporations 2,232,000 2,632,000 2,655,939 23,939
Machinery and tools - - 1,563,347 1,563,347
Penalties 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,231,321 131,321
Total general property taxes 100,874,378 101,874,378 102,177,097 302,719
Other Local Taxes
Sales and use 7,500,000 7,500,000 8,378,591 878,591
Utility tax 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,580,799 (219,201)
Communication taxes 3,800,000 3,800,000 3,826,015 26,015
Business and occupational licenses 5,900,000 6,900,000 7,536,501 636,501
Motor vehicle license 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,104,948 104,948
Bank stock 500,000 500,000 493,688 (6,312)
Recordation 900,000 900,000 922,372 22,372
Tobacco 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,352,797 52,797
Lodging 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,198,551 198,551
Meals 6,000,000 6,000,000 7,076,131 1,076,131
Public facilty taxes 40,000 40,000 140,172 100,172
Admission 360,000 360,000 306,196 (53,804)
Total other local taxes 33,100,000 34,100,000 36,916,761 2,816,761
Permits, fees, and licenses
Animal license 36,000 36,000 33,074 (2,926)
Permits and other licenses 711,000 711,000 988,161 277,161
Total permits, fees, and licenses 747,000 747,000 1,021,235 274,235
Fines and forfeitures 730,000 730,000 1,024,324 294,324
Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue From use of money 500,000 500,000 247,394 (252,600)
Revenue From use of property 285,968 285,968 357,712 71,744
Total use of money and property 785,968 785,968 605,106 (180,862)

(Continued) 60



EXHIBIT 10
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30,2012
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES (Continued)
Charges for services:
Court costs $ 399,787 399,787 330,451  § (69,336)
Police and traffic control 23,920 23,920 23,597 (323)
Charges for other protection 65,000 65,000 67,334 2,334
Charges for parks and recreation 825,000 825,000 719,783 (105,217)
Charges for library 14,000 14,000 16,666 2,666
Charges for planning and community development 37,000 37,000 35,124 (1,876)
Charges for other services 2,318,000 2,318,000 2,055,225 (262,775)
Total charges for services 3,682,707 3,682,707 3,248,180 (434,527)
Miscellaneous revenue
Miscellaneous 1,131,759 1,236,778 1,127,136 (109,642)
Total revenue from local sources 141,051,812 143,156,831 146,119,839 2,963,008
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Noncategorical aid:
Motor vehicle carrier tax 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Tax on deeds 700,000 700,000 492,919 (207,081)
Railroad rolling stock tax 120,000 120,000 112,424 (7,576)
House bill 599 funds 2,765,110 2,765,110 2,764,800 (310)
PPTRA 10,169,729 10,169,729 10,169,730 1
Mobile home titling tax 45,000 45,000 15,579 (29.,421)
Vehicle rental tax 106,000 106,000 117,235 11,235
Local aid Commonwealth state reduction (374,601) (374,601) (377,366) (2,765)
Total noncategorical aid 13,533,238 13,533,238 13,295,321 (237,917)
Categorical aid:
Commonwealth's Attorney 898,592 898,592 897,092 (1,500)
Commissionner of Revenue 151,387 151,387 151,677 290
Treasurer 189,685 189,685 189,353 (332)
Sheriff 852,574 852,574 865,742 13,168
Circuit Court Clerk 456,247 456,747 554,475 97,728
Registrar 52,000 52,000 81,677 29,677
Total categorical aid 2,600,485 2,600,985 2,740,016 139,031
Other categorical aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration 3,938,449 3,938,449 2,916,039 (1,022,410)
Other categorical aid 674,511 675,696 805,491 129,795
Total other categorical aid 4,612,960 4,614,145 3,721,530 (892,615)
Total categorical aid 7,213,445 7,215,130 6,461,546 (753,584)
Total revenue from the Commonwealth 20,746,683 20,748,368 19,756,867 (991,501)
Revenue from the Federal Government
Categorical aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration 5,112,821 5,112,821 4,815,190 (297,631)
Emergency services 11,000 11,000 26,929 15,929
Parks, recreation and cultural 35,000 35,000 - (35,000)
Total revenue from the Federal Government 5,158,821 5,158,821 4,842,119 (316,702)
Total revenues 166,957,316 169,064,020 170,718,825 1,654,805

(Continued)
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

EXPENDITURES
General Government administration:
Legislative:
City Council
General and financial administration:
City Manager
Budget and strategic planning
City Attorney
Human resources
Commissioner of the Revenue
City Assessor
City Treasurer
Finance
Purchasing
Capital Program Management
Board of Elections:
Registrar

Total general government administration

Judicial administration:
Courts:
Circuit Court
District Court
Magistrate
Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court
Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court Service Unit
Circuit Court Clerk
Sheriff
Commonwealth Attorney

Total judicial administration

Public safety:
Police
Communications
Property seizure program - Federal
Confiscation program - State
DARE
Fire
Western Tidewater Regional Jail
Animal shelter and management
Neighborhood development services
Emergency services

Total public safety
Public works:
Administration

Refuse collection
Maintenance of buildings and grounds

Total public works

(Continued)

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

Year Ended June 30,2012

EXHIBIT 10

GENERAL FUND
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 430,174 416,175 411,975 4,200
853,417 953,603 948,705 4,898
432,574 436,075 435,482 593
920,753 931,255 928,412 2,843
1,122,632 1,050,584 998,016 52,568
975,897 968,365 964,308 4,057
1,302,212 1,258,305 1,252,819 5,486
1,360,997 1,331,997 1,326,440 5,557
1,384,229 1,316,407 1,308,290 8,117
344,626 346,990 345,265 1,725
3,140,696 3,267,084 3,262,274 4,810
299,642 395,768 393,625 2,143
12,567,849 12,672,608 12,575,611 96,997
177,555 177,589 176,567 1,022
63,994 58,994 55,614 3,380
17,634 17,634 16,819 815
22,578 22,798 22,794 4
967,044 921,462 920,884 578
1,209,479 1,318,670 1,286,534 32,136
2,162,657 2,055,844 2,050,762 5,082
2,513,182 2,647,324 2,508,624 138,700
7,134,123 7,220,315 7,038,598 181,717
17,943,438 17,986,836 17,604,404 382,432
1,778,967 1,752,272 1,749,845 2,427

- 174,897 24,962 149,935

- 188,895 16,876 172,019

- 4,695 520 4,175
21,843,065 21,603,041 21,403,076 199,965
2,589,482 2,589,482 2,575,604 13,878
699,129 1,076,247 1,073,673 2,574
2,326,211 3,280,749 2,443,897 836,852
23,488 34,170 32,386 1,784
47,203,780 48,691,284 46,925,243 1,766,041
720,836 598,246 740,749 (142,503)
780,000 343 - 343
497,970 988,158 480,997 507,161
1,998,806 1,586,747 1,221,746 365,001
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EXHIBIT 10

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Health and welfare:
Social Services

Total health and welfare

Education:
Contributions to component unit school board
Lease rent of building

Total education

Parks, recreation, and cultural:
Parks and recreation
Public libraries

Total parks, recreation, and cultural
Community Development:
Planning
Economic development
Communications
Tourism

Local and regional organizations
Cooperative extension services

Total community development

Nondepartmental:
Fringe benefits and insurance

Total nondepartmental

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30,2012
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 14,735,155 § 14,621,079 § 12,786,402 § 1,834,677
14,735,155 14,621,079 12,786,402 1,834,677
43,643,200 43,643,200 43,643,200 -
520,518 520,518 508,793 11,725
44,163,718 44,163,718 44,151,993 11,725
4,948,586 4,982,397 4,921,593 60,804
2,476,078 2,486,083 2,479,962 6,121
7,424,664 7,468,480 7,401,555 66,925
1,651,811 1,605,864 1,336,394 269,470
1,246,338 7,564,304 1,171,468 6,392,836
618,427 546,330 529,704 16,626
461,495 393,923 388,145 5,778
1,533,579 1,597,158 1,576,007 21,151
72,085 37,085 33,489 3,596
5,583,735 11,744,664 5,035,207 6,709,457
587,009 487,738 455,436 32,302
587,009 487,738 455,436 32,302
141,398,839 148,656,633 137,591,793 11,064,839
25,558,477 20,407,387 33,127,031 12,719,644
2,401,778 2,401,778 2,069,174 (332,604)
(28,020,255) (30,470,246) (28,222,429) 2,247,817
(25,618,477) (28,068,468) (26,153,255) 1,915,213

$

(60.000) $  (7.661,583) $ 6973779 $  14,635362
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

EXHIBIT 11

June 30, 2012
(@ (b) (b-2) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as of
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
City:
June 30, 2011 $ 157,369,852 $214,109,548 $ 56,739,696 73.50% $ 52,788,904 107.48%
June 30, 2010 150,572,774 202,160,646 51,587,872 74.48% 52,101,413 99.01%
June 30, 2009 147,279,719 181,382,891 34,103,172 81.20% 52,462,203 65.01%
School Board:
June 30, 2011 $ 17,353,631 $ 20,908,655 $§ 3,555,024 83.00% $ 7,038,507 50.51%
June 30, 2010 16,807,237 20,116,600 3,309,363 83.55% 7,204,137 45.94%
June 30, 2009 16,285,337 17,857,433 1,572,096 91.20% 7,212,065 21.80%
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 12

ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

June 30, 2012
(@ (b) (b-2) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)/c)
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as of
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
City:
July 1, 2011 $ 11,918,849 $§ 21,100,600 $ 9,181,751 56.49% 52,047,300 17.64%
July 1, 2009 12,672,664 27,341,308 14,668,644 46.35% 58,766,577 24.96%
July 1, 2009 8,076,990 27,341,308 19,264,318 29.54% 58,766,577 32.78%
School Board:
July 1, 2011 $ 6,050,180 $ 16,559,900 $ 10,509,720 36.54% 58,739,000 17.89%
July 1, 2009 4,315,618 17,122,042 12,806,424 25.21% 59,353,222 21.58%
July 1, 2007 2,756,021 14,499,271 11,743,250 19.01% 59,163,237 19.85%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific
revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular
purposes.

Suffolk Taxing District Fund — accounts for revenues and
expenditures related to services provided in the Suffolk
Taxing District. Most revenues are derived from a specific
percentage of the annual real estate tax assessments in the
Suffolk Taxing District. These additional assessments
ceased as of July 1, 2007.

Downtown Business Overlay District Fund — accounts for
revenues and expenditures related to services provided in
the Downtown Business Overlay District. Most revenues
are derived from a specific percentage of the annual real
estate tax assessments in the Downtown Business Overlay
District.

Consolidated Grants Fund — accounts for revenues and
expenditures involving governmental grant programs.

Law Library Fund — accounts for the maintenance of a law
library. Revenue is derived from court fees.

Route 17 Taxing District Fund — accounts for revenues
and expenditures related to services provided in the Route
17 Taxing District. Most revenues are derived from a
specific percentage of the annual real estate tax assessments
in the Route 17 Taxing District.

Mosquito Taxing District Fund — accounts for revenues
and expenditures related to mosquito spraying services
provided in the Mosquito Taxing District. Most revenues
are derived from a specific percentage of the annual real
estate tax assessments in the Mosquito Taxing District.
These additional assessments ceased as of July 1, 2007.

Cemetery Fund — accounts for monies received from the
sale of burial sites, lots, and mausoleum sites, the revenue
from which is to be applied to the perpetual care of the
City’s cemeteries.

Aviation Fund — Accounts for revenues generated through
use of airport facilities and governmental grant programs to
be used solely for expansion, maintenance, and use of city
municipal airport.
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EXHIBIT 15
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES —

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
OTHER MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30,2012
Debt Service Fund Road Maintenance
Variance with Variance with
Final Budget - Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Permits, privilege fees, and regulatory
licenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 255000 § 255000 § 246,142 $ (8,858)
Revenue from use of money and property - - 164,880 164,880 - - 32,732 32,732
Charges for services - - - - 1,086,040 1,086,040 847,905 (238,135)
Micellaneous - - - - 19,000 19,000 66,237 47,237
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth - - - - 18,652,572 19,610,151 19,671,103 60,952
Fund balance (rollover/appropriations) - - - - - 5,511,794 - (5,511,794)
Total revenues - - 164,880 164,880 20,012,612 26,481,985 20,864,119 (5,617,866)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works - - - - 18,361,670 24,831,043 17,527,250 7,303,793
Principal 14,770,876 14,862,876 14,862,418 458 - - - -
Interest and other fiscal charges 10,368,450 10,668,619 9,354,705 1,313,914 - - - -
Total expenditures 25,139,326 25,531,495 24,217,123 1,314,372 18,361,670 24,831,043 17,527,250 7,303,793
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (25,139,326)  (25,531,495) (24,052,243) 1,479,252 1,650,942 1,650,942 3,336,869 1,685,927
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - 14,295,853 14,295,853 - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - (347,705) (347,705) - - - -
Payment to escrow agent - - (14,096,458) (14,096,458) - - - -
Transfers in 25,139,326 25,531,495 24,820,897 (710,598) - - - -
Transfers out - - - - (1,650,942) (1,650,942) (1,650,942) -
Total other financing sources (uses 25,139,326 25,531,495 24,672,587 (858,908)  (1,650,942) (1,650,942)  (1,650,942) -
Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ 620,344  $ 620,344  $ - $ - $ 1,685,927 $ 1,685927
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for:

Stormwater Utility Fund — accounts for the maintenance and
improvements to the City’s stormwater infrastructure. All
activities necessary to provide such services are funded by
charges to citizens and are accounted for in this fund.

Refuse Fund — accounts for the provision of refuse and waste
management services. All activities necessary to provide
such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not
limited to, administration, operation, billing, and collections.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
OPEB asset
Other capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

EXHIBIT 17

Busines-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Stormwater
Utility Refuse Total
$ 2,605,810 $ 729,571  $ 3,335,381
166,843 304,937 471,780
2,772,653 1,034,508 3,807,161
24,535 - 24,535
30,657 - 30,657
55,192 - 55,192
2,827,845 1,034,508 3,862,353
136,616 190,062 326,678
2,517 - 2,517
5,566 5,045 10,611
144,699 195,107 339,806
65,236 74,237 139,473
65,236 74,237 139,473
209,935 269,344 479,279
30,657 - 30,657
2,587,253 765,164 3,352,417
$ 2,617,910 $ 765,164  $ 3,383,074
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 18

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Other
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Contractural services
Administration
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Building and equipment rental
Other charges
Total operating expenses
Operating income
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT
Change in net assets
NET ASSETS AT JULY 1
NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activies - Enterprise Funds

Stormwater
Utility Refuse Total
$ 4,157,419 $ 5,898,251 $ 10,055,670
56,056 23,531 79,587
4,213,475 5,921,782 10,135,257
1,793,378 1,527,535 3,320,913
374,161 1,238,617 1,612,778
616,259 2,340,419 2,956,678
106,926 557,963 664,889
11,144 18,423 29,567
15,401 5,036 20,437
61,864 - 61,864
60,402 - 60,402
33,168 24,052 57,220
3,072,703 5,712,045 8,784,748
1,140,772 209,737 1,350,509
- 555,427 555,427
(1,854,103) - (1,854,103)
(713,331) 765,164 51,833
3,331,241 - 3,331,241
$ 2,617,910 $ 765,164 $ 3,383,074
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EXHIBIT 19
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Stormwater
Utility Refuse Total
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 4,166,333 $ 5,616,845 § 9,783,178
Payments to employees (1,783,330) (1,448,253) (3,231,583)
Payments to suppliers (1,088,944) (3,994,448) (5,083,392)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,294,059 174,144 1,468,203
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds - 555,427 555,427
Transfers to other funds (1,854,103) - (1,854,103)
Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities (1,854,103) 555,427 (1,298,676)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (92,521) - (92,521)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (92,521) - (92,521)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (652,565) 729,571 77,006
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning, July 1 3,258,375 - 3,258,375
Ending, June 30 $ 2,605810 $ 729,571 § 3,335,381
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 1,140,772 $ 209,737 $ 1,350,509
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 61,864 - 61,864
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net (47,142) (304,937) (352,079)
OPEB asset 1,400 - 1,400
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 128,517 190,062 318,579
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 8,648 79,282 87,930
Net cash provided by operating aciviies $ 1,294,059 $§ 174,144 §$ 1,468,203
The Notes to Financial Statements are 76

an integral part of this statement.



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City
as an agent for private organizations or other governments.
Funds in this category include:

Special Welfare Fund — accounts for receipt of welfare
checks and foster children support checks from the state and
payments made on behalf of individuals.

Commonwealth of Virginia Fund — accounts for monies
collected by the City on behalf of the Commonwealth of
Virginia.

Western Tidewater Water Authority — accounts for monies

held by the City as an agent for this public or independent
organization.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT 20

June 30, 2012
Western
Special Welfare = Commonwealth of Tidewater Water
Fund Virginia Fund Authority Total
$ 27,514 $ 1,820 § 312,226 341,560
$ 27,514  $ 1,820 § 312,226 341,560
$ 27,514  $ 1,820 $ 312,226 341,560
$ 27,514 $ 1,820 $ 312,226 341,560
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 21

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Special Welfare Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

Commonwealth of Virginia Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

Western Tidewater Water Authority

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

Total All Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

Year Ended June 30, 2012
Balance Balance
July 1,2011  Additions Deductions  June 30, 2012
$ 28327 $§ 101,195 § 102,008 $ 27,514
$ 28327 $ 101,195 $ 102,008 $ 27,514
$ 28327 $§ 101,195 § 102,008 $ 27,514
$ 28327 $ 101,195 $§ 102,008 $ 27,514
$ 2,618 $ 135984 § 136,782 $ 1,820
$ 2,618 $ 135984 § 136,782 § 1,820
$ 2,618 $ 135984 § 136,782 $ 1,820
$ 2,618 $ 135984 § 136,782 $ 1,820
$ 539,867 $1,929,429 $2,157,070 $ 312,226
$ 539,867 $1,929,429 $2,157,070 $ 312,226
$ 539,867 $1,929,429 $2,157,070 $ 312,226
$ 539,867 $1,929,429 $2,157,070 $ 312,226
$ 570,812 $2,166,608 $2,395860 $ 341,560
$ 570,812 $2,166,608 $2,395860 $ 341,560
$ 570,812 $2,166,608 $2,395860 $ 341,560
$ 570,812 $2,166,608 $2,395860 $ 341,560
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Information Technology Fund — accounts for technology
infrastructure and allocates costs to the various departments or
agencies using the service.

Fleet Management Fund — accounts for, on a cost-
reimbursement basis, the financing of vehicles and the related
maintenance, repairs, and fuel costs and allocates those costs
to the various departments or agencies using the equipment.

Risk Management Fund — accounts for the funding and
payment of auto, personal liability, general liability, health
insurance, and workers’ compensation claims against the City
exclusive of the School Board employees. Charges to other
funds are based on estimated claims for the year.
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EXHIBIT 22
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Information Fleet Risk
Technology Management Management Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,218,472 $ 4292696 $ 11,334938 $§ 17,846,106
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted - 547 - 547
Receivables, net 54,415 84,725 18,576 157,716
Inventories - 229,554 - 229,554
Total current assets 2,272,887 4,607,522 11,353,514 18,233,923
Noncurrent assets:
OPEB asset 16,357 18,810 2,453 37,620
Land and construction in progress 790,875 298,000 - 1,088,875
Other capital assets, net 1,542,220 17,632,775 - 19,174,995
Total noncurrent assets 2,349,452 17,949,585 2,453 20,301,490
Total Assets 4,622,339 22,557,107 11,355,967 38,535,413
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 209,705 161,892 200,271 571,868
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 3,237 1,009 63,458 67,704
Claims payable - - 1,694,614 1,694,614
Accrued interest - 14,476 - 14,476
Compensated absences 10,401 4,067 1,187 15,655
Capital leases 47,137 1,544,480 - 1,591,617
Total current liabilities 270,480 1,725,924 1,959,530 3,955,934
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 86,897 63,200 7,965 158,062
Claims payable - - 2,063,165 2,063,165
Capital leases 14,203 1,792,789 - 1,806,992
Total noncurrent liabilities 101,100 1,855,989 2,071,130 4,028,219
Total liabilities 371,580 3,581,913 4,030,660 7,984,153
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,304,755 14,593,506 - 16,898,261
Unrestricted assets 1,946,004 4,381,688 7,325,307 13,652,999
Total Net Assets $ 4,250,759 § 18,975,194 $ 7,325,307 $ 30,551,260
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 23

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Information Fleet Risk
Technology = Management Management Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 4,418,573 $ 10,453,218 $ 17,881,987 $§ 32,753,778
Other 13,414 7,008 111,072 131,494
Total operating revenues 4,431,987 10,460,226 17,993,059 32,885,272
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 1,471,731 994,219 316,033 2,781,983
Self-insured claims - - 12,208,415 12,208,415
Contractural services 1,016,437 9,552 38,267 1,064,256
Administration 256,918 730,224 17,220 1,004,362
Supplies 9,096 31,629 9,401 50,126
Repairs and maintenance 28,334 29,941 - 58,275
Vehicle and power equipment — fuel - 2,378,982 - 2,378,982
Vehicle and power equipment — supplies - 1,734,455 - 1,734,455
Utilities 62,646 35,995 1,988 100,629
Insurance - - 1,735,847 1,735,847
OPEB - contributions to trust - - 1,525,200 1,525,200
Depreciation 4,270 3,370,269 - 3,374,539
Building and equipment rental 106,462 557,851 4,428 668,741
Other charges 17,583 8,581 10,636 36,800
Total operating expenses 2,973,477 9,881,698 15,867,435 28,722,610
Operating income 1,458,510 578,528 2,125,624 4,162,662
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Loss on disposal of capital assets - (173,419) - (173,419)

Interest income - 18,162 44,520 62,682

Interest expense - (121,456) - (121,456)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - (276,713) 44,520 (232,193)
Net income before contributions and transfers 1,458,510 301,815 2,170,144 3,930,469
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - 4,091,482 - 4,091,482
TRANSFERS IN - 1,062,000 - 1,062,000

TRANSFERS OUT (115,067) (362,225) (60,964) (538,256)
Change in net assets 1,343,443 5,093,072 2,109,180 8,545,695
NET ASSETS AT JULY 1 2,907,316 13,882,122 5,216,127 22,005,565
NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30 $ 4,250,759 $ 18,975,194 $ 7,325307 $ 30,551,260
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EXHIBIT 24
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Information Fleet Risk
Technology = Management Management
Fund Fund Fund Total
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 4,377,572 $ 10,375,501  $ 17,995,654  $32,748,727
Payments to employees (1,473,673) (1,010,122) (326,103) (2,809,898)
Payments to suppliers (1,504,211) (5,649,802)  (13,933,993) (21,088,006)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,399,688 3,715,577 3,735,558 8,850,823
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds - 1,062,000 - 1,062,000
Transfers to other funds (115,067) (362,225) (60,964) (538,256)
Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities (115,067) 699,775 (60,964) 523,744
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (911,407) (5,288,567) - (6,199,974)
Principal paid on capital lease obligations (113,128) (1,052,082) - (1,165,210)
Capital contributions - 4,091,482 - 4,091,482
Interest paid on debt - (133,484) - (133,484)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,024,535) (2,382,651) - (3,407,186)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earned - 18,162 44,520 62,682
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 260,086 2,050,863 3,719,114 6,030,063
Beginning, July 1 1,958,386 2,242,380 7,615,824 11,816,590
Ending, June 30 $ 2218472 § 4293243  $ 11,334,938  $17,846,653
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2218472 $§ 4,292,696 $ 11,334,938  $17,846,106
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted - 547 - 547
$ 2,218,472 § 4293243  $ 11,334,938  $17,846,653
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 1,458,510 § 578,528 $§ 2,125,624 $ 4,162,662
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,270 3,370,269 - 3,374,539
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net (54,415) (84,725) 2,595 (136,545)
Inventories - 12,289 - 12,289
OPEB asset 933 1,073 140 2,146
Prepaids - - 9,698 9,698
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (6,735) (144,881) 120,211 (31,405)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (2,875) (16,976) (10,210) (30,061)
Claims payable - - 1,487,500 1,487,500
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 1,399,688 $ 3,715,577 $ 3,735,558 $ 8,850,823
NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Capital asset purchases financed by capital leases $ 47,137 $ 1,544,480 $ - $ 1,591,617
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
DISCRETELY PRESENTED

COMPONENT UNIT - CITY OF SUFFOLK
SCHOOL BOARD

School Operating Fund — accounts for revenues and
expenditures relating to the operation of the City of Suffolk
Public Schools. Revenues are derived from the City’s
General Fund and from state and federal funds.

School Food Service Fund — accounts for revenues and
expenditures relating to the operation of school cafeterias.
Revenues are derived from state and federal funds and
cafeteria sales.

School Grants Fund — accounts for revenues and
expenditures relating to grants received by the school
system from federal and state governments.

OPEB Trust Fund - accounts for the other post-
employment benefits (OPEB). This fund accumulates
resources for health insurance for retired employees.

Combined School Activity Funds — accounts for the
various activity funds of each of the schools. Revenues are
derived from school fundraisers, athletic and state event
receipts, and School Board allocations.

The Pruden Center for Industry and Technology
Component Unit — Accounts for revenues and
expenditures relating to operations of the Center. Revenues
are derived primarily from local appropriations.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT SCHOOL BOARD

EXHIBIT 25

June 30, 2012
School Subtotal The Pruden
School School Food Excluding Center for Total
Operating Grants Service Component Industry & School
Fund Fund Fund Unit Technology Board
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,130,934 $ 399§ 2,689,809 § 14,821,142 § 1,139,563  $ 15,960,705
Receivables, net 128,373 24,699 14,067 167,139 34,162 201,301
Due from other funds 810,366 - - 810,366 - 810,366
Due from other governments 2,782,133 2,405,426 652,659 5,840,218 - 5,840,218
Inventories 140,862 - 318,076 458,938 - 458,938
Prepaid items 4,080,847 - - 4,080,847 - 4,080,847
Total assets $ 20,073,515 ' $ 2,430,524 $ 3,674,611 $§ 26,178,650 § 1,173,725 § 27,352,375
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 634,198 $ 111,179 § 190,112  § 935,489 $ 680,582 $ 1,616,071
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 9,955,944 896,609 165,938 11,018,491 152,781 11,171,272
Amounts held for others 33,556 - - 33,556 - 33,556
Deferred revenue 1,289,059 1,289,059 - 1,289,059
Due to other governments - - - - 59,802 59,802
Due to other funds - 810,366 - 810,366 - 810,366
Total liabilities 11,912,757 1,818,154 356,050 14,086,961 893,165 14,980,126
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Inventories and prepaids 4,221,709 - 318,076 4,539,785 - 4,539,785
Premiums held for workers compensation claims 516,140 - - 516,140 - 516,140
Committed
Grant local match - 538,353 - 538,353 - 538,353
Capital Outlay - - - - 280,560 280,560
Assigned
Special revenue - - 2,999,052 2,999,052 - 2,999,052
Encumbrances 3,459,344 165,385 1,433 3,626,162 - 3,626,162
Unassigned (36,435) (91,368) - (127,803) - (127,803)
Total fund balances 8,160,758 612,370 3,318,561 12,091,689 280,560 12,372,249
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 20,073,515 $ 2,430,524  $ 3,674,611 § 26,178,650 § 1,173,725 § 27,352,375
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit 1)
Total fund balance $ 12,372,249
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
School Board 135,943,172
Pruden Center 1,788,043
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore
are not reported in the funds. 1,289,059
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Other post-employment benefits (1,782,919)
School Board Compensated absences (1,859,484)
Pruden Center Compensated absences (77,496)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 147,672,624
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT SCHOOL BOARD

EXHIBIT 26

Year Ended June 30,2012
School Subtotal The Pruden
School School Food Excluding Center for Total
Operating Grants Service Component Industry & School
Fund Fund Fund Unit Technology Board
REVENUES
Revenue from use of money and property $ 33,809 § - 4,590 $ 38399 § - $ 38,399
Charges for services 119,037 - 2,328,112 2,447,149 18,423 2,465,572
Miscellaneous 600,295 - 329,858 930,153 - 930,153
Intergovernmental:
City contribution 43,643,200 - - 43,643,200 - 43,643,200
Revenue from the Commonwealth 72,087,533 720,603 140,696 72,948,832 106,394 73,055,226
Revenue from the Federal Government 1,449,508 12,322,745 4,231,270 18,003,523 - 18,003,523
School Board contribution to Pruden Center - - - - 2,509,831 2,509,831
Isle of Wright contribution to Pruden Center - - - - 1,025,143 1,025,143
Total revenues 117,933,382 13,043,348 7,034,526 138,011,256 3,659,791 141,671,047
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Education 122,157,532 13,129,497 6,655,954 141,942,983 3,379,231 145,322,214
Total expenditures 122,157,532 13,129,497 6,055,954 141,942,983 3,379,231 145,322,214
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (4,224,150) (86,149) 378,572 (3,931,727) 280,560 (3,651,167)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 262,015 - 262,015 - 262,015
Transfers out (262,015) - - (262,015) - (262,015)
Total other financing sources (uses) (262,015) 262,015 - - - -
Net changes in fund balances (4,486,165) 175,866 378,572 (3,931,727) 280,560 (3,651,167)
Fund balances at July 1, as restated 12,646,923 436,504 2,939,989 16,023,416 - 16,023,416
Fund balances at June 30 $ 8,160,758 $ 612,370 3,318,561 $ 12,091,689 $ 280,560 $ 12,372,249

Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2)
Net change in fund balance - governmental fund

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation expense ($7,887,501) exceeded capitalized expenditures

($3,660,403) for the School Board.

The Pruden Center had capital asset additions ($697,960) exceeding depreciation expense ($148,571).

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are

not reported as revenues in the funds.

Losses on the disposal of capital assets are not reported
as expenditures in the funds

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits

are not due and payable at June 30, and therefore are not reported in the fund statements.
This amount represents the current year change in those items for the School Board

This amount represents the current year change in compensated absences for the Pruden Center

Change in net assets of governmental activities
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EXHIBIT 29
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD

June 30, 2012
OPEB Trust School Activity
Fund Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,700,105 $ 1,197,847

Total assets $ 7,700,105 $ 1,197,847
Liabilities

Amounts held for students $ - $ 1,197,847

Total Liaiblities $ - $ 1,197,847
Net Assets

Held in trust for OPEB benefits $ 7,700,105 $ -

Total net assets 7,700,105 -

Total liabilities and net assets $ 7,700,105 $ -

&9



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 30

OPEB TRUST FUND - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD

Additions:
Employer Contributions
Loss on investments

Total additions

Deductions:
Adminsitive fees

Total liabilities
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

Year Ended June 30, 2012

90

School Board

$ 1,309,000

(40,340)

1,268,660

8,462

8,462

1,260,198

6,439,907

$ 7,700,105




EXHIBIT 31
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS — DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Balance
Beginning Balance
of Year Additions Deletions End of Year

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  § 1,184,668 $ 2,515,014 $ 2,501,835 $ 1,197,847

Liabilities:

Amounts held for students  $ 1,184,668 $ 2,515,014 $ 2,501,835 $ 1,197,847
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Suffolk Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Table

Financial Trends 1-4
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 5-12
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City’s ability
to generate its property and sales taxes, as well as revenues from its water and sewer operations.

Debt Capacity 13-15
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current
levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 16-17
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment in which the City’s financial activities take place and to help make comparison
over time and with other governments.

Operating Information 18-20
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to help the
reader understand how the City’s financial information relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 in 2002; schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.

92



(©)

(2]

€6

'SJOSSE JOU PAJOLIISAIUN UL UOIONPAI B SE PAJII[Jal oq 0) uefoq

$10SSE PIEOE [00YOS [IIM PAJRIOOSSE JG3P AU} ‘UONIPPE U] £89°89/$ JO SONIANOY odA ] -ssaursng pue [G6°S99°LZ[$ JO [BIUSWIUISAOD) A} Y30q UI SJASSY JON U0 JUSWIAIELISAI & Sapn[out sIy [, (S)

'065°650°S$ JO sonIAnoy odA [ -ssauisng pue 861 695 €S JO [EIUUWILIIAOD) AU} YJOq UI $JOSSY JON UO JUSTLILISAI & SOpnjaul sIy ], (+)

'S)OSSY 1N SANIATIOY
odA I -ssoulsngy Oy} UI JUAWA)LISOT [T OpH$ PUB 19SSV JON SONTANOY [BIUSUIUIOAOL) AU UT JUSWALISAT £97 9L € TT$ © sopnjoul siy L, (€)

81088y 10N SoNIANOY 2dA [ -SSAUISNE DU UF JUSWRIBISAT SHO°ELH*SOT$ B Sapnfoul YL (2)

"S)ASSY 10N SONIATOY [RIUSUIUIOAOL) ) UT JUIWIAILISAT [(LpLT €S © sopnjout siy, ()

(€) (@) (1)

17€°099°€€S $ 1¥9°LSS E6r $ 616°S9L19¢ $ SPSLITS9E $ 9T8°0€0°€LE $ TIL9SE9PE $ 9rI'6¥09rT $ 9TSTES 6L $ LI6PLTTEL $ LELOVSIT $ $19SSY ION
JUSWIUIOAOD) ATewILI [B)0 ],
108°0L0°€E (8€9°¥8L Y1) 116°€5¥°98 0LE'LLS €9 LYEYTLSS 60T T8L Yy $€6°9TS ST 8€S°80¥HC 1S€905°L1 LYSH11°9€ pajornsalun
866 FEL L 1L0°0ST'81 9F'69T'8 - $0€°6S6 - 90LTYL'E 059716 Y0LY88°C ELL'6EY'] sasodng 10430
STLT6E YrL6LTT SLI'LI6'L 691°76€ 691°T6€ 691°76€ - - - (EPr'6L9°T) AIIAIRS 192
- - - - - - $SS°TTTS 010°C98°C 9TTYSTYI1 605°650°9C spoafoid [ende)
paloISOY
L18°19%°T6¥ $ YOrTISLSY $ L8ESTIG9T $ 900°8¥6°00€ $ 900°5S6°CIE $ €€€T8IT0E $ 1$6°95S°1TC $ 8TELIET6 $ 9€9°679°L6 $ 1S€905°9¢ $ 1Qap pAje[a1 JO Jou
‘sjosse [eyrded ur pajsoAu]
JUSWIUIOAOL) ATeWILL ]
L8L°9S9°691 $ 1SSTI6°991 $ TLT'BLT991 $ LT8YPTYLI $ 161°6S9°ELT $ S6L'6TSELT $ 0LE0V96ELT $ T96°SLOTL $ 6L6°98€°99 $ ¥85°868C9 $  SIOSSY JON SINIANdY
odA ] -ssouisng [e10],
SY6°€6S°9 S68°0LE9 08€°66¥%°S YTr'se6’T 918°681°1 [7ANS 24 875°850°¢ 6€L°9LL'L 0TTELL L 182T°C€0°L PpajoLysarun
8C0°8L61 LT8TE - - - - 9Tr'6€ - 90T ¥€9 - sasoding 10430
- GLSL8S'] 900°5TS1 - - - - - - - IAIRS 1920
- - - - - - - - 6171°689°1 90T HITLL spoafoid [ende)
paIOINSOY
718%80°LST $ $STITY8ST $ 988°€ST6S1 $ €0r'60€1LT $ SLESIITLL $ €T9%80°€LI $ 96€798°0L1 $ €TT66T69 $ ¥0¥06T9S $ L60TS98¢E $ 1Qop pje[a1Jo jou
‘sjosse [eprded ur pajsoAu]
sonIAOY adA | -ssoursng
7SS €00°89¢€ $ 060°5¥9°9T€ $ LY9°L8H'S61 $ SILTL606T $ SE9°GLE661 $ 916978°CLI $ 9LL'880°TL $ $95°9St 8% $ 8€6°L88°S9 § €STTPS'SS $  SIOSSY JON SINIANOY
[EIUSWIUIOAOD) [810],
968°9L¥°9T (€€5°SST°1D) 1€5°%56°08 9617609 1ESPET'LS LEO'LEE VY L8ESIPTI 66L°1€9°TT 1€1°€EL’6 997°780°6¢ pajoLnsalun
0L6°9SL’S YrCLIT'ST 9r'69T'8 - $0€°6S6 - 08T°€0L'E 059716 867°0STT ELL'6EY'] sasoding 10410
STLT6E 691°76€ 691°76€ 691°76€ 691°T6€ 691°76€ - - - (Evt'6L9°T) AIIAIRS 192
- - - - - - $SS°TTT’S 010°C98°C LLO'S9STI £0€°578°8 soofoid [ende)
pAOLSIY
€00°LLE SEE $ 01T 161°%6TE $ 10S°1L8°S01 $ €09°8€9°6C1 $ 1€9°68L0F1 $ 0IL°L60°8T1 $ SSST69°0S $ S01°810°CT $ 6L 1y $ PSTHS8LL S 1Qap pje[a1Jo jou
‘sjosse [eyrded ur pajsoAu]
SONIAIOY [BJUSWIUIIAOD)
(4 (14 1102 0102 6007 8007 L007 9007 S00¢ 007 €00C
SYVHA TVISId NAL LSVT
LINANOdINOD A4 SLASSV LN

IICLAN

VINIDWIA 104408 40 ALID



6

9TTLIS'89 T1S798°Ly 0T6'10T°eY 8T9°9SH 0F TOEELESE €29'V6L Y1 ¥S6°S68°ST TEYTOL'ST 785°959°T€ LIE01¥'TT SONUIASY WEISOI] SONIATIOY [EJUSUIUIOAOD) [BJ0 ],
9€1°95T'8Y 906'TSL'L 0€6°116°1 969°%79°1 1LT9TT1 985°LTE901 L89°6TTY LL6'9SE'E £66°LTH'E 16¥°5€0°C suonnqLiuo) pue syuein fede) [ejo L

- - - - - - - 10L°81 €8TTLI'T - [eruounedopuoN

- - - - - - - 08T°0L1 - - SIS olqN{ YO
878°¢ 99€°89¢Y 1S1°601 765996 810°880°1 610°LTI°T 006829 TL9'98 $€6'9T - udwdofaadq Ayrunuro))

- - - - - £70°C 661°LTT T59°LT SLE Y - [BIN[NY) PUB UONEIIY ‘Syied

- - - - - - 190461 1LY06T°1 868°S€0°1 S8S°0€0°T uoneonpy

- - - - - £8€°8 - - - 000°8L Qlej[oA\ pue i[eaH
68T161°9% 0FSP8E'E 6LLTO8'T T09°L8S €ST'8ET IP1°061°501 LTS'6L6T 10T°€9L°T 661 IST1 906976 SYIOM SMqQnd
0£9°856°1 - - 00S°0L - - - - - - Koyes a1qng
68€°66 - - - - - - - - - JUOWIUIDAOL) [RIOUAD)

SUONNQLIU0)) pue sjueln) [eyde))
¥8€°969 %1 PPE0LE'EE £78°€0E e 898°95€°T¢€ £80°85L°0€ £9€°L91°0€¢ 0€5°008°S1 979°SL6°91 9T 081%T 126°066°S1 suonnquyuo) pue syuerH sunerdd [e1o L

- - - - - - 0€9°8T 11LTL Y6y 11 6€0°11 SAIIAIS OMQN RO

- - 9TH'808°1 TLI'SLS TTI°T0€ 6TY9SL 6bL0SS 8€6°966 99¥°08L LS8TLS Juowdofpad Ayunuior)

- 8TT'81 T0b'76T 0T1°s0€ 681°L6T 19L°$8T YrT6vL £9€°69€¢ 659°50€ TET'89T [BIN[N)) PUE UONEAINY “SHIB]

- - - - - - - - SPO'I€l 166°€8 uoneanpy
6TTIEL'L 1L9°0¥S'8 TILT15%6 PSS'8H8'S 016°86€'8 98LTLI'S 656°661°01 6LO'SSLTI YEL'S6T'TI ¥18°096°01 QIBJ[OA\ PUE I[EOH

- 0Z9°18L'81 68€°560°81 1211681 ¥L0'880°LT 989°05€°91 1€€°9L9 T6Y°76T 9b9°LSE'9 LITYSL SHOM d1qnd
1L9°T68 8L5°9ST°E 105°S0L°T 8L9°9€1°T S6L€6TT 896°ST€T 16S°6ST°T 119°StL 880°1L6°1 11S°SLYy Aiges onqngd
LIS ISHT TWLLLET 60T99L°1 81€678°1 089°9p8°1 120°208°1 WL IP1T LOEL9TT [SSNEI 4 185°€9t°C uonensuiupy [erpny
L16°029'7 S0S°S6€ S81°TTl S06°0LT €10°1€S TIL'ELY S8T6T STl'evy 6ET°S6T°T 6L9°0LE UONERSIUIWPY JUSUWIUISA0L) [eIUL)

suonnqLIuo)) pue sjueln sunerodo
90LY98°S 19T°14L9 L91°986°9 ¥90°SLY'9 876°88¢€°9 ¥L9°66T'S LEL'S98'S 678'89¢€°S £91°8%0°S S06°€8€EY SOOIAIOS 10] SATIRYD) [B10L

- - - - - - 189°C18 Y0b°T09 81€°SLS 929°66¥ AJIAISS dMqNd YO
¥TIse 0P9°0LY 1 918°8%C YE1°T0€ 128S1Z°1 £86'8t6 0€6°LT 96T°€E LSETT 201°5T Juowdojpad Ayunuior)
€8L61L €TE6SL T91°0L9 £6€°879 9LEILY Tr9'sEe 8¥L'STE 859°91¢€ SLO'88T OLE'LSY [BIN[N)) PUE UONEIINY “SHIB]

- - 0827°ST 88€°L 10261 S10°ST - - - - QlBJ[oA\ pue i[eaH
T0€TLY £6€P0S°T L9T'LIET 861°561°C LS8TEST PS89PL ] 186%ST'1 ¥80°98¢€°1 0FL 08ET - SYIOM dMQnd
[ AYAS 1E¥'7LOT €EL°1€6'T 786°L8ST 69€°19€°C 088°€I€T T19°6¥T 8€9°861 L8S V81 Y1¥'v66 Aiyes onqng
Y6SYLE YLY'TEG 019°9€L 696°€SL YTESL 00£°6€6 LIE'L8Y 107°88S T8T°E6Y SOS'SLY'T uonensuILpY [enipny
0STL8T'E $ - S 6629 $ - s - s - $ 89¥°L0ST SYEEYTT $ YO8VIIT S 888°1€6 $ UOHEHSIUIUPY JUSUILIDAOL) [BIOUSL)

1S9OIAIAG 10§ SaSIRYD)

ISONIATJOR [EJUSUILIDAOD)

SINUIAIY WeIsorg

PSLETTEET $ ¥09°LS6°0€T S $96'80L°6TT $ 89T011°VET S 199°6£0°L61 S TL9'L6L'LIT $ 6£L°90L°6ST 89€°L96'891 $ LLT'890°9€T S 688°€TL'STI $ SoSUadXF JUAWIUIA0D) ATeurLid [€)0],

0€5°L69' VY L61°SOT°LE L8LSE9'TY £559PLEE S8E6IsEe 6€L°€90'7€ LOV'0€T'ST 197°L09°61 8¥STHLI1 £68°9TTy1 sosuadxy soniAnoy odA [ -ssoursng (€10,
€0L°TLOE LTE'SS6T SHT100°¢ 0LT¥T6'T YLET6ST TTITI6] - - - - JUSWDFRUBW IOJEMULIO}S
SYOTIL'S - - - - - - - - - U000 dsnyay

- - - 6TT689°1 STY08LT 08€°6L6°1 10€4€6°T LSOPEST 019°8¥1°1 128 181°1 98IN02 Jj0H
T8LTI6'SE 0L8°671%€ TS E9'8E $S0°€€1°6T 98€LY1°6T LETELI'0E 901°96Z°€T YOT'ELL'LY 8€6°€65°S1 TECSPOEL sanimN

:$aNIANOY 2dA ] -ssoursng
YTTI1Y 881 LOY'TS8 €61 8L1°€L0'881 SIL'E9€°00T 6LT°0TS €91 TE6'EEL'EST TECILYPEL LOT'09€°6¥1 6TL'STE 61T 9€0°L6Y 111 SOSUAAXF SONIATOY [BJUSUILISA0D [0,

- - - - - - - L66°18Y'S YTY'L8S L 818°T6TY [euaunedacg-uoN

- - - - - - [karad 0L6°LT 06€°€1 €8€°LT $1500 puog
608°TEST1 LEY'STS'S 0ST°€6T°6 8L9°968°6 6L7060°T1 86£°686'9 $09°660°L TSY'99TL PS8°6SE°L 98°61S 9 192(] WA -0 U0 JsdIdU]

- - - - - - €L1°699°€ 095°6¥6°C $85°799°¢ 611'SLET SOJIAIRS O1qnd PO
888°156°S 0S8°68L°€1 [SS A4 Oy THL'L 16€°96T°9 LSS'6TT'LT PPYLOS T Y17'850°01 TST'955°9 €96°LLY‘6 JuowdooAs( Ayrunuuwoy
¥87°888°L T9€8I8°L TTL60E'S 099°10€°8 LLY'YTS'S T0S°€8L'8 LES'LOL'S EPSHIEST 91EEH0Yy 8EC0EI'Y [eM[n)) puB UONBIINY ‘Syied
€65°90T vy LS8Y0S°9S 8¥14T9°€S 1¥9°8LY°LL 6€9°601°TH 0vS'856°1S SE8'6LL'RE TTI'09T°9S P8L'EST'IT 0€1°6L6°TE uonesnpy
8L1919°T1 1E°96L €1 987°695°€1 €I1S°L81°TL 9€0°81L°TI SLEYS 01 P8$°TSTEL 18L°018°€1 607 710°€1 L09'LTSTL QIBJ[9 M\ PUE YI[EOH
66T9S1°LE 9PE'SLLOE L¥0°T89°'PE 96€£°0€5°T€E T1LTLL6T 17T°8T8°8T 966°SLT'S €80°LS9Y PI8°EIL'ET 1S6°S99°L SYIOM dMqng
$T9°L8S Y L19°G€9°¢t ¥S6'8F Ty 0v°TLE9E LY SLT'9E SESPI6'EE ILY01Y €E 8T1°9%9°9C 168°€794T TLL'S61°1T Koyes d1qngd
YTITTo’L sYITTL 189°€6€°L £66°6S1°L SLLLST'L 171°L08°9 £90°5€S°S 16V°9€6't S00°8TH Y OLTLSY'Y [edrpnf
STTHSSTL $ ST8YSLIL S SE€9°TTH6 $ T66°€6h'S S TECSLS6 S €91°6LE8 $ €50°916°9 99L°006°1 $ S00°610°8 S 6€9°LI9'S $ JUSUIUISAOL) [BI2USD)

SONIATIOY [BIUSWIUIOAOD)
sasuadxyy
(41114 41114 010T 600T 800T L00T 9002 £00T 00T €00T
SYVHA TVOSIA NIL LSVT
SLASSV LAN NI SHONVHD
TJo [ o8eq

7alqeL

VINIDYIA MT044NS 40 ALID



$6

‘SIUDWIANRIG [RIOURUL 0} SAJON Ul £ [ 0N 1od £89°§9/§ Aq paseatour sasuadxd adA1-ssauisng pue [6°699°L 1S Aq PISBAIOUL 2IOM SINUIADI SINIATIOR [RIUIWIUIIA0S 10J SAN[BA [ [(TA DI0joIay [, "sieak ajdninw pajoeduwr jeyy apew a1om syuaunsnfpe pordd soud ‘110z Ad Ul (£)

*SJUDWOIEIS [EIOURUL] O) $AJON UI £ ] 910N 10d Z6H €6 1°6$ Aq pasearour sosuodxo adA)-ssoursng Jnq SoNIANOE [EJUOWILIDACS Ul PIILISOI J0U dI0M SIN[EA ()[(TA] “I0JoIoy ], “s1eak ofdnjnu pajoedut jeyy opeur a1om sjudunsnfpe porsad toud jueoytusis 1[0z A U] ()

*SJUSWWOD YO ,1D PUB AImonns [euonerado ur saFURYD ‘SUONIPPE PUnj Mau uo paseq sato3ares utdnoid paysnipe K1) ayy £00g 182 A [80s1 uf (1)

(€) @ 1)

00L°T01°0% $ TTLI6L el $ (€96°118°7) $ (18T°€18°L) S SII'PL99T $ 918°€SL°001 $ $88°L61°ST $ (069°L9¥°6) $ 691°vE8El $ 0£€T9€9 $ JUSWILIOAOD) ATBWLI [€10L,
(P9L°SST'T) 6LTYE9 (880°€€L°8) 9€9°68S 96€°ST1 9L9°ST (LE9L8STT) £86'889°t P8E88PE SL8'80€'9 SoNIANDY odA | -ssoursng
oY’ 8SE 1Y S EPYLSITIEL S STI‘1T6'S $ (L16°20%°8) S 6IL'8YS9T S OvI'8EL°00T $ TTS'S8LLI $ (€L9°9STHT) $ S8L'SHE0I NSS4y $ SONIANDY [EJUSWIUISAOL)
$)assy JON ul a5uey)
8€6°0€€°091 $ 6T9°SELILT S 188'¥8T6Y1 S LY6'SHSIIST $ 80TH6LTST S TIF06EErT $ $86°€89°9T1 $ 8I8°9LT601 $ 6S1°TSTLO $ 909°LEV'88 $ JUSWILIOAOD) ATBWLI [€10L,
($25°929) (01L°60%) (20$°L0S 1) LLL Y TIS'860°1 €96'CIL $80°81€¢ (¥81°520) LTTLET (895°20L) sonIANOY odA 1 -ssouisng [e10],

(0S9°19¢°1) (r6€°€LL) (91€°€907) (92°865) (90T°s€S) (0L9°62€) (975°8S1) (0£€°s8Y) 8SL°6€ (666°€L6) SNOQUB[[2ISTA/SIofsUBL],

- - - - - - - - - ¥91°'8T 1088V [ende) Jo [esodsi(y uo uren
9z1°5€8 ¥89°€9¢€ P18°SS 170°0%9 8IL€EYT €€9°TH0°1 119°9Ly 9II°LET 69°L61 $$9°6T1 SBUILLIEY JUSUISAU]

- - - - - - - - - - swersold o10adg 0y

PRJOLIISAY JON SUONNQLIIUO)) PUE SIUBID)
- - - - - - - 000°€T - ZIEsI S10UASY JAYIO) WOIJ SIUAISINGUINY
:SaNIANOY adA 1 -ssaursng
T9t°LS6'091 6€€°SYI°LLT £8€°T6L0ST OLI'p0S IST 969°569°1S1 67r LLYTHT 006°59€°9C1 200°20S°601 €6'v10°L6 FLI'OVI'68 SONIALOY [EIUSUILLIDAOL) [EI0 ],
685°591°9 €91°0LS6T1 LEY'896°C 95€769°C 6€8°0€6°1 TIL'SETY 102°659°C SEI°E8L] PIv'691 €01°L18°T SNOSUB[[2ISIA/SIofsUBL],

- - - - - - 00S°081 - (zyL'0€) - 1088y [eide) Jo [esodsi(y uo uren
6¥S160°1 6SE TPl YOLOET'T SLESHS'I 8EYOL'E 010°1L8°€ YSL'SYYT 0¥L°090°C 182°001°C 90€°9LY'T Ayadoid pue Louow Jo dSN WOL} MUY
69r P11 9€€165°T1 S61'8E6°ET 88950t ¥ 1 68€°LTH Y1 6TL'SES Y1 126 PLIY1 1LT6€T°E Y20 1¥0°€ ¥S0¥S6°C swieioid oyroadg 01

PRJOLIISAY JON SUONNQLIIUO)) PUE SIUBID)
$$8°95S°0r1 $ I8P IP8Eel S LYL'SPLIIEL $ 8PL09STEL $ 0£0°EPSIET $ 866'7€0°0CT $ $TSS06°901 $ €S88I¥°T01 $ SS6'VEL'16 S T1LT61°C8 $ SoXe[
SONIANDY [BJUSWILIIAOLD)
$)aSSY JON Ul
saSuey)) JIY)() PUE SINUIAIY [BIIUID)
(8€T°8TT0TI) $ (L06°EH6 Y T) $ ($¥8°960°TS 1) $ (8TT'65€°6ST) $ (£60°0T1°9T1) $ (965°9€9°TH) $ (00T°98FT11) $ (80S'¥PL'8TT) $ (066°L1¥°€8) $ (9LT°$L0TY) $ osuadx{ JON JUOILIOA0D) ATWLid [€10L,
(0¥T°629) 686°€H0°1 (985°57T°L) 658°LYS (911°€L6) (L8T°L69) (TTL°$06'T) L9T'Y16'Y LST1ST'E EPPI10°L sonIANDY odA | -ssoursng
(866°865°611) $ (968°L86°SH1) $ (8STIL8 Y1) $ (L80°L066ST) $ (LL6'OPI'STI) $ (60€°6€6°TH) $ (8L£°085°801) $ (59°859°€T1) $ (Ly1°699°98) $ (61L°980°68) $ SANIANDY [EJUSWIUISAOL)
ANUIAIY/(dsuadxy) JON
916°688°CI 1 $ L69°€10°98 S 1TITI9LL $ 0vO ISLYL S 1LS'616°0L S SLO'TOISLL $ 6€9°0TT'SY $ 098°7CT0S $ L8T0S9°TS S €19°8Y9°cr $ SONUOAGY WLIFOI JUSWILIAAOD) AIBWLI] [0
062°890° 7 981°6¥1°8€ 10201+ 7€ [AiaTa7s 69T°975°TE TSH'99€°€E $89%€TT 8TV 1TSHT SOL€66°61 967°8€T'1T SONUDAY WeI301d SONIANOY odA [-ssoulsng [e10],
08€°8L0°1 7€8°89F Y €€TY0S 1 Th8'S8L'E 020°859°C 99T°€10°9 TIv'e8e 799v8T°¢ SIS'EETT 0LL'SE6'E suonnqLIuo) pue sjueln [ende) [E10L
08€°8L0°1 7€8°89b €ETYOS T TH8'S8LE 020°859°C 99T°€H0°9 TIp'ese 799v8T°¢ SIS'EETT 0LL'SE6'E Ammn
SUONNQLIUO)) pue sjueln) [ende))
- - - L8TTYS 11798 00S 718 €91°11 £60°0¥C ¥TL00Y - suonnqLIuo) pue sjuetd Funesado [e1o L
- - - L8T TS 171798 00S¥18 €91°11 £60°0C ¥TL00Y - Ann
suonnqLIuo)) pue sjueln sunerodo
016°686'TH 76€089°¢E 896°S06°T€ £87°996°6C 801°720°6T 989°805°9C 011°0€6°1C €L9°966°0C 99¥°6S€°L1 9TS'TOE'LT SOOIAIDS 0] SATILYD) [B10 L
0L9°$50°01 LL9198°C 010°198°¢ 6T TSIS $59°02T's LTIV 88T01S°1 €60°0€°1 SEL'SEY LOE'989 Jofew-uoN
0PTreE6°TE $ SL9BIS'6T $ 8S6'770°6T $ 686°€I8YT S €S¥€08°€T $ $15°960°CC $ Tz861t0T $ 08599561 $ 1€L°0T691 $ 61791991 $ Amn
:SQOIAIRG 10] SaFIey)
:SaNIANOY adA 1 -ssoursng
(PONUPUO)) :SINUIANY WeIS0dg
[4tire 110z 010T 600T 800T L00T 9007 €007 $00T €00T
SYVHA TVOSIA NAL LSVT
SLASSY LAN NI SHONVHD
7Jo 7a8eg
[AICLAN NIDYUIA 104408 40 ALID




-o8ueyo 0y ASojoururio) 9ouL[eq pUNy oY) Pasnes uoneuowL[duw ¢ SO "SIUGWAILIS [BIOUBUIL] 0} SOJON AU} UT /] 0N Iod S Spunj [2I0AdS UT JUSWIOIL)SOT B SOPN[OUT SIY],

96

$01°796°S$ 10J pIeOg [00YIS A} PUB ‘SHT 99G$ JO PUN ] OUBUIUIEJA PEOY AU} JUSWIOIE)SAI B Sapnjou] (1)

‘pun s109[014 [eide)) ay) ur JUAWLIL)SAI O €L HS$ B SOPN]OUL SIY,

—~

€)
9}

‘pun,j [EIOUSD) oY) UI JUOIILISAI /L €6$ B sopnjout iy, (T)
‘pIEMIOJ pUe 01T A 01 parjdde s1 ¢ gSyD pue ASojoporiow pjo oy 1opun pajrodar are 01z 01 Joud s1eak ‘snyy, “pajrodar aq 0) doueeg puUn, Jo saL105)ed Mau painbar ¢ JuawerelS gSVH (V)

() (©) @
6V TLETI $ 91¥°€2091 $ 87F01L°6 $ €90°798°11 $ 09€°9€t°6 $ €89°L56'8 $ €€6'68€°9 $ ¥8T9SH'L $ S90°TIH'8 $ LT6'9TI'L $
(€08°Lz1) (PLLTTST) - - - - - - - - pousisseun
¥1T°5T9°9 LLY'€E8°6 S6S°8T6'L - - - - - - - pousissy
€16°818 T6SYTE9 909°L00°T - - - - - - - PRIy
- - 81%°TCE - - - - - - - PparoLSY
$T6'SS0°S 1TI°L8ET 6T8°1SY - - - - - - - s[qepuadsuoN
- - - 9ETHOY'T 89€°0LE'T 78¢°€8L I8TTI0T 9$€ 18 0L602T SE0'ELL paAIasaIUn)
- s - $ - $ LT86SH01 $ 766°590°8 $ 10€'PLI'S $ TSL'BLE'S $ 8T6'119°9 $ S60°161°8 $ T68°€5E9 $ PIAIASYY
(paeog [00y0S) 11un) jueuoduwio))
790°TTI°19 $ T¥6°'L90°0€ $ 1€8°1THTE $ LL9995"0F $ ¥T6'786°LE $ €5t'S5E'9¢ $ (ILL°SOE'T) $ 9$8°9LLC1 $ S¥9°€90°CI $ 957’8616 $ SpUn [BJUSWIUIIAOL) IO [[€ [EI0L
- o1L°1L) (108°69) - - - - - - - pousisseun
- - 658009 - - - - - - - spun,{ 991A19S 3q2(J
¥06°676 200°TLS 6£8°89%°S - - - - - - - Spun,j aNUIAY [e199dg
- - £71°898°9 - - - - - - - SpUN,] [RIUSWIUIDA0D) Y10
ur pajtodor ‘poudissy
197°608°01 981°STI°L 0S1°98¢ - - - - - - - SpUN,] [RIUSWIUIZA0D) JYI0
$0T'€6T°C 8T1°668°C LEO688°S - - - - - - - SPUN, [BIUSWILIA0D) JofewtoN
0€STH8 1€ $0S°LSO'T SEV'986°CI - - - - - - - spuny s10afo1d [ende)
a1 pajrodar ‘paprururo))
€91°LTTY1 TEY'SOI°LI 691°76€ - - - - - - - papLsay
- - - 906'71C'8 S6T°S£9°9 F06'1L1Y (S8S°pLT) €89°TLTT 969°7TT'T 716°058°T Spunj aNuoAY [erdads
- - - - Y0£6S6 LLO9TO°T LLTLL6 - - - JUSURWLIO]
- - - 90L°6L9 80L°198 0FErEL (O11°L5L) (€91°TLS'D) ($08°09€°7) (EF°6L9°T) Spun 901AIS 199
- - - 8TI°€SE°61 S00°6€€°1T 08+°€00°8C @®p1°TrTL) $99°L0€°8 780°780°8 09T8LEL spuny spafoid [ende)
:ur pajiodar ‘parosaIun
- s - $ - $ LE6BIETI $ T19°681°8 $ TS9'61t°T $ 108°068°S $ TLY8ILY $ ILYLITY $ STS8Y6'l $ PIAIASYY
Spun,j [BJUSWIWIdIAOD) DY) [[V
90T TSYvS S LTYLY' LY $ 102°009°€S $ 690°01T° 1S $ 0L9°680°8¥ $ 8L6'T18'€EE $ 09S'7S1°0€ $ €SESIE8T § 9LE'8SSIE S SLLTHO'LE S puny [e13u90) [BI0],
yLET88°9€ 860°695°S€ 160°TCTEr - - - - - - - pousisseun
9Er'SIST LSF0TS T €S1°61S°6 - - - - - - - pousissy
8T9°L06°C1 £€5°00C°8 SLY'S8S - - - - - - - PopIWo))
789°901°C 789901°C - - - - - - - - papLsay
980°1¥ L6918 T8YLLT - - - - - - - s1qepuadg-uoN
- - - ThO0rS 0S 8LI6LT LY 808°L1T €€ 207°911°8C S65°6L0°ST £2€°T06'8T 18L°691°%€ paAsesaIun
- § - $ - $ LT00LY $ T6v°018 $ 0L1'76S $ 8S1°800°C $ 8sL'seT'E § £50°959°C S ¥66°TL8T $ PanIasaY
puny [eIouan)
[41114 1107 0107 6007 8007 L00T 9007 $00T $00T €007
(V)
SYVAA TVOSIA NAL ISV'T
SANNA TYINTANITAOD ‘SHONVIVE ANNA
£9IqeL VINIDYIA 104408 A0 ALID



243 PIJII[JI JOU Ak eI ) ur dpew q B

IS1 1| 10 VOID 0) anp uonedy! 0]

~2an)1puadxd ue Jo pedjsui sy juduoduwio)) 0) Jsue.], € S PIP.10ddL sem 00z 03 Jorid uoneanpy (9)

'L00T 1edA [2ISI) 10§ dUBUIIUTRW JO 18K [[N) & pey YoIym puny I PrOY A1) 10J SIANYI| PUE SINUIAAL SIpNpUY ()
“[9qes] duedLLINY 10§ saIMIpuddxa sapnpoul [eyudunaedapuoN (4)

L6

ANUIAIY YY) uo Judwked [el
IAIIS 1GI( AIEPUOIIS S, VAT U} 10§ I $°T$ ‘4007

‘spuog

deU 0) ] 9°S$ ‘T 10T $SPUOY INUIAY YY) PUNJAI 0} A §'§IS ‘LO0T $SPUOY INUIANY A £'81$ U 110ddns 0) puny IAISY

PUOY ANUIATY V(I 49U IIUIIYUOD) [OJNS/UU] UIPILS) UOIIH 10) VAHA/VAI 0) UonnqLiyuo) (g)
*s)udwRINba 2ansopsIp Sumunuod puoq Jo 1aed st ones pajeE. YL (A1) dY) WOLJ INUIAIL UOHNGLIU0))

$S9] S2AMIPUIAXD puny MIAIIS POO [00Yd§ pue SuneddQ [004dS) WAV 24} JO UoNds Jrun Juduodwo)) du) ur punoy e saInpuddxd [00YIS [EUIONIPPY (7)

*suonejuasaid saeak snoiadad woay padueyd daey Aew onel sIY ], *VOAD Aq pauyap se 9[npayas

UOHEBI[IDU0IA { NQIYXF AY) Ul uoys se Aepn( [ende)) ssaf soamIpuadxy [€10 1, 3y} £q PIPIAIP 2A0qe usoys )sasdu] snid [edidurig ay) se pajemnae) (1)

(2) soamy [ooyps snyd [eyd
%IL'8 %ST'8 %0L'8 %058 %88 %928 %8€°6 %05'8 %826 %8T°6 Jo 95rjuadaad e se 2214198 1q2Q
98T°0LIS8 £99°7€6°18 LTTST1'68 769°0€°16 189°80%°8 098°209°6L PTS'9LYEL 1TL10€°69 96T°TH109 ELLTIL'LS (7) soamypuadx g 141G Pooyf 3 Sunesdd( [00YdS |,pPY
(1) saamrpuadxa jejrdes-uou
%€9°TI %1811 %b8'TI %SLT1 %L9°TI %811 %811 %60°€1 %bL €l %0€ 1 Jo a5rjuadaad e se 2214198 1q2Q
TS0°€STI1 686°90T°91 6EE769°81 T8L°T8S0T SIE619°LT 0TS 1L 81 TST'980°8¢€ 9$8°TIS 6T T60°SSLYT 0PS‘88Y°ST (1)(2mpayos uodai  yx) Aepno eyded)
668°LT0°8E $ (8) (806°170°01)  $ (8) (691°968'9) $ 1S1°20L°S § (®) P9I°L06'ST §  S08°T6SEY $  (otv'erten) (T18'62s'1) $ (0106167 s (099°029°¢) S ue[eg pun,f ut d3uey) PN
POIL8IYE §  091°6SET §  966€I1'8 $ 09€VLLLL $ LLOTOL'ST $ TW16v8TY $ SPTPLTST 68L°SI8IT §  881%6I1°0C $  (10S'95L°8) $ (s9s1) $90MOg FurouruL] YO [EIOL
(0T6°8LE TE) (S98°71L°67) (98+°910°L7) (078°90€°67) (€09°L0¥°97) (820°T20°6) (978°8LL'S) ($S9°€ST'L) (966°80€°C1) 016°STH'S) QO siefsuel]
- - - - - - - - 069°TTL'T - 9SSV JO 9[eS WO SPadd0I
(85°960°71) - (000°0S€°T€) - - (€TH°€0L°67) (06€°59¢°01) - (L66°0LL61) - JUOBY MOIDSH SPUOg papunjay o) JuowAed
861°0v8°C€ STO0LO°TE P9S°TTTIE 00Z°187°0€ LSO€TT'LT T80°LIS9 0667119 PSYOVL'L 99v°TTS TN S60°086°S U SIQJSUBLL

- - - - - - - - (956'7€1°LT) spup) Juduodwo)) 0y SIJSUBI]

- - 816°701°C - £29°108 UTIErE SST'816 686891 - - 192 uo sumnuaig
1€7°975°TE - 000°0SS°€ 000°009°91 000°SLY'¥T 6£T°981°€9 6v6°90% 71 000°091°1T 8T0°€81°81 0LTHTI'81 POnSS[ SpUOg JO SPad00Id
£58°56T°11 $ - S 000°509°0€ $ - $ - $ 000°0¥+°8T $ L9T'8L6'6 - §  L66°0LL6L $ - $ spuog] Supunyay Jo spasooid

(s9s)) sa2anog Suueuly YO
S6LY0PS'E s (890°L6TD) $  (s91°010°ST) $  (60TTLoTl) s (€16788'6) §  (LegosTiel) §  (599°L16'80) (109°sv°€0) §  (861'8€0°€0) S Ip8TSErS $ SAIMIPUadXg (19pUn) JIAQ SINUIASY JO S80XH
08€70S°00C  §  SS6'S68°S0T  $ pSLLI'0T $ 61L%67°€0C $ L89°Y8€°00T $ LYTH6TT0T $ £00°6€L°181 SLI‘889°LST §  089%LS0SI $  80¥'IS9POI  § soxmypuadxg [e101,
81779811 691°1L5°€1 99SIE YL LEL'LIYEL 7L 19€°€1 T19'710°S 1 SP8°166°C1 6656766 LIL180°01 T81°865°8 Tedoutig
916'7£0°6 9€€°sT8'8 0T8'SSL'6 9795796 9L8°T€S"8 TL8689°9 9L1°S8EL LEV'6T89 1€6'80T°L TS1°089°9 Js219u]
68L°61€ L8L°LT 0L16E€E 716°88T S0T061 ¥80°S00°T 86£°60C £66°T6T 80051 LTEEel LYo
AOIAIS 192
PS1°886°S1 6L8°SETI1 860°68L°0C T8LT8S 0T 0T9°7LS*8T 0TS TPL'81 TST980°8€ 9S8°TIS°6T 19€°€9LPT 0PS'88Y'ST AepnQ fende)
91 SSh £09°LL69 198°49T°8 €SL°ESLS PE9TTI'L 699°T10°L LES0ES'S 069°5667 ) 901°6¥L°01 LEESSLE [euouneda-uoN

- - - - - 810°195°€ 095°676°T ELI'STLT 6LL'0SET SIOIAIOS AN[qNJ 1YPO
097°500°9 (© 01€Fp9°el 6ET'E8L'S PEETEOS SPIT61°9 (©) $6L48L°9T 65S TIPS 129°s8b' © €79°905°9 L99°€19°€ Juawdojoad( Aunumo)
91S°L9S°L TE1°ESH'9 L81°TL6 £05°089°9 T6TY86°S W 005TH0’9 1L6°6€8°Y ¥8L66T Y PETOI8°E 9LY'S88°E [BANYND) PUE UONEBAIONY ‘Sied
£65°90T 1 160°9%L 9% PSL'STL Y 806°TLY'8t TTH666'SH 018°SP9° 1t SE8°6LL'SE P8Y0ETHE 7€6'98€°0¢€ © - uoneonpz
95L°T08°T1 0€E°9ST €T £2S8ILTI 016°L6S°TT 0T80F0°TT W 618°€6v°01 699°185°T1 S00°98L€ 1 S68°100°€1 10L°S6¥°TT QIEJ[O A\ PUE YIEOH
1T€°610°61 W L15°0gETT 10L78L°9T EEPOT9T ¥86°6LEYT T96°LS1°TT © 1T S9TLIL'S 811°800°L 676°908°9 SHOM 1and
LTI'LY6'SY TEKS8I0Y 109°708°LE 9S€°9L9°FE 0€8°€95°¢€ ¥ST'968°1€ 16T°LTT0E 9LS'6£T'9T 0ST'9L8'ET £20°116°0T Aiyes anqng
8ITTELL OPL'EPL'9 8TS°TIZY 109°518°9 61€°0LL9 0S2°709°9 8THE]I’S £59°S16' 60L°TOPY US0TY UONENSIUIWPY [eoIpnf
9L9°€95°€1 $ (W 0€9°800°T1 NI $ TE6'SLOS $ 66L°TLI‘8 $ W 101°LL18 $ €5L°8Y9°9 T89°€EH9 §  €0TE06'S S €TLI8K'S $ UONENSIUIWPY JUSWILIDAOD) [BIOUID)

saamyipuadxy

SLISPEROT  §  L88B6YHOL  §  6LELIIT6L $ 015°TTr 161 $ PLL'665°061 $ 016°LE0°€81 $ 8€E1TTES PLSTHEEL §  T8r9ESLTI §  6YTLSL'601 SANUOAY [R1OL,
LYT'006°T 0T SHr 1 9IIPLYT SSIP8L'1 1L8°89€°T T0PSILE (W) $66°500°T T6'9Ee 961°50€ PrEoI SN0OUR[[QISIA
P86°6LE'S 0ELTILY 610°6ELY 166°0LLY 180°8€S Y 188F1T°¢ £9°991°¢ 9LO°LS6'T $99°18L°T 001°9L0°T SOOIAIDS 10 SOTIRYD)
6S€°9ST'ES 98Y°12T°TS 8YTHS10S TI9'T81°6Y I18L°S08LY £PE6ER0S (8) 686°1LS°ST 8LTTOVHT LET'TH98T 6L9PL60T [eIUSWILIAOT U]
9TELIS 6S€°98L POLOEI'T 8LESHE'T 8EYP6LE 010°1L8°E PT8EEYT 0PL090°T 182°001°C S96°SI1°E Auadoiq pue Kouop jo as)
PTEPTOT 10L°698 L0£°TS8 1LL1TS 0SE°SLY £€90°TSS 029'569 £29°199 PI1°6S9 SLE'ESS SOINYIOLI0 PUE SauL]
LLELITT 9PLTRI'T TW86E 1 T0€T8I°T 80S°SLET 6TLTES T 8PS T8 STLI8ST 0696511 60S°TSHT S99,4 PUE ‘S)ULIA ‘SISUINT
19L°916°9€ 169°0TSv€ 7S8°916°C€ £09°060°€€ €TTHO1°EE LSS19T 1€ 6v1°T1S°0¢ 069°P1S°LT £68°19€°ST LOY€05°€T SOXE, [£907] DYIO
L6L'TSL'EOL S TL6'09L'S6 S 16766786 $ L69'710°66 S TTSLEO'S6 $ ST6'0SH'88 $ 08%°€70°L8 008°LT8 YL §  LbSTIET99 S 0L8196'LS S saxe], Auadold [erousn

SINUIAY

7107 1107 0107 6007 8007 L00T 9007 $007 007 €007

SAVAA TVOSIA NAL LSVT

SANNA TVINIANNYIAOD ‘SHONVIVE ANNA NI STONVHD

P olqeL VINIDYIA NT044N0S 40 ALID



86

‘uonorpsumnl oY) Aq padieyd Ajsnoradid soxe) [eo0] Y} SNSIOA

A)1TBO0] ) 0] PANIWAT PUE BIS A} £ PAJOI[09 XB ], UONEOIUNWILIO)) & 0) PIAOW BIUITIIA JO ([BIMUOWWO)) 3y 00T ‘T ATenuer 9An0a13q (1)

$68°9SS OrT $ 08 I¥8cel EPI9ITIET $ 10€SETCEl $ SPLIPIICT $ T8V TIL6TI $ SELYS6°90T $ 061°THETOT $§ 66€°€6ST6 § LLTSHVIS $ B0l
%0 TLTOPT - - L99°6€ 615901 86€°56€ 098°LYE - - - 21eqay X, ANje] orqng
%0 [S0) - - - - - £0S°20S 018°€€0°T 8€9°670°1 £17°886 169°9€L SODIAIOG dUOYd AouaSiowry
%€~ 961°90€ L9L'SEE IPELLE $20°9LE 0S6SE T65°T8¢€ 117°95¢€ $66°69€ 668°98¢€ €IP IS¢ uoIssiupy
%291 T€1°9L0°L 69L°0€1 9 NUAITEY 6€1°€89°C 086°T€9°S ¥61°90€ Y 616°988°¢ 8€T €TEE LET'T6T'E 9STY0OLT S[EdN
%EEY 1SS861°T 106vT6 ¥S9°LS6 6SS'SLL 6v0°TES L98°9TT LET'SET £9¥°20€ TsILee TrLYTT Suispo]
%6¢€ L6LTSET 968°€8€°1 19€°T8E°T 8ES0T 1 €TISTHT YTLBLET 9L €0V’ T 65S6°8€S°T 18L°€69°1 LLL'TL6 0208qQOL,
%EY TLETTO 9L0°0€8 T65°600°T 810°981°T SPL€9S T SLSTTIT $68°TE9T $$T100°C 098°658 81¥ 79 uonepIody
%L61 889°€61 LTS 861 SELTYY S0¥°90€ €L6°88C $95°0S€ 1L5°T9¢ LYS €8T 68L°TYT ¥9T°991 201§ Nueyg
%69 8Y6101°C 698°569°1 TIOTILT 866°€IL T TEL0SO'T LLTTES T 8T6°6S€E‘T 80€°0S€‘T 161°0€€°T 99T°8¥T 1 ASUIDITT J[OIYIA 010N
%0 - - - - - S€9°8ET LYY 1ST $95°€€T ¥6691C ST0°18Y asIydueI]
%801 105°9€S°L $06°899°9 6LY°S86°S 9L9°19T°9 018908°S 896%L9°C SET'LLI'S 0TT8TS‘Y 669°106°€ €L6°819°¢ osuadr [euonednad( pue ssoulsng
%1 (1) §10°928°¢ 881°679°¢ 968 ¥19°¢ L99°EEL'E 9T1°789°¢ LTY€TL T - - - - $9XE], uonEdIUNWWO)
%61~ 66L°085 € 90L‘88E Y 6L0°SETY YI86LT Y Y0061 LY6°8YE'S €Y 0Ty 9 $TT091°9 TLL'6EY9 86T°T90°L xel, Anmnn
%8S 16S°8LE"8 TTLYES L 8€€°SSEL 68T°€TE’L T88°6LS L 98€°LLI'L T86°€V0°L 8LT°€6€9 9€€°L8L S ¥6T€6T°S 98] pue so[eg

:S9Xe ], [BOOTT OO

%6L ¥60°0%9°€01 $ ¥SI°L6Y'66 16T°667°86 $  L69V¥0°66 $ TTSLEO'86 $ ST60SY'88 $ 68STLY9L $ 00S°LTSYVL LYSIET99  $ 0L8T96°LS $ xe], Aipdoid [eroudn

7102-€002 10T 1102 0102 6002 8007 L00T 9007 $002 $002 €007
aguey)

SYVHA TVISId NHL LSV

SANNA TVINTANITAOD ‘AIINO0S A9 SHNNTATI XVL

SdIqeL NIDYIA 'T044NS A0 ALID




66

"Q01JJO S,ONUIATY Y} JO JOUOISSIWIOY) AJI) :99INOS "IOYEBIIY) % ()| PUL SIBIA OALJ ISIIJ AU} 10J SO [RUISLIO JO 0,7 & PISSISSE IR
S[00) pue AIQUIYOBW PUE ‘dn[eA YIYN ISOMO] JO %0(0] J& PISSISSE QI8 SI[OIYIA UOIBIIOAI :ON[BA UBO] 9SBIOAR JO 9,00 | J& PISSIsse aIe SO[oIoA  (£)

"BIUISIIA JO uoIsstuwo)) uonerodio) oyels oYy £q pauruidg (g)

901JJO S,10SsasSY A1) :00In0S "9,0¢ soyewrxordde yorym Ayrodoad osn pue 3dooxo onjea [enjoe pajewns? Jo 9,001 e passosse st Ayradoid ey (1)

980°%CL 6986 STy 9€E'8SHH90°1 0€°S80°1LT TE0°ELEEOL L6'0 00L T8I ILE' 0SL‘S9T°S08°8 0SL‘0¥T°6T 000°STO‘9LLS 10T
01€7$6°660°01 STy TLSTI9°LTO1 7S6°€59°€ST 0T9°LS6°ELL 160 00£°LLO999°6 8ELTYETLO6 8€8°910°LT 006°STEST0°6 110T
L88ELL8T001 STty 618°9L£°996 6L0°TLT'SYT OvL Y01 ITL 160 001°9%0°S0L‘6 890°L6£°T80°6 899°909°9C 00%°06L°SS0°6 010T
€TTOP8Or1°01 STy 1€L°966°120°1 11¥°629°L1T 0TEL9EY08 160 008°0€9°€TL 6 616788116 769°799°€T 008°981°560°6 600C
0TLTS9°99%°6 STy ¥8€°SS6°€L6 6€%09°L0T 066°0S€°99L ¥6'0 0TLTS9°99%°6 9€€°L69°T6Y8 9€€°€SL 0T 000776 1LY8 800¢C
I¥LYT6°9%5‘8 STy 99LY9LY16 966 TTLYSI 0LL‘T#0°09L ¥6°0 0L¥'S6S°LOT8 SL6°6STTEY'L 0L9°1#8°91 SOEBIESIOL L00T
SY9°LEL 6599 STy 70S‘6ST¥LS €19°L00°SLT 168°1S1°669 90’1 178°0TF'S1T9 I¥1°8LS 8L S 176 11781 00T°991°L9L S 900T
CI'89LV6v'S STy 1SE°C0I'8LL 981 7T8°ES 1 S98°8LTVT9 801 197°886°€86't 190°699°91Ly 19%°91%°91 009°8¥C°00L Y S00¢
SIL'VEL'LESY ST 1L8°LS6VLL 988°191°991 686578809 80°1 r1°617°08C Y ¥¥8°9¥LT90Y PPy Tee 8l 007V I¥ 770y 00T
¥6L°088°LY Ty STty $ YILLSE'L69 CIV'196°L91 § 20£°9T¥°6TS $ 80°1S 08S‘61T1°0SLE 080°€6¥°055°E 080°699°LT  $ 000'778°TESE $ £00¢C
an[eA ey ®0L (7) 991AI3S (¢) Kyaadoag ey anfeA ®10], (7) 1AIS (1) Kya9doag IBIX
PIssassy Xe L, Aigng suazZNRID IPIM [enpy anqng suaznIH [edstq
IN[EA PISSISSY A1) parewnsy N[EA PISSISSY
#1001 Ky1adoad jeuosaag Kyaadoag 8oy
SUYVHA TVOSId NAL LSV1

ALYAdOdd HTdVXV.L 40 HNTVA TVALIV A4LVINILSH ANV dNTVA AdSSESSV

99[qEL VINIDYHIA 10440S A0 ALID



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

DIRECT PROPERTY TAX RATES (PER HUNDRED) (1)

Table 7

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Real Property (2)
Downtown
Suffolk Route 17 Mosquito Business Machinery Minimum

Fiscal Taxing City Taxing Control Overlay Personal and Total Direct
Year District Wide District District District Property (3) Tools (4) Rate (5)
2003 1.24 $ 1.08 § 026 $ 0.035 - 425 $ 315§ 5.33
2004 1.24 1.08 0.26 0.035 - 425 3.15 5.33
2005 1.24 1.08 0.26 0.035 - 425 3.15 5.33
2006 1.22 1.06 0.26 0.035 - 4.25 3.15 5.31
2007 0.98 0.94 0.26 0.035 0.125 4.25 3.15 5.19

2008 (6) - 0.94 0.26 - 0.125 4.25 3.15 5.19
2009 - 0.91 0.26 - 0.125 4.25 3.15 5.16
2010 - 0.91 0.26 - 0.125 4.25 3.15 5.16
2011 - 0.91 0.26 - 0.125 4.25 3.15 5.16
2012 - 0.97 0.26 - 0.125 4.25 3.15 5.16

M
@
3)
“4)
(%)

(6)

The City is not a component of any overlapping governments; therefore, it does not share any overlapping tax rates nor debt.

Real property is assessed at 100% of estimated actual value, except land use property which approximates 30%.

Vehicles are assessed at 100% of average loan value.

Assessed at 20% of original cost during the first five years of life; 10% thereafter.

The district tax rates include the City-wide rate. Additionally, districts overlap some properties, resulting in those properties being

taxed at the City rate plus the additional rate for each applicable district. Therefore, only the City-wide rate is used with the personal

property rate to calculate the Minimum Total Direct Rate.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2008, the Suffolk Taxing District and Mosquito Control District supplemental taxes were no longer assessed because the

City instituted a city-wide mosquito control program and incorporated the fees associated with those services into the storm water

utility fee.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Table 8

Real Property
2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Value (1) Value Value (1)
City of Norfolk Municipal Water System $ 56,671,300 0.65% $ 19,980,900 0.57%
116 Lakeview Parkway, LLC Joint Military Training Facility 54,480,500 0.62% - -
City of Portsmouth Municipal Water System 49,813,300 0.57% - -
CVN Distribution Distribution Warehouse 43,843,300 0.50% 34,960,700 0.99%
Sysco Food Services Food Services 42,381,300 0.48% 24,296,000 0.69%
Target Corporation Distribution Warehouse 39,245,000 0.45% 42,287,300 1.20%
Walmart Retail Merchandise 31,623,000 0.36% 21,439,400 0.61%
Lake Prince Center, Inc. Retirement Community 30,253,500 0.34% 23,646,100 0.67%
Pergola Group Apartment Complex 26,818,947 0.31% - -
TowneBank Financial Institution 26,088,800 0.30% - -
Fortress GSA Suffolk, LLC Joint Military Training Facility - - 34,456,900 0.98%
Sara Lee Coffee & Tea Co. Coffee Roasting - - 28,802,400 0.82%
Harbourview Partners Real Estate Development - - 25,813,400 0.73%
Ciba Specialty Chemicals Chemical Plant - - 24,339,200 0.69%
$ 401,218,947 4.58% $ 280,022,300 7.95%
(1) Total Assessed Value (does not include public service corporations) $ 8,776,025,000 $ 3,532,824,000

Personal Property

Source: City of Suffolk Assessor's Office

2012 2003
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Value (2) Value Value (2)
BASF Corporation Chemical Plant $ 10,169,250 1.28% $ - -
Unilever Best Foods, Inc. Beverage Company 9,715,940 1.22% - -
Planters/Kraft Foods Peanut Products 8,312,540 1.05% - -
QVC of Suffolk Inc Distribution Warehouse 7,238,880 0.91% - -
Sara Lee International Beverage Company 5,060,330 0.64% 2,887,370 0.55%
Lockheed Martin Corporation Technology Company 4,467,870 0.56% - -
Sysco Food Services of Hampton Roads Food Services 3,842,850 0.48% 1,543,270 0.29%
Target Corporation Distribution Warehouse 3,669,950 0.46% - -
Massimo Zanetti Beverage USA Beverage Company 3,603,480 0.45% - -
Charter Communications Cable Products 2,654,570 0.33% 1,859,530 0.35%
Ciba Specialty Chemical Chemical Plant - - 10,162,150 1.92%
Planters Lifesavers Co. Peanut Products - - 6,515,310 1.23%
Thomas J. Lipton Co. Beverage Company - - 4,168,310 0.79%
CVN Distribution Col, Inc. Distribution Warehouse - - 3,382,390 0.64%
Petals Factory Outlet of Delaware Discount Silk Flowers - - 2,100,000 0.40%
Penn Engineering & Manufacturing Self-clenching Fasterners - - 1,760,490 0.33%
Vitex Packaging Packaging Warehouse - - 1,706,320 0.32%
$ 58,735,660 7.38% $ 36,085,140 6.82%
(2) Total Assessed Value (does not include public service corporations) $ 793,373,032 $ 529,426,302
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Table 9

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Tax Collections
Delinquent Total Outstanding
As Delinquent
Percent of Taxes

Current Percent Delinquent Outstanding At End

Fiscal Total Tax Tax of Levy Tax Delinquent Total Tax of Fiscal

Year Levy (1) Collections Collected Collections Taxes Collections (2) Year (2)
2003 § 58,175,390 § 57,393,884 98.66% § 835,992 44.17% § 58,229,876 $ 1,892,505
2004 66,303,851 65,447,182 98.71% 777,317 40.50% 66,224,499 1,919,065
2005 74,108,747 73,148,580 98.70% 745,533 36.69% 73,894,113 2,032,137
2006 87,028,625 85,921,671 98.73% 968,148 46.59% 86,889,819 2,077,972
2007 98,604,779 97,146,638 98.52% 951,030 40.71% 98,097,668 2,336,057
2008 107,353,414 105,361,772 98.14% 933,545 88.23% 106,295,317 1,058,097
2009 112,502,640 110,007,171 97.78% 1,475,446 40.49% 111,482,617 3,643,790
2010 109,732,744 107,359,137 97.84% 1,585,519 38.92% 108,944,656 4,073,288
2011 111,072,859 108,430,361 97.62% 2,711,843 65.92% 111,142,204 4,113,644
2012 115,190,689 112,303,915 97.49% 1,970,995 43.95% 114,274,910 4,484,190

Note A: Delinquent real property taxes not collected within three years, a lien is recorded on the property of the collection thereof. Collecitons in

subsequent years represent delinquent accounts collected during the course of that fiscal year for all prior fiscal years.

(1) Beginning in the year ended June 30, 2000, the tax levy includes the Commonwealth's reimbursement.
(2) Adjusted for collections through August 15.

Source: City Treasurer

Property Tax Levies and Collections
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$20,000,000
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

PRINCIPAL COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL WATER AND SEWER CONSUMERS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Table 11

Annual
Consumption % of Total
in Gallons Annual
Water Consumers Type of Business (Hundred Cubic Feet) Consumption (1)

Western Tidewater Water Authority Regional Water Supply 178,684 7.19%
J'M Smucker Company Beverage Company 54,622 2.20%
Western Tidewater Regional Jail Jail-Regional Facility 46,725 1.88%
BASF Corporation Chemical Plant 42,930 1.73%
Sentara/Obici Hospital Hospital 35,530 1.43%
Suffolk Public Schools Education 34,865 1.40%
Wanchese Fish Company Seafood Processing 31,348 1.26%
Unilvever Best Foods Beverage Company 23,637 0.95%
Planters Peanuts Food Services 22,285 0.90%
Nansemond Square LLC Real Property Management 17,995 0.73%

488,621 19.67%
(1) Total annual consumption (all water customers) 2,484,222

Annual
Consumption % of Total
in Gallons Annual
Sewer Consumers Type of Business (Hundred Cubic Feet) Consumption (2)

Western Tidewater Regional Jail Jail-Regional Facility 46,725 2.34%
BASF Corporation Chemical Plant 42,930 2.16%
J'M Smucker Company Beverage Company 37,360 1.88%
Sentara/Obici Hospital Hospital 35,530 1.78%
Suffolk Public Schools Education 34,865 1.75%
Wanchese Fish Company Seafood Processing 31,348 1.57%
Nansemond Square LLC Real Property Management 17,995 0.90%
Unilever Best Foods Beverage Company 15,902 0.80%
Harbour Breeze Apartments Real Property Management 15,462 0.78%
30 West Pershing LLC Real Property Management 11,965 0.60%

290,082 14.56%
(2) Total annual consumption (all sewer customers) 1,991,723

Source: Department of Public Utilities
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA Table 13

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*
General Bonded Debt (1) Percentage of
General Section Estimated Actual
Fiscal Obligation Literary Notes 108 Loan Taxable Value Per
Year Bonds (2) Bonds Payable Payable Total of Property (3) Capita (4)
2003 $ 135,909,211 $ 8,750,000 $ 1,415,000 $ - $ 146,074,211 3.90% $ 2,084
2004 143,980,204 8,250,000 - - 152,230,204 3.56% 2,094
2005 152,386,650 7,750,000 3,000,000 - 163,136,650 3.27% 2,161
2006 152,622,419 7,250,000 4,196,949 - 164,069,368 2.64% 2,128
2007 199,367,465 6,750,000 1,588,475 3,845,000 211,550,940 2.58% 2,660
2008 211,511,740 6,250,000 480,000 3,652,000 221,893,740 2.34% 2,696
2009 214,610,188 5,750,000 240,000 3,459,000 224,059,188 2.30% 2,736
2010 232,142,756 5,250,000 - 3,266,000 240,658,756 2.48% 2,899
2011 218,769,380 4,750,000 - 3,073,000 226,592,380 2.34% 2,679
2012 312,430,000 4,250,000 - 2,880,000 319,560,000 3.41% 3,729
Business-Type Activities (1)
Senior: Presentation only Total Percentage of
Fiscal Capital Revenue Subordinate: Notes Primary Personal Per
Year Leases Bonds GO Bonds (5) Payable Government Income (4) Capita (4)
2003 $ 1,738,928 $ 44,460,000 $ - $ 2,200,000 $ 194,473,139 9.70% $ 2,774
2004 2,686,055 55,345,000 - 3,334,000 213,595,259 9.87% 2,938
2005 3,168,162 54,600,000 - - 220,904,812 9.44% 2,926
2006 8,370,710 67,410,000 - - 239,850,078 9.32% 3,111
2007 8,767,219 103,200,000 - - 323,518,159 11.82% 4,068
2008 6,354,783 141,385,000 - - 369,633,523 12.71% 4,491
2009 8,786,426 184,380,000 - - 417,225,614 13.67% 5,094
2010 6,394,321 180,965,000 27,000,000 - 428,018,077 13.69% 5,156
2011 4,549,616 176,925,000 27,000,000 - 408,066,996 13.06% 4,824
2012 7,108,756 158,530,000 27,000,000 - 485,198,756 15.52% 5,662

(1) Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. Business-type activities included some Golf Course notes payable in
2002 - 2004.

(2) GO Bonds include Utility GO Bonds (with or without an additional revenue pledge). They exclude the unamortized premiums and deferred amounts for advance
refunding. This change required restating previous years' balances.

(3) See Table 6 for estimated actual taxable value of property data.

(4) See Table 16 for personal income and population data. The most recent personal income data available from the Bureau of Economic Analysis is 2010 and is used to
analyze years 2010 through 2012.

(5) The subordinate GO bonds are "double-barreled”, they have a revenue pledge but are backed by the City's general obligation. They are presented under Business-type
activities but are actually included in the General Bonded Debt total.

*Previous years restated to include Utility GO bond debt in General bonded debt.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA Table 15
PLEDGE-REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net Revenue
Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt Debt Service Requirements (3)
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage (4)
UTILITY REVENUE BONDS (WATER AND SEWER)
2003 $ 20,755,301 $ 9,249,002 $ 11,506,299 $ 810,000 $ 2,585,289 § 3,395,289 3.39
2004 19,338,363 10,439,332 8,899,031 840,000 2,687,839 3,527,839 2.52
2005 23,096,899 12,583,141 10,513,758 1,060,000 2,782,571 3,842,571 2.74
2006 21,275,903 13,840,075 7,435,828 1,240,000 3,045,619 4,285,619 1.74
2007 29,991,524 14,859,732 15,131,792 1,810,000 3,123,149 4,933,149 3.07
2008 28,893,476 14,820,616 14,072,860 1,610,000 4,026,864 5,636,864 2.50
2009 29,758,790 16,601,440 13,157,350 2,290,000 4,258,888 6,548,888 2.01
2010 29,579,413 15,710,773 13,868,640 3,155,000 6,441,335 9,596,335 1.45
2011 30,342,116 15,009,702 15,332,414 4,040,000 8,929,768 12,969,768 1.18
2012 34,213,151 16,600,935 17,612,216 2,640,000 9,316,190 11,956,190 1.47

M

()

(3)

“)

Gross revenues include operating revenues, miscellaneous revenues, transfers in, interest income and BAB interest subsidy.

Operating expenses are exclusive of depreciation, amortization, interest expense, debt issuance costs and loss on disposal of capital assets.

Includes principal and interest of revenue debt that falls under the debt covenant requirements of the master indenture and other agreements.

(Capitalized interest paid by bond proceeds is excluded from the Interest; this reduction was $1,525,006 in 2011 and $-0- in 2012)

There were significant changes in debt service requirements from previous years because they now exclude GO-bonded debt.

The debt service coverage ratio is calculated as Net Revenue Available for Debt Service divided by Total Debt Service Requirements

(For the Utility fund the coverage must be over 1.15; since 2009, Suffolk's financial policy has recommended a target of 1.30,

including all non-parity debt which has not been included in this analysis)
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA Table 16

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal Schools: Unemployment Rate

Fiscal Income (2) Per Capita Average Daily City of State of United
Year Population (1) In Thousands Income (2)* Membership (3) Suffolk Virginia States
2003 70,100 $ 2,049,824 $ 28,131 12,476 4.3% 4.1% 6.0%
2004 72,700 2,222,284 29,338 12,966 4.1% 3.7% 5.5%
2005 75,500 2,403,540 30,845 13,297 3.9% 3.5% 5.1%
2006 77,100 2,654,590 33,119 13,452 3.5% 3.0% 4.6%
2007 79,524 2,861,021 35,255 13,490 3.3% 3.0% 4.6%
2008 82,302 3,018,158 36,618 13,513 4.1% 4.0% 5.8%
2009 81,907 3,053,030 36,494 13,568 6.8% 6.8% 9.3%
2010 83,006 3,125,659 36,828 13,801 7.7% 6.9% 9.6%
2011 84,585 not available not available 13,863 7.4% 6.4% 8.5%
2012 85,692 not available not available 13,734 7.0% 6.0% 8.5%

Sources:

(1) 2000 - 2008: U.S. Census Bureau: 2009-2011 - City of Suffolk Planning Department: 2012 - Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service

(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis based on calendar year

(3) City of Suffolk Public Schools based on March 31st collection data for State of Virginia

(4) Virginia Employment Commission - Area Unemployment Statistics, updates through October 2012

30

Comparative Unemployment Rates
FY 2003 - FY 2012

25

20

—=United States

\/ /\ ——State of Virginia

\/ ===City of Suffolk

FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Table 17

2012
Percentage

of Total City

Employer Type of Business Employees Employment
Joint and Coalition Warfighting Center Computer Modeling and Simulation (Civilian) 1,300 3.24%
Sentara/Obici Memorial Hospital Health Care 1,200 2.99%
QVC Distribution Home Shopping Distribution 900 2.24%
Wal-Mart Stores Retail 900 2.24%
Sysco Food Services of Hampton Roads Food Service Distribution 500 1.24%
Unilever Bestfoods/Lipton Tea Beverage Manufacture and Distribution 350 0.87%
Planters/Kraft Foods Peanut Products 340 0.85%
Target Corporation Warehouse Distribution 300 0.75%
Lakeview Medical Center Health Care 270 0.67%
Bon Secours Health System Health Care 269 0.67%
6,329 15.76%

Total number of employees city-wide (daytime population) for fiscal year 40,167
2003
Percentage

of Total City

Employer Type of Business Employees Employment
U.S. Joint Forces Command Computer Modeling and Simulation (Civilian) 1,200 3.43%
QVC Distribution Home Shopping Distribution 750 2.14%
Wal-Mart Stores Retail 500 1.43%
Tidewater Community College Education 350 1.00%
CIBASpecialty Chemicals Chemical Manufacturer 280 0.80%
Kraft Foods Peanut Products 280 0.80%
Conopco Inc./Lipton Tea Beverage Manufacture and Distribution 255 0.73%
Food Lion Grocery Store 250 0.71%
Lakeview Medical Center Health Care 240 0.69%
Sara Lee Coffee & Tea Beverage Company 225 0.64%
4,330 12.37%

Total number of employees city-wide (daytime population) for fiscal year 34,991

The Suffolk Public Schools (1,725 employees) and the City of Suffolk (914 FTE employees) have not been included to give

a clearer reflection of community activity.

Source: Economic Development Department and Virginia Employment Commission
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

TABLE 18

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Fund:
General Government:
City Council 8 8 9 9 9 10 10 10 10
City Manager 2 2 2 2 5 6 6 6 6
Asst City Manager Operations 2 2 2 2 1 - - - - -
Asst City Manager Development 4 4 4 4 4 2 - - - -
Management Services 8 9 7 7 6 6 - - - -
Budget and Strategic Planning - - - - - - 4 4 4 4
City Attorney 6 7 7 7 9 9 8 8 9
Human Resources 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 13
Commissioner of Revenue 10 10 10 11 12 12 12 11 12 12
City Assessor 13 13 13 13 13 13 14 15 13 14
Treasurer 13 13 13 13 16 16 15 15 15 15
Finance - Administration and Accounting 9 9 11 12 11 11 10 12 11 14
Finance - Purchasing 3 3 4 4 5 5 4 4 3 3
Registrar 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Total 86 88 91 93 101 98 94 95 93 102
Judicial:
Circuit Court 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Circuit Court - Clerk's Office 13 13 13 13 14 14 13 14 14 14
Sheriff 21 21 21 22 25 25 25 24 22 24
Commonwealth Attorney 17 17 17 18 22 29 29 28 23 23
Total 53 53 53 55 63 70 69 68 61 63
Public Safety:
Police
Administration and Officers 167 175 186 196 206 206 194 204 205 208
Emergency Communications 22 22 22 22 26 26 26 22 25 26
Animal Shelter and Management 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 7 8 9
Fire
Fire and Rescue 174 183 187 190 197 197 216 213 220 240
Fire Prevention 3 3 3 3 3 3 5 - - -
Community Development 25 27 27 27 27 27 26 24 26 27
Total 400 419 434 447 468 468 475 470 484 510
Public Works:
Public Works
Administration 7 7 7 7 7 6 5 3 3 2
Traffic Engineering and Maintenance (1) 24 27 30 34 - - - - - -
Engineering (2) 8 9 11 12 - - - - - -
Refuse Collection (3) 11 12 12 14 46 46 40 41 40 -
Maintenance Building and Grounds 22 22 25 25 27 27 15 4 4 4
Mosquito Control 1 2 2 2 2 - - - - -
Capital Programs and Facilities 2 3 3 3 3 3 6 20 22 24
Aviation Facilities 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 -
Total 78 85 93 100 88 85 69 71 72 30
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Table 18 (continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Fund:
Health and Welfare:
Social Services 103 101 102 101 102 102 101 100 101 98
Comprehensive Services Act 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Total 104 102 103 102 103 103 102 101 102 99
Parks, Recreation and Cultural:
Parks and Recreation
Administration 5 8 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 5
Support Services - - 5 5 4 4 4 4 5 5
Parks, Gateway and Facility Maintenance 17 17 18 20 22 22 20 19 18 18
Recreation 13 11 9 9 12 12 14 16 15 16
Library 15 17 17 23 35 34 31 31 30 31
Total 50 53 54 62 77 76 73 74 72 75
Community Development:
Planning 14 15 16 16 18 16 14 12 14 12
Geographic Information Systems - - - - - 3 5 5 - -
Economic Development 6 7 7 7 7 8 5 4 5 5
Tourism 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Media and Community Relations - - 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6
Total 22 24 30 31 33 35 32 29 28 25
Total General Fund 793 824 858 890 933 935 914 908 912 904
Special Revenue Fund:
Transit 5 5 5 5 5 5 - - - -
Road Maintenance (1)
Road Maintenance - - - - 93 94 86 91 88 90
Traffic Engineering - - - - 20 23 22 23 22 23
Aviation Facilities (6) - - - - - - - - - 3
Total Special Revenue Fund 5 5 5 5 118 122 108 114 110 116
Enterprise Fund:
Public Utilities
Administration 4 4 6 6 6 8 6 9 8 9
Customer Service 7 7 17 17 18 18 18 18 18 18
Line Maintenance 29 29 26 26 26 26 24 27 26 24
Maintenance 19 17 17 20 20 20 19 20 20 22
Water Production 19 23 24 28 28 29 28 29 27 28
Engineering 11 11 11 12 16 18 15 17 14 15
Stormwater Utility
Stormwater Utility (2) - - - - 28 28 26 27 25 28
Mosquito Control (2) - - - - - 7 6 7 5 7
Refuse (5) - - - - - - - - - 39
Total Enterprise Fund 89 91 101 109 142 154 142 154 143 190
Internal Service Funds:
Fleet Management 17 18 19 19 25 26 23 21 23 18
Information Technology 10 10 11 12 12 13 13 12 20 21
Risk Management - - 2 2 2 2 2 1 3 5
Total Risk Management 27 28 32 33 39 41 38 34 46 44
Total 914 948 996 1,037 1,232 1,252 1,202 1,210 1,211 1,254
@ @ @ @

1. Road maintenance fund was increased in 2007 due to VA Dept. of Transportation turning over the highway
system within the City to Suffolk.

2. New program adopted by City Council in 2007 and staffing realignment.

3. Change in methodology of calculating full time employees in this department.

4.2009 - 2012 actual data furnished by Human Resources. 2003-2008 provided by Budget Office.
5.The City established a Refuse Fund in FY 2011-2012. The employees for this Fund were transferred from the General Fund.
6 The City established an Aviation Facilities Special Revenue Fund in FY 2011-2012. The employees for this Fund were transferred from the General Fund.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA Table 20
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Public Safety:
Police Stations 4 5 5 5
Fire Stations 7 8 9 9
Public Works: (1)
State maintained road miles 1,302 1,308 1,308 1,308 17 18 18 18 18 18
City maintained road miles 76 76 76 76 1,420 1,500 1,531 1,581 1,581 1,600
Streetlights 5,968 6,467 6,710 6,940 6,980 7,000 7,139 7,648 7,917 7,996
Bridges 3 3 3 3 144 144 147 147 147 147
Traffic Signals 23 23 23 23 86 89 91 91 93 93
Education:
Elementary Schools 12 12 12 12 13 13 14 14 14 12
Middle Schools 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
High Schools 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Alternative Schools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Number of Teachers, Principals,
and Assistants 1,246 1,295 1,347 1,380 1,393 1,405 1,448 1,425 1,419 1,420
Average Daily Membership 12,476 12,966 13,297 13,452 13,490 13,512 13,568 13,801 13,863 13,734
Capacity of Schools 11,450 11,450 13,250 13,250 14,050 14,050 14,632 14,577 14,577 14,192
Enterprise Fund:
Public Utilities
Miles of Water Main 256 261 271 400 415 420 420 422 436 453
Miles of Sanitary Sewers 184 188 198 293 308 309 313 315 334 316
Miles of Storm Sewers 6 6 6 6 142 236 236 236 236 236
Pump Stations 98 104 112 113 125 129 131 134 136 140
Storage Tanks 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 8 9
Parks, Recreation and Cultural:
Parks and Recreation
Number of major parks and
recreation facilties (2) 41 41 41 41 41 41 40 40 42 42
Acreage of major parks and
recreation facilties 1,821 1,825 1,825 1,825 1,825 1,827 1,827 1,827 1,921 1,921
Library
Number of libraries 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Number of branch libraries 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 2
Number of bookmobiles 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Sources: Various City Departments

1. July 1, 2006: Virginia Department of Transportation turned over the highway system within the City to the City of Suffolk, except

for Interstate -664 and Route 164

2. In 2009 the American Legion Building was sold and in 2011, the East Suffolk Recreation Center and the first segment of the
Suffolk Seaboard Coastline Trail were added.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Suffolk, Virginia (the “City”), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated December 18, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, and Specifications for Audits of Authorities,
Boards, and Commissions issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore,
there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have
been identified. However, as described below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as Item 12-01 to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matters
that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, and which is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Item 12-02.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to the City’s management in a separate letter
dated December 18,2012

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and accordingly we
express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, state and federal

awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and the City Council and is not intended to be, and should
not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Goun, Gumsds ¥ pany, f 4.7

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Roanoke, Virginia
December 18, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

Compliance

We have audited the City of Suffolk, Virginia’s (the “City””) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2012. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Suffolk, Virginia complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.
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Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

ok sk ok sk sk sk s sk ok sk sk skoskok ok

This report is intended for the information of management, federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities, and the City Council and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other

than these specified parties.
éﬁfm | Ctyymedds "éw-? 447

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Roanoke, Virginia
December 18, 2012
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ending June 30, 2012

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Catalog Federal Department
Grantor/Grant Program Number Expenditures Totals
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
Department of Agriculture and Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 $ 1,056,543
Food Distribution 10.555 386,957
National School Lunch Program 10.555 2,696,370
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 108,873
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 41,876
Department of Social Services
State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program 10.561 1,203,839
Department of Education
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 49,524
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 5,543,982
U.S. Department of Defense
Direct Program:
JROTC Instruction 12.000 166,879
Community Economic Adjustment Assistance for a Military Installation 12.607 230,090
Total U.S. Department of Defense 396,969
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Program:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 472,729
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 357,216
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
Community Development Block Grants-Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.228 46,351
ARRA Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.257 51,538
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 927,834
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Program:
Bullet Proof Vests Partnership Program 16.607 6,568
Passed Through Department of Criminal Justice Services
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 167,709
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 88,275
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2,864
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 147,398
ARRA Edward Byrne Memorial Competitive Grant Program 16.808 28,170
Total U.S. Department of Justice 440,984
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 2,104,356
Highway Safety Grant 20.601 19,915
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Direct Program:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 160,639
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
ARRA Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 531,607

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

(Continued) 120



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ending June 30, 2012

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Catalog Federal Department
Grantor/Grant Program Number Expenditures Totals
U.S. Department of Education
Direct Program:
Impact Aid 84.041 $ 492,747
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002 128,014
Career and Technical-Basic Grants to States 84.048 296,233
Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities - State Grants 84.186 36,957
Education Technology State Grants 84.318 12,516
ARRA State Fiscal Stabilization Funds, Education State Grants 84.394 1,269,233
ARRA Education Jobs Fund 84.410 2,334,524
Title I, Part A Cluster
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 2,908,534
ARRA Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.389 458,721
Speical Education Cluster (IDEA)
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 3,108,496
ARRA Special Education-Grants to States 84.391 1,286,753
ARRA Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.392 77,487
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 54,038
School Improvement Grants Cluster
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.377 560,460
School Improvement Grants 84.377 185,419
Total U.S. Department of Education 13,210,132
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Payments:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 270,965
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 38,822
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 989,210
Refugee & Entrant Assistance 93.566 1,997
ILP Education & Training 93.599 4,075
Child Welfare Services 93.645 2,582
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 494,119
Adoption Assistance 93.659 167,052
Social Service Block Grant 93.667 620,116
Foster Care Independent Living 93.674 15,952
Children's Health Insurance Program 93.767 36,788
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 731,370
CCDF Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 189,743
Child Care Mandatory & Matching Funds for Child Care Dev Fund 93.596 245,024
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
U.S. Social Security Administration
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 96.568 74,501
Total U.S. Social Security Administration 74,501
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed Through Department of Criminal Justice:
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 10,016
ARRA Port Security Grant Program 97.056 150,222
Passed Through Department of Emergency Services:
VDEM HRUASI Program Grant 97.008 6,893
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 807,419
VDEM Emergency Mgmt Program Grant 97.042 22,382
VDEM Regional Communication Plan 97.055 133,612
State Homeland Security Program 97.073 19,703
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 1,150,247
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 28,368,981

Note 1. Basis of Accounting
This schedule was prepared on the modified accrual basis.

Note 2. Nonmonetary Assistance

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule of Federal Awards at the fair market value of the food commodities.
At June 30, 2012, the School Board had food commodities totaling $318,076 in inventory.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SUMMARY OF COMPLIANCE MATTERS
June 30, 2012

As more fully described in the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions of the laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants shown below.

STATE COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Code of Virginia State Agency Requirements
Budget and Appropriation Laws Education

Cash and Investment Laws

Conflicts of Interest Act

Local Retirement Systems

Debt Provisions

Procurement Laws

Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act

Comprehensive Services Act

Sheriff Internal Controls

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments

Provisions and conditions of agreements related to federal programs selected for testing.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

L.
2.

8.
9.

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements.

One significant deficiency relating to the audit of the financial statements was reported in the Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The significant
deficiency was deemed to be a material weakness.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs were reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material
Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs expresses an unqualified
opinion.

The audit disclosed no audit findings related to major programs.

The programs tested as major programs include:

Name of Program: CFDA #

Child Nutrition Cluster 10.553, 10.555, 10.559
State Administrative Matching Grants for

Food Stamp Programs 10.561
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558
Medical Assistance Program 93.778
Airport Improvement Program 20.106
Special Education Cluster, including ARA 84.027, 84.173, 84.391, 84.392
State Fiscal Stabilization Funds,

Education State Grants — ARRA 84.394
Education Jobs Grant — ARRA 84.410

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $851,069.

The City was not determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

12-01:

(Continued)

City, School, and EDA Adjustments — Material Weakness

Condition:

A significant number of audit adjustments were necessary for the financial statements to be in

compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. The adjustments related to improper

accounting for:

e City — Governmental receivables, capital assets, deferred debits and credits, accounts payable,

capital leases, other post-employment benefits, developer deposits, and landfill monitoring
expenditures.

e Schools — Accrued leave and capital assets.

e EDA — Valuation of land inventory, EDIP payable, bond maintenance fees payable, and
capital leases.

The items noted above resulted in adjustments to both current and prior period financial statement
balances. Some of the adjustments were caused by a lack of communication between the Finance and
other Departments regarding the nature of the underlying transactions, while others occurred due to
improper conclusions reached regarding the nature of transactions, and the turnover of individuals in
oversight positions in the Finance Department.

Recommendation:

Management should develop policies and procedures to address these weaknesses in internal controls.
Recommendations include the following:

e Evaluate all activities beyond transactional processing and also focus on the financial reporting
implications of those activities.

e The Finance Department should review all City Council, School Board, and EDA board
minutes to identify transactions that might have accounting implications.

e The Finance Department should be informed as to all significant agreements entered into by
other departments early in the process to ensure that they are recorded properly.

e Supporting documents for account balances should be reviewed and approved by the City
Finance Director.

Management’s Response:

The auditee concurs with these recommendations.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None.

. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

12-02: Disclosure Statements
Condition:

Four out of the fifty members of City Council appointed boards and commissions failed to file their
statements of economic interest by the required deadline.

Recommendation:

Ensure that all statements of economic interest are completed and filed by the state mandated due
date.

Management’s Response:

The auditee will take appropriate action to ensure that all statements of economic interest are filed
timely.
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